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From: Fairman, Kate (DNR)

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (US)
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: LD 2 Spillway Embankment Project
Date: Wednesday, October 18, 2017 12:19:13 PM

Hello Trevor,

Thanks for your email. You'll probably need to get a determination of environmental review need from the RGU
once you have a project design to make sure everyone is on the same page regarding next steps for environmental
review. We'll want to be kept updated if there is a DNR work in public waters permit (or existing permit
amendment) needed. I would imagine Dakota County would be fine being RGU, but if they would like to request
DNR be RGU for the project, they will need to request that change in RGU be granted by the Environmental Quality
Board. I wouldn't worry about those details until you have a determination from the County that an EAW is
required, but at that point we can discuss more.

Let me know if you have additional questions. Thanks for the head's up!
Kate

Kate Fairman

Planning Director | Environmental Review Unit
Minnesota Department of Natural Resources
500 Lafayette Road North

Saint Paul, MN 55155

Phone: 651-259-5082

Email: kate.fairman@state.mn.us

mndnr.gov

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (US) [mailto:Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil ]
Sent: Tuesday, October 17,2017 9:27 AM

To: Fairman, Kate (DNR) <kate.fairman@state.mn.us>
Subject: LD 2 Spillway Embankment Project

Kate,

Good morning, my name is Trevor Cyphers, a biologist with the St. Paul Army Corps of Engineers. Aaron
McFarlane recommended I contact you regarding a project we are starting within Pool 2 of the UMR. The Corps is
proposing to construct some form of embankment protection along the current spillway embankment at Lock and
Dam 2 as the current riprap on the spillway is becoming degraded. There are currently three different options that
the Corps is considering at Lock and Dam 2. These options includes adding new riprap to the current embankment,
constructing a sand berm attached to the current embankment and creating an offshore island. The goal of the
project is to protect the current earthen embankment from erosion via wind-driven wave action, ice action and river
currents. The current preferred alternative for the project is creating the sand berm in front of the existing spillway.
On top of providing protection for the existing embankment, we are hoping the sand berm would provide additional
floodplain habitat. The need for an embankment at Lock and Dam 2 was determined through a Problem Appraisal
Report (PAR) that focused on embankment protection at Dams 2-10. A similar berm was created along the Lock and
Dam 4 spillway in 2007. As of right now, the project is in its infancy and probably wouldn't be awarded for contract
until September 2018 or later, but with this project requiring an EAW, I wanted to make sure you aware of the
project. As of right now the RGU for the project would be Dakota County, which may not or may not have the
resources to undertake that responsibility. If they are not willing or prefer not to be the RGU for this project, would
the MN DNR be willing undertake that responsibility? If you need any clarification on the project, or want to
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discuss the project, feel free to give me a call.
Thank you,

Trevor W. Cyphers

Fishery Biologist

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
180 5th Street East, Suite 700

St. Paul, MN 55101-1678

Office: (651) 290-5031

Mobile: (507) 273-7546
trevor.w.cyphers@usace.army.mil



From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (US)

To: "kate.fairman@state.mn.us"
Subject: Potential Meeting Next Week - Lock and Dam 2 (UNCLASSIFIED)
Date: Friday, February 2, 2018 1:24:00 PM

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
Hi Kate,

I know I left you a voicemail, but I wanted to leave you a more detailed email before I left for the day. A couple
things came up at our meeting today regarding the Lock and Dam 2 embankment and where we might want to go.
Our original idea was to simply do a sand berm in front of the existing embankment, similar to what was completed
at Lock and Dam 4. Throughout the discussion there were some concerns regarding the structural stability of the
embankment with the addition of the berm. This brought up the discussion of an offshore island and what the
benefits of that structure would be. Jon Hendrickson then had the idea that we could potential look into using a
smaller sand berm attached to the embankment and an offshore island, which would lead to more beneficial use of
dredged material. I was hoping that Tom Novak, Nick Castellane and I could meet up next week with you and other
interested DNR folks and discuss these different options. I know the three of us are free next Thursday and Friday,
especially in the morning. We could also come over to your office to make things easier. Let me know if this could
be a possibility.

Thanks,
Trevor

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

Subject: [Non-DoD Source] RE: Doodle poll for meeting regarding potential ACOE Lock and Dam 2 Embankment Project
(UNCLASSIFIED)

Date: Monday, February 12, 2018 2:35:53 PM

Thanks, Trevor. I'm thinking next Thursday morning is looking like the best opportunity.

If that doesn't work for the rest of the PDT team, please encourage them to fill in their availability as soon as
possible.

Thank you!

Kate

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (US) [mailto:Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil]
Sent: Monday, February 12, 2018 2:12 PM

To: Fairman, Kate (DNR) <kate.fairman@state.mn.us>
Subject: RE: Doodle poll for meeting regarding potential ACOE Lock and Dam 2 Embankment Project
(UNCLASSIFIED)

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
Kate,

Thank you for putting this together. After having a meeting with the PDT last week, I think next week will be better
for us, as our civil engineer is working on putting some CAD drawings together this week. I also spoke with
Washington County regarding the RGU status and will be forwarding them the doodle poll invite. Also, I will bug
the rest of the PDT to fill out the doodle poll so we can determine the best day to have the meeting.

Thanks,

Trevor

From: Fairman, Kate (DNR) [mailto:kate.fairman(@state.mn.us|
Sent: Tuesday, February 6, 2018 12:21 PM

To: Doneen, Randall (DNR) <randall.doneen@state.mn.us>; Horton, Becky (DNR) <becky.horton@state.mn.us>;
Skancke, Jennie (DNR) <jennie.skancke@state.mn.us>; Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (US)
<Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>; Novak, Thomas CIV USARMY CEMVP (US)
<tom.novak@usace.army.mil>; Schnick, Emily (MPCA) <emily.schnick@state.mn.us>; Brist, Jim (MPCA)
<jim.brist@state.mn.us>

Subject: [Non-DoD Source] Doodle poll for meeting regarding potential ACOE Lock and Dam 2 Embankment
Project

Hello All,

Trevor Cyphers at the Army Corps of Engineers contacted me regarding an upcoming project that the Corps is
considering. They are still considering options at this point, but wanted to engage us in the conversation as they
work through some preliminary options. Please participate in the poll (link below) if you are interested in attending.
If you are interested in attending but cannot make any of the proposed dates, please let me know and we can figure
something out. If others should be included, please forward the link as appropriate.

BlockedBlockedhttps://doodle.com/poll/aqqvd54vhx8e8une
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

Email: kate.fairman@state.mn.us <mailto:kate.fairman(@state.mn.us>

mndnr.gov <BlockedBlockedhttp://mndnr.gov/>

<BlockedBlockedhttps://www.facebook.com/MinnesotaDNR> <BlockedBlockedhttps://twitter.com/mndnr>
<BlockedBlockedhttp://www.dnr.state.mn.us/emailupdates/index.html>

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
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From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (US) on behalf of Fairman, Kate (DNR)

To: Kough, Trevor V CIV USARMY CEMVP (US); Castellane, Nicholas J CIV (US); Doneen, Randall (DNR);
Hendrickson, Jon S CIV USARMY CEMVP (US); Horton, Becky (DNR); Schmidt, Luke L CIV USARMY CEMVP (US);
Skancke, Jennie (DNR); Brist, Jim (MPCA); Schnick, Emily (MPCA); Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (US);
Novak, Thomas CIV USARMY CEMVP (US); DeBates, TJ (DNR)

Subject: FW: ACOE Lock and Dam 2 Embankment Project Initial Discussion (UNCLASSIFIED)

Attachments: ATT01077 1.ipg
ATT69850 2.ipg
ATT61384 3.ipg
ATT11230 4.ipg

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED

FYI

From: Fairman, Kate (DNR) [mailto:kate.fairman@state.mn.us]

Sent: Monday, February 12, 2018 4:03 PM

To: Fairman, Kate (DNR); Doneen, Randall (DNR); Horton, Becky (DNR); Skancke, Jennie (DNR); Brist, Jim (MPCA); Schnick, Emily (MPCA);
Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (US); Novak, Thomas CIV USARMY CEMVP (US); DeBates, TJ (DNR)

Subject: [Non-DoD Source] ACOE Lock and Dam 2 Embankment Project Initial Discussion

When: Thursday, February 22, 2018 9:00 AM-10:30 AM (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada).

Where: MN_DNR_ROOM_C2_MAIN_CONF

Hello All,

This meeting is being set in response to a request from ACOE to discuss options for an upcoming Lock and Dam 2 embankment project proposal.

This was the time and date that worked for most individuals. Apologies for those who are unavailable at this time—we will try to catch you up after the
meeting, or please let me know if you’d like to send someone in your place.

Trevor: Please share with others at the Corps who I may have missed, (I don’t seem to have an email for Nick Castellane or Jon Hendrickson).
Becky and/or TJ: Please include other staff as appropriate.

This was requested to be an in-person meeting to discuss some possible components of the forthcoming project, but if you would like to attend via
Skype, please let me know and I will set up a link.

Please let me know if you have any questions.
Thanks!
Kate

Kate Fairman

Planning Director | Environmental Review Unit

Minnesota Department of Natural Resources

500 Lafayette Road North

Saint Paul, MN 55155

Phone: 651-259-5082

Email: kate.fairman@state.mn.us <mailto:kate.fairman@state.mn.us>
mndnr.gov <Blockedhttp://mndnr.gov/>

<Blockedhttps://www.facebook.com/MinnesotaDNR>  <Blockedhttps://twitter.com/mndnr>
<Blockedhttp://www.dnr.state.mn.us/emailupdates/index.html>

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
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From: McDaniels, Dee

To: Fairman, Kate (DNR); Doneen, Randall (DNR); Horton, Becky (DNR); Skancke, Jennie (DNR); Brist, Jim (MPCA);
Schnick, Emily (MPCA); Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (US); Novak, Thomas CIV USARMY CEMVP (US);
DeBates, TJ (DNR); Stiras, Joel K (DNR); Levitt, Jim (DNR); Stauffer, Kevin W (DNR); Dieterman, Daniel M
(DNR); Parris, Leslie (DNR); Castellane, Nicholas J CIV (US); Hendrickson, Jon S CIV USARMY CEMVP (US);
Kough, Trevor V CIV USARMY CEMVP (US)

Cc: Peck, Melissa (EQB)

Subject: [Non-DoD Source] RE: ACOE Lock and Dam 2 Follow-up: RGU Status

Date: Thursday, March 1, 2018 12:36:00 PM

Attachments: image001.png
imaae002.png
image003.png
imaae004.png

Kate:

Dakota County concurs that the DNR is the RGU for the proposed Lock and Dam 2 embankment project. We would
like an opportunity to comment on the project whether or not an EAW is required. Please keep us informed as the
project moves forward.

Thank you.

Dee McDaniels, Water Resources Specialist

Dakota County Environmental Resources Dept.

14955 Galaxie Avenue

Apple Valley MN 55124

dee.mcdaniels@co.dakota.mn.us <mailto:dee.mcdaniels@co.dakota.mn.us>

Phn: 952.891.7024 ~ Fax: 952.891.7031

From: Fairman, Kate (DNR) [mailto:kate.fairman(@state.mn.us|
Sent: Tuesday, February 27, 2018 2:38 PM

To: Doneen, Randall (DNR); Horton, Becky (DNR); Skancke, Jennie (DNR); Brist, Jim (MPCA); Schnick, Emily
(MPCA); Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (US); Novak, Thomas CIV USARMY CEMVP (US);
DeBates, TJ (DNR); Stiras, Joel K (DNR); Levitt, Jim (DNR); Stauffer, Kevin W (DNR); Dieterman, Daniel M
(DNR); Parris, Leslie (DNR); Castellane, Nicholas J CIV (US); Hendrickson, Jon S CIV USARMY CEMVP (US);
Kough, Trevor V CIV USARMY CEMVP (US); McDaniels, Dee

Cc: Peck, Melissa (EQB)

Subject: ACOE Lock and Dam 2 Follow-up: RGU Status

Hello All,

As a follow-up from last week’s meeting, I contacted EQB regarding the conceptual project and the question of
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whether DNR or Dakota County would be assigned to be the Responsible Governmental Unit (RGU) for the Lock
and Dam 2 embankment project.

As you may recall, the project as currently conceptualized is likely to exceed the mandatory category threshold
requiring an EAW under Minnesota Rules 4410.4300 Subpart 27A. Wetlands and Public Waters, which identifies
the local government unit as the RGU. However, the project also meets the definition of a “phased action” as
defined by Minnesota Rules 4410.0200 Subpart 60 in relation to the ACOE’s Lower Pool 2 Boulanger Bend Project
(for which the EAW was completed in 2017), and the Dredge Material Management Plan Project (for which the
EAW process is currently ongoing). DNR has been acting as the RGU for these phased actions.

Because there were two different RGUs that could be identified for the Lock and Dam 2, I contacted Melissa Peck at
the Environmental Quality Board (EQB) for their interpretation. Upon consideration, EQB staff provided the
interpretation that because there was an existing project for which this new project would be considered a “phase,”
the existing RGU would maintain this status for the Lock and Dam 2 project. This means that DNR is the RGU for
the proposed Lock and Dam 2 embankment project at this point.

**]t should be noted, however, that if at some point in time the project no longer meets the definition of a “phased
action,” the RGU status may need to be reconsidered. For example, if the project is put on hold for an extensive
amount of time, such as several years beyond the completion of the DMMP, it may not meet the component of the
“phased action” definition which states, “B. are substantially certain to be undertaken sequentially over a limited
period of time.”

Please let me know if there are any questions about the resolution of this question.

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

<Blockedhttps://www.facebook.com/MinnesotaDNR> <Blockedhttps://twitter.com/mndnr>
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Note: This email and its attachments may contain information protected by state or federal law or that may not
otherwise be disclosed. If you received this in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete this email and
its attachments from all devices.



From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)

To: Skancke, Jennie (DNR); Novak, Thomas CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)

Cc: Castellane, Nicholas J CIV (US)

Subject: RE: [Non-DoD Source] RE: LD 2 Protective Island - Sediment Sampling Requirements (UNCLASSIFIED)
Date: Wednesday, November 13, 2019 9:50:00 AM

Attachments: ATR 11X17.pdf

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
Jennie,

Attached is the current 95% plan set for the project. As I mentioned on the phone, I'm hoping to submit the first
review of the EAW this week. I'm thinking we can work on the required permits so that they are ready by the time
the EAW is finalized.

Thanks,

Trevor

From: Skancke, Jennie (DNR) [mailto:jennie.skancke@state.mn.us]
Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2019 9:10 AM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>; Novak, Thomas
CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <tom.novak@usace.army.mil>
Subject: [Non-DoD Source] RE: LD 2 Protective Island - Sediment Sampling Requirements (UNCLASSIFIED)

Hi Tom and Trevor, is it possible to get an update on this project, when it will come to my desk for permitting and
current plan set? Meeting to get our new Regional Manager up to speed.

Thanks,

Jennie

Jennie Skancke

South and West Metro Area Hydrologist | Ecological and Water Resources Minnesota Department of Natural
Resources

1200 Warner Rd

St. Paul, MN, 55106

Phone: 651-259-5790

Email: Jennie.Skancke@state.mn.us

mndnr.gov

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>

Sent: Thursday, September 5, 2019 2:52 PM

To: Brist, Jim (MPCA) <jim.brist@state.mn.us>; Skancke, Jennie (DNR) <jennie.skancke@state.mn.us>

Cc: Fairman, Kate (DNR) <kate.fairman@state.mn.us>; Schnick, Emily (MPCA) <emily.schnick@state.mn.us>
Subject: LD 2 Protective Island - Sediment Sampling Requirements (UNCLASSIFIED)

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
Good afternoon,

I know I've spoken with most of you on this subject, but I wanted to make sure I've covered everything. Within the
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ACCESS CHANNEL DREDGING LIMITS AS INDICATED ON PLAN SHEETS. SECTION CUT W/ SECTION CUT W/
CHANNEL GENTERLINE MAY BE ADJUSTED # 50' FROM ALIGNMENT SHOWN VIEW SHOWN ON w VIEW SHOWN ON
GEOTECHNICAL DRAWINGS WITH CONTRACTING OFFICER APPROVAL. SAME DRAWING ANOTHER DRAWING
B-101 BORING LOCATIONS LD2PI_B-001---.dgn ﬁi‘x‘mﬁh \BVE%E%TE%)EPTH = EL. 680.10
B-301 | DRAFT BORINGS LOGS: 17-1M TO 17-6M LD2PI_B-301-.dgn MAXIMUM SIDE SLOPES = 1V:1.5H
LOWEST CONTROL POOL ELEVATION IS 686.10.
B-302 DRAFT BORINGS LOGS: 17-7M TO 18-13M LD2PI_B-302---.dgn
HYDRAULIC DREDGING PIPELINE ROUTES SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH THE
CONTRACTING OFFICER.
CIVIL/SITE DRAWINGS LOCK AND DAM 2 RIVER CHAMBER UPPER GUIDEWALL IS AVAILABLE FOR DETAIL SYMBOL W/ DETAIL SYMBOL W/
CONTRACTOR USE AS A CONSTRUCTION STAGING AREA. VIEW SHOWN ON VIEW SHOWN ON
C-001 | GENERAL PLAN LD2PI_C-001—.dgn SAME DRAWING ANOTHER DRAWING
C-101 CIVIL SITE PLAN LD2PI_C-101---.dgn =
3
C-102 | STAGING AREA AND LIMITS LD2PI_C-102—.dgn ABBREVIATIONS E
C-201 PROFILES: "L" ISLAND AND "WB" WETLAND BERM LD2PI_C-201---.dgn §
BOT. BOTTOM @
C-301 TYPICAL SECTIONS: ISLAND, EMERGENT WETLAND BERM, RIPRAP TIP PROTECTION, AND DIMENSION TABLE LD2PI_C-301---.dgn CONC. CONCRETE o
DIA. DIAMETER
C-302 TYPICAL SECTIONS: OVER WINTERING FISH HABITAT, TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION PAD LD2PI_C-302---.dgn I\E/II;\x I%II:E)QI/I\A/IUI\(A)N «
. ['4
C-501 GROIN DETAIL AND TEMPORARY LEADING EDGE OF ISLAND PRELOAD MOUND TYPICAL SECTION LD2PI_C-501---.dgn g'g gwlc’\AELlJ\l'\'f'ER %J
C-601 CONTROL LINE AND COORDINATE TABLES LD2PI_C-601---.dgn ??; ?y;;gﬁﬁ \
CN101 | ACCESS DREDGING PATH LD2PI_CN101---.dgn UN.O. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE [ )
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DESCRIPTION
NGS PID PP0505
NGS PID DL6763
BRASS CAP UNDER 24" MANHOLE COVER, NEAR CENTERLINE OF ACCESS ROAD,
ABOUT IN LINE WITH LOWER MITER GATES OF LOCK CHAMBER.
BRASS CAP UNDER 24" MANHOLE COVER, NEAR CENTERLINE OF ACCESS ROAD,
IN LINE WITH MONITORING POINTS ON DOWNSTREAM SIDE OF DAM PIERS.

EAGLE NEST

ELEVATION
872.16
804.94
693.07
691.21

JAAIY I1ddissISSIN

EASTING
2920027.18
2917462.56
2918401.83
2918537.77

NORTHING
975224.33
963732.63
971415.27
971234.69

GENERAL LOCATION MAP AND CONTROL POINT LOCATIONS

SCALE: 1"=500"

CONTROL POINTS
NAME
8205C
19105
MON ¢
MON E
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1 | 2 3 5 6 8 9 10
17-1M 17-2M
13-14 JUN 17 13-14 JUN 17
@ foowe ) woa e fpoweuoe GENERAL BORING LEGEND
— . . L | . US Army Corps
W.S. 686.8 ~___  0'TO0ZDECK W.S.686.8 ~___  0'TO0.ZDECK 84-1M YEAR OF BORING-BORING NUMBER, BORING TYPE of Engineers®
0.2'TO 1.5' AR 0.2 TO 1.5' AIR ( EG: M=MACHINE, A=AUGER, TP=TEST PIT, P=PIEZOMETER ). >
© G.S.682.3
8 a0 G.5.6805 1.5 TO 7.8' WATER 2 sl O 1.5'TO 6' WATER TMAY 1984 DATE OF BORING w
L 2 ssol
2 U e F’E'LDTYSS’?IE%QE Svfﬁg s E ' 8
, AND PLANT FIBERS, DARK GRAY = ) oH —— 670195 CH SILTY FAT CLAY, VERY SOET T0 00ZE W.S. 1026.7 WATER SURFACE ELEVATION ON DAY OF BORING
LIKE, SATU OCC. PEATY SEAMS,
P ;?N.{E F?;%}E%IS&)fgg?é?g%’é%?&?é’éﬁs%’“D SHELLS AND PLANT FIBERS DARK GRAY G.S. 1020.2 GROUND SURFACE ELEVATION AT BORING
6704 o R SATRATED, SOUECROMICS R UPPRR T oo 6701 GW|  WELL GRADED GRAVELS, GRAVEL - SAND MIXTURE, LITTLE OR NO FINES
1 .
6668 | | " s F 5o 24.ésp) POORLY GRADED SAND, SAND FINE TO GP POORLY GRADED GRAVELS, LITTLE OR NO FINES
S MEDIUM. MEDIM DENSE, SATURATED, SCATTERED GM|  SILTY GRAVELS, GRAVEL - SAND - SILT MIXTURES
MO o 6 OBTAINED FROM FLOATING PLANT GC CLAYEY GRAVELS, GRAVEL - SAND - CLAY MIXTURES
NOTES: : ——
1. BORING OBTAINED FROM FLOATING PLANT 2. BS.LLEL&AE'LLL!?:,EBSVE'S%QL'E‘)%“ PIPE CASING TO EL. 675.3, BENTONITE SwW WELL GRADED SANDS, GRAVELLY SANDS, LITTLE OR NO FINES
2. ES}IED%TSAE%LB%E%\\;VWTH 4-INCH PIPE CASING TO EL. 674.8, BENTONITE DRILLING 5 RN T D O b HOLE TO COLLAPSE sp POORLY GRADED SANDS, GRAVELLY SANDS, LITTLE OR NO FINES
3. PULLED CASING AND ALLOWED HOLE TO COLLPASE 4. ENVIRONMENTAL SAMPLE OBTAINED IN OFFSET HOLE
4. ENVIRONMENTAL SAMPLE OBTAINED IN OFFSET HOLE 5. ELEVATION DETERMINED FROM POOL 2 GAGE SM SILTY SANDS, SAND - SILT MIXTURES
5. ELEVATION DETERMINED FROM POOL 2 GAGE 50 CLAYEY SANDS. SAND - CLAY MIXTURES
ML INORGANIC SILTS, LIQUID LIMIT LESS THAN 50
MH|  INORGANIC SILTS, LIQUID LIMIT GREATER THAN 50 .
cL INORGANIC CLAYS, LOW TO MEDIUM PLASTICITY, LIQUID LIMIT LESS THAN 50 E
CH INORGANIC CLAYS, HIGH PLASTICITY, LIQUID LIMIT GREATER THAN 50 §
oL ORGANIC SILTS OR CLAYS, LOW PLASTICITY, LIQUID LIMIT LESS THAN 50 8
OH|  ORGANIC SILTS OR CLAYS, MEDIUM TO HIGH PLASTICITY, LIQUID LIMIT GREATER THAN 50 .
['4
<
17-3M 17-4M | PT|  PEAT EJ
13 JUN 17 14JUN 17 Sty BORDERLINE MATERIAL \
SET [)170 me w BL SET D170 e L BL ' N
SE&|  STRATIFIED MATERIAL
_ . . [ . . ] ..
W.S.686.6 [ 0'T0 0.2’ DECK W.S. 686.8 —__ ——0'TOO0.2’DECK 1 |ﬂ LOCATION AND SAMPLE NUMBER FOR UNDISTURBED SAMPLE z S |
G.S.6823 . . 2'TO1.5 w2 2
G65.6823 | |5 0.2'TO1.5'AIR . 0.2'TO 1.5' AIR X NO RECOVERY g E mg ;
I I ] \1 STOATWATER 8 eaol g o 1S TOT WATER , W.L.726.7 WATER LEVEL ON DATE OF BORING L 081F 3| _
E ! CH 4.1'TO 4. 5(53%) POORLY GRADED SAND, SAND FINE TO ‘Z( L 7' TO 12 CH) SILTY FAT CLAY, VERY SOFT TO OOZE 6 8 & 8 2 ’3
ES MEDIUM, LOOSE, SATURATED, SHELL FRAGMENTS, HRE ATy GRAYD TOWET, SOME ORGANICS, 700.1 ELEVATION AT BOTTOM OF BORING <
sP T rme e u g
2 45 T0 15_'§CH SILTY FAT CLAY, MEDIUM STIFF TO VERY ° [S— (238.56) ELEVATION IN METERS =3
SOFT WET, ORGANIC RICH WITH STICKS, SHELLS, AND 1 sP . BIZ 5
2ol ) WOOD, OCC. SAND SEAMS, BLACKISH GRAY TO DARK ol - >12'TQ 22' E(SP) POORLY 'GRADED SAND, LOOSE, _ 5 B P (TS
670~ GRA 670 i - SATURATED, GRAY o I - T =
6 15' TO 17.8' (CH) CH, STIFF, WET, FORMS SLICKENSIDES 3 666.3 8 E o % B b= u,_J 5_
WHEN SHEARED, GRAY T 5“5“‘65'53'
4 6631 17.8' TO 25' (SP) POORLY GRADED SAND, SAND FINE TO 5 3|3 ol &|3@ S|u
D — MEDIUM, LOOSE, SATURATED, THIN CLAY STRINGERS P o P =
NOTES: 24.5-25'GRAY TO DARK GRAY NOTES:
1. BORING OBTAINED FROM FLOATING PLANT 1. BORING OBTAINED FROM FLOATING PLANT
2. HOLE STABILIZED WITH 4-INCH PIPE CASING TO EL. 679.1, BENTONITE 2. HOLE STABILIZED WITH 4-INCH PIPE CASING TO EL. 673.3, BENTONITE
DRILLING FLUID USED BELOW DRILLING FLUID USED BELOW »
3. PULLED CASING AND ALLOWED HOLE TO COLLAPSE 3. PULLED CASING AND ALLOWED HOLE TO COLLAPSE 14
4. ENVIRONMENTAL SAMPLE OBTAINED IN OFFSET HOLE 4. ELEVATION DETERMINED FROM POOL 2 GAGE ]
5. ELEVATION DETERMINED FROM POOL 2 GAGE z o
L]
.. W=
= (<37
3 955
o [T=
GENERAL BORING NOTES | LEE
S |
1. GENERAL: THE UNIFIED SOIL CLASSIFICATION SYSTEM IS USED TO IDENTIFY BASIC SOIL TYPE. 2 3 |ll=
THE LEGEND REPRESENTS ONLY THE BASIC SOILS. TO COMPLETE THE CLASSIFICATION, E =3||¢
PERTINENT INFORMATION IS ADDED TO THE RIGHT OF THE BORING STAFF. NOTES PERTAINING & %8S
TO A SPECIFIC BORING ARE SHOWN BELOW THE BORING STAFF. N 0%
¥ O |\ ——
17-5M 17-6M 2. MOISTURE CONTENT: THE NATURAL MOISTURE CONTENT IN PERCENT OF DRY WEIGHT (MC) IS P I CE—
14 JUN 17 15 JUN 17 SHOWN TO THE LEFT OF THE BORING STAFF. = Ui
SPT Dip  MC TR 'R SPT Dip  mc [T E % e
- - ! i 3. BLOW COUNT (SPT): BLOW COUNTS ARE SHOWN TO THE LEFT OF THE BORING STAFF AND, EXCEPT £ N
0'T0 0.2' DECK AS NOTED, ARE THE NUMBER OF BLOWS NECESSARY TO DRIVE THE SAMPLER USED ADISTANCE £ T
WS 6868 [ | 0'T00.2' DECK ws.6868 [ 02 TO15AR OF 12-INCHES. STANDARD BLOW COUNTS ARE FOR A STANDARD PENETRATION TEST (SPT)USING @ _5Q
G5.6853 1.5'TO 3' WATER A 1-3/8 X 2-INCH SAMPLER, 140 LB. HAMMER, AND A 30-INCH DROP. FOR Eayelna | =
0.2' TO 1.5' AIR 5 SP-SM 3'TO 8.1' (SP-SM POORLY GRADED SAND WITH SILT, NON-STANDARD BLOW COUNTS SAMPLER SIZE, HAMMER WEIGHT, AND HEIGHT OF DROP ARE AS <Zt S .B <
© G.5.6813 . . = SAND FINE, LOOSE, SATURATED, SOME ORGANICS, SHOWN. =3ay [}
3 680 g - e s 1 5 TO 7 WATER , , 680l 7 §P—§M — CC. CLAY' SEAMS BLACKISH GRAY TO BROWN E g 8 = Yo ns
g 2 . oA sy FAT CLAY, VERY SOFT T0 00ZE g i cH ‘&ETT%%CH %EUEFSE&@%ESYR?OGFFUYO SOFT, 4. ATTERBERG LIMITS: LIQUID LIMIT (LL) AND PLASTIC LIMIT (PL) ARE SHOWN TO THERIGHT OF THE o 2= [| 5 § vz 8¢
LIKE, WET ATURATED, MEALY, SOME ORGANICS, > SM \ BORING STAFF. Q<L s 9 [ g g o
. DARK BLACKISH GRAY TO DARK GRAY % ; 10'TO 12.3' (SM) SILTY SAND, SAND FINE, LOOSE, ©z=20 8 & 3 2 8 .9
— o SATURATED, TRACE ORGANICS, DARK GRAY 5. D 10 SIZE: THE GRAIN SIZE IN MILLIMETERS OF WHICH 10% OF THE SAMPLE IS FINER IS SHOWN TO 28%p z=
. . 12.3' TO 21.2' (CH) SILTY FAT CLAY, VERY SOFT, WET TO THE LEFT OF THE BORING STAFF. o s39% N
670 -4 s %‘é)?ngF%éE(SLP SQS%;YTSEQTDEE[? ?&&SSQ‘&WCES 870 S “SATURATED; e ORGANICS; SM SEAM FROM-19.4' TO - 4 g= Qr~
o 6663 DARK GRAY TO GRAY e b 2. 6. RQD: ROCK QUALITY DESIGNATION (RQD) IS SHOWN TO THE LEFT OF THE PERCENT RECOVERY =z 2
- . COLUMN. RQD IS THE PERCENT RECOVERY CONSISTING OF UNBROKEN PIECES LONGER THAN 8 g
’ — 2R LN PEDSAND SR +INGHES 2|
3 ) s <
#os0s L7 DARKGRAY 7. % RECOVERY: PERCENT CORE RECOVERY IS SHOWN TO THE LEFT OF THE BORING STAFF. 2
: PERCENT RECOVERY IS LENGTH OF CORE RECOVERED/LENGTH OF CORE CUT X 100. UNLESS o
1. BORING OBTAINED FROM FLOATING PLANT L
2. HOLE STABILIZED WITH 4-INCH PIPE CASING TO EL. 678.3, BENTONITE SPECIFIED OTHERWISE, ALL CORE IS 4-INCH DIAMETER. >
DRILLING FLUID USED BELOW NOTES:
3. PULLED CASING AND ALLOWED HOLE TO COLLAPSE 1. BORING OBTAINED FROM FLOATING PLANT 8. THE BORINGS SHOW SUMMARIES OF INFORMATION RECORDED ON THE ORIGINAL FIELD LOGS. % -—
4. ELEVATION DETERMINED FROM POOL 2 GAGE 2. HOLE S'E;ABILIZEDgNITH 4—IgCH PIPE CASING TO EL. 678.3, BENTONITE THESE LOGS ARE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION BY REQUEST TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER. :Z p—\
DRILLING FLUID USED BELOW
3. PULLED CASING AND ALLOWED HOLE TO COLLAPSE e SHEET ID
4. ELEVATION DETERMINED FROM POOL 2 GAGE (Z) m
L85
>03
(o) -
g B-301
wzo
N—
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US Army Corps
17-TM 17-8M 18-09M of Engineers®
N—
15 JUN 17 15 JUN 17 06 AUG 18
SPT Do Mc [TR - SPT Dip  mc [T S SPT Do mc u B (
W.S. 686.8 0'T0 0.2 DECK W.S. 686.8 ——_ 0'TO02DECK W.S.686.2 [~ 0'T0 0.2' DECK °
0.2'T0 1.5' AR 0.2TO1.5°AIR 0.2 T0 1.5' AR
L i 5TO7.2WATER 3 1.5 TO 6.2 WATER 65 6815 - :
2 G.S. 681.1 S G.5.6816 /6 .2' TO 8.7' (CH/CL) FAT CLAY, SILTY, VERY SOFT, WET ] N 1.5'TO 6.2 WATER
3 2SS = R e 10 SATURATED, WITH ORGANICS, SM SEAM FROM 8680  ° s || s ~15'TO 6.2 WATER
2t (PP 7.2, T012.7' (CH) FAT CLAY, SILTY, VERY SOFT, E 8637, DARK GRAY 3 °
P4 CL-ML 3 0 =z
SATURATED TO MOIST, OOZE LIKE, SOME ORGANICS, 8.7'TO 12.3' (CL-ML) LEAN CLAY WITH SAND, SILTY, CH —— e .
CREENISH GRAY 10 DARK GRAY [sPsc| VERY SOFT, SATURATED, WITH SAND, GRAY 85 2 3 géFTT"Tésg‘o}:C”bVS'LTY 5oL Eh@ SonE
N M ———12.7' TO 15' (SM) SILTY SAND, SAND FINE, LOOSE, 2 CH 12.3' TO 13.4' (SP-SC) POORLY GRADED SAND WITH 2 SHELLS AND QRGANICS, DARK GRAY
5 sP SATURATED, OCC. SHELL FRAGMENTS, DARK GRAY 8 P CLAY, SAND FINE, VERY LOOSE, SATURATED, GRAY
= = . . 670~ ... e . 3 -
BTQ g [T - BT Q - ~13.4' TO-14.8" (CH) FAT CLAY; SILTY; SOF T, WET; SOME---------------- oo 16.4'TO 18.3' (SM-SC)- SILTY-CLAYEY-
N sP 23502\-332!52' ﬁ%@splzogi%g/sTﬁéDDE?NST/E%%E%%'\E%%’\F‘QE&O o 6683 | SP | gﬁ/}w FIBER! AI\)ID THIN SAND SEAMS OR PARTINGS, ’ a’AND SAND éINE ;o rﬁgal%/\l‘ DLgr-?ESEL
Lo SIZES, TRACE CROANICS, GRAY 14.8' TO 20' (SP) POORLY GRADED SAND, SAND FINE P2 FRAGMENTS R
TO COARSE, LOOSE, SATURATED, SHELLS AND m%—fs?&zg/-\sg-gm P%OQE\BI%EAEL’S&S@ND
NOTES: FRAGMENTS, GRAY WET, SOME SHELL FRAGMENTS, SANDY CLAY
NOTES: 1. BORING OBTAINED FROM FLOATING PLANT . SEAW AT 21.0 TO 21.2, GRAY TO DARK GRAY
1. BORING OBTAINED FROM FLOATING PLANT 2. HOLE STABII_LUIIZDEBéI:/EI‘DH—ééLIgsvH PIPE CASING TO EL. 678.3, BENTONITE BORING OBTAINED FROM A FLOATING PLANT
2. HOLE STABILIZED WITH 4-INCH PIPE CASING TO EL. 675.3, BENTONITE 5 DG D D O o HOLE TO COLLAPSE HOLE STABILIZED WITH 4-INCH PIPE CASINGTO EL. 669.7, BENTONITE DRILLING MUD USED BELOW EL. 669.7
DRILLING FLUID USED BELOW : PULLED CASING AND ALLOWED HOLE TO COLLAPSE
3. PULLED CASING AND ALLOWED HOLE TO COLLAPSE 4. ELEVATION DETERMINED FROM POOL 2 GAGE ELEVATION DETERMINED FROM POOL 2 GAGE .
4. ELEVATION DETERMINED FROM POOL 2 GAGE 8|
&
i
O
(%]
w
=]
X
o
<
J
\
' )
18-10M 18-11M 18-12M z 2 |5
06 AUG 18 07 AUG 18 08 AUG 18 = E s |2
SPT Do Mc [NR - SPT Do Mc e SPT Pig  Mc e o Ealg =
3 1393 |2 | 9
W.S. 686.2 [ 0'T0 0.2 DECK W.S. 686.0 [ 0'T0 0.2’ DECK W.S. 686.1 [ 0'T0 0.2’ DECK — A
w <)
0.2'TO 1.5' AIR 0.2'TO 1.5'AIR 0.2'TO 1.5' AIR =9
G.S. 682.1 G.S.681.6 G.S.682.2 5 E ;
oH . . . . 5TO54' . s
. VCLVNJ.S,TQS.VG WATER goosor el L 15 TO59 WATER g s gL gg g 15 TO 5.4 WATER s ks gﬁ%?ﬂ‘é
2 §.8.T0 &' (GH SILTY FAT CLAY WITH SAND, > o 5910 131 (CH) SILTY FAT CLAY, VERY SOFT, > 2 ) lo £|o &—
a SAND Y SOFT, WET, SPONGY, K RICH OOZE LIKE, SOME SHELL £ >z 8 <lE S
Z SHEDLY FRAGMENTS, DARK GRAY' PRAGRIENTS AND WOOD BLACK TO GRAY o 0LISEISRIS g
z 2 1 CHICL\ 0 [T 54 TOATE (CH)SILTY FAT CLAY. VERY SOFT TO 7 ®|3 w2 <|D =Y
87010 (CL) SILTY LEAN CLAY, SAND MEDIUM. o0 o 13:T0 18 (CHICL) SILTY CLAY, VERY SOFT, oo Y LT ATE1';"§E38'M/}EC§§§¢STXND SHELL o H|a KB O 2o
70| oveeeeeenn e g VERY e LTS BT g gy
h off ) . 63\'\ FRAGMENTS Oons AR 5 4:@] " 68" ""22" "~ FRAGMENTS, DARK GRAY TO BLACK
10" TO 26.2' (CH) SILTY FAT CLAY, VERY SOFT o 15' TO 18" (CL) LEAN CLAY, SOFT, WET, SOME T . '
. w2 TOMEOMSTIE WET, SOME SHELL K0P ANG SHELL FRAGMENTS, DARK GRAY 17.8/TO 21.8'(CH) FAT GLAY, SOFT TO VERY SOFT, P
FRAGMENTS AND ROOTS, SAMDY CLAY SEAMS 7 e625 SPoM " ee2s sp EVFEJG“SA%QTTTSEG ORGANICS, LENS OF SILT, SHELL i
AT 13.2TO 13.4 AND 13.7 TO 14.2, DARK GRAY _s 18' TO 22.8' g;H) SILTY FAT CLAY, SOFT, WET, - z
BB0 [ e QOZE LIKE, SOME PLANT FIBERS\GRAYTO ' 218170 25" (SP) POORLY GRADED SAND, SAND' 25 E
7 6582 26.2' TO 27.8' (SP-SC) POORLY GRADED SAND : 255
WITH CLAY, SAND MEDIUM, LOOSE, WET, 22.8'TO 25' ésp SM) POORLY GRADED SAND FINE TO MEDIUM, MEDIUM DENSE, WET, LIGHT . u U
SOME SHELL FRAGMENTS, GRAY WITH SILT, SAND MEDIUM, LOOSE, WET, DARK NOTES: = ooz
o Qo2
) , 1. BORING OBTAINED FROM FLOATING PLANT £3=
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1 | 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10
ge2 5 GENERAL NOTES:

—_—
1. SEE TABLE 1, SHEET C-301 FOR FEATURE DIMENSIONS
A AND ELEVATIONS

2. SEE SHEET C-201 FOR ISLAND "L" CENTERLINE AND EMERGENT WETLAND
BERM "WB" PROFILE US Army Corps

i ®
3. SEE SHEET CN101 FOR ACCESS DREDGING LIMITS AND TYPICAL SECTION. of Engineers

OPTIONAL CONTRUCTION PAD

4. EXCAVATE OVER WINTERING FISH HABITAT DREDGE AREA TO THE FULL 7
DEPTH INDICATED. WHERE THERE IS A DEPTH TRANSITION, USE A CUT
SLOPE OF 1V:4H.

DATE

5. ACCESS ROUTE TO THE OVER WINTERING FISH HABITAT MAY BE DREDGED
TO THE DEPTH NECESSARY FOR ACCESS. ROUTES WITHIN DESIGN FOOTPRINT
WILL BE BACKFILLED TO DESIGN DEPTH AT COMPLETION OF WORK.

6. OVER WINTERING FISH HABITAT DREDGE MATERIAL MEETING THE
180+ REQUIREMENTS OF "FINE MATERIAL" SHALL BE USED AS EMERGENT WETLAND
FILL AS NOTED ON THE PLAN SHEETS.

TOE OF GRANULAR FILL 7. MINOR ADJUSTMENTS TO DREDGE LAYOUT MAY BE ALLOWED TO INSURE
EXCAVATION OF SUFFICIENT QUANTITIES OF MATERIAL MEETING THE
REQUIREMENTS OF "FINE MATERIAL". ADJUSTMENTS TO LAYOUT SHALL BE
COORDINATED AND APPORIVED BY THE CONTRACTING OFFICER.

8. SEE SHEET C-501 FOR TEMPORARY LEADING EDGE OF ISLAND
TOP OF PROTECTIVE ISLAND SLOPE PRELOAD MOUND DIMENSIONS AND ELEVATIONS.

"L" LINE

o EDGE OF FINES BEDDING LAYER
1 "L"LINE

EMERGENT WETLAND

GROIN IDENTIFICATION
SEE ISLAND GROIN
COORDINATES

BEGIN GROINS TABLE.

STA. L0O+00

DESCRIPTION

V
\__MARK

EMERGENT WETLAND
"WB" CONTROL LINE

\
J

SEE PROFILE SHEET C-201
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SSSSss
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CONSTRUCT WITHIN +1'
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~ 00+0L 8§, — A

\

DESIGNED BY:
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DRAWN BY:

T. BURRIER
CHECKED BY:
SUBMITTED BY:

SIZE:

\ 4
00\1 LaM

TIONAI
CONSTRUCTION PAD

OVERWINTERING FISH HABITAT

k SEE PROFILE
] SHEETC-201

HABITAT DREDGE
AREA 1 - EL. 680.1

TEMPORARY LEADING EDGE
OF ISLAND PRELOAD MOUND (TYP.)

U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS
ST. PAUL DISTRICT
ST. PAUL, MINNESOTA

HABITAT DREDGE
AREA 2 - EL. 678.1

|
|
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|
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MN SPCS. SOUTH ZONE-U.S. SURVEY FT.

COMBINED FACTOR (CF): 0.999903633
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CIVIL SITE PLAN
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1 2 3 4 | 5 6 | 7 8 | 9 10
NOTES:
700 q i 700
L EL 636,101 “ ] TABLE 1: ISLAND DIMENSIONS 1. LOW CONTROL POOL EL IS 686.10
3 \ 1 2. PLANTINGS AND SEEDING REQUIRED IN FINE FILL AREAS ONLY.
z 3 z ISLAND TOP
o | 1 o STATIONING Al B c p | | F | 'SLANDTOP BERM FINE FILL 3. EMERGENT WETLAND FILL SHALL CONSIST OF ACCESS DREDGE MATERIAL, US Army Corps
= = (ISLAND TOP WIDTH) ELEVATION | ELEVATION | 1 ickNESS OVERWINTER FISH HABITAT DREDGE MATERIAL, OR OTHER MATERIAL AS £ Engi ®
< 680 EXISTING GRADE 680 < APPROVED BY THE CONTRACTING OFFICER. LIMITS SHOWN ON THE PLANS of Engineers
o | ] o ARE MAXIMUM LIMITS (& 50 FT). FINAL WETLANDS LIMITS MAY VARY FROM
= WETLAND BERM EMERGENT WETLAND, o L 0+00 TO L 13+50 40 | 12 50 12| 400 | 154'|  692.10 688.10 24" SHOWN WITH APPROVAL OF THE CONTRACTING OFFICER. ,
w 3 GRANULAR FILL FIL £1'EL. 685.6 1 w
L ] 1445070 L 25+50 4. EMERGENT WETLAND ELEVATION SHALL VARY FROM EL 684.60 TO 686.60. w
40 | € 50' 6 | 40 [ 142  690.10 688.10 18" CONSTRUCT WETLAND SO THAT APPROXIMATELY 50% OF AREA VARIES IN <
I ] ELEVATION FROM EL 684.60 TO 685.60, AND 50% VARIES IN ELEVATION FROM a
660 TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR - 660 L 26+50 TO L 44+25 w0 | o 50 o | 40 | 90 688.10 688.10 120 EL 685.60 TO 686.60. POST CONSTRUCTION SURVEY SHALL CONFIRM
AVERAGE EL 685.60 WITH + .25 FT TOLERANCE FROM AVERAGE EL. REWORK
-100 80 60 40 20 0 20 40 60 80 100 WILL BE REQUIRED IF EL. IS NOT WITHIN TOLERANCE.
5. BEFORE MATERIAL IS PLACED IN EMERGENT WETLANDS A COMBINATION OF
WETLAND BERM TYPICAL SECTION MUST BE IN PLACE FOR MATERIAL CONTAINMENT.
2 SCALE. 1"220° S >0 g 6. AFTER COMPLETION OF EMERGENT WETLAND, 50 FT BREACHES SPACED 200
: e —— FT ON CENTER SHALL BE CUT THROUGH THE EMERGENT WETLAND BERM TO
CURRENT POOL LEVEL TO PROMOTE PASSAGE OF WATER BETWEEN
WETLAND AND RIVER. COORDINATE LOCATION AND NUMBER OF BREACHES
WITH CONTRATING OFFICER.
720 720 SECOND ROW OF WILLOW 2 2
I ] CUTTINGS, WHERE REQUIRED
L ] SHALL BE STAGGERED FROM
§ ] THE FIRST ROW
F 1 B L2 . 1STAGGER
700 700
g | 4 KEY-IN TOP OF ISLAND BERM ] g ‘3\ I [ ! 2
2 7——T—r L EL. 688.10 2 O O O | O=————SECONDROW (WILLOW EVERY 2 3
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 | 9 10
NOTES:

——
1. MAXIMUM CUT DEPTH AS INDICATED ON PLAN SHEETS H

2. MATERIAL EXCAVATED FROM THE OVERWINTERING FISH HABITAT SHALL BE
USED AS FILL FOR THE EMERGENT WETLAND AREA AS INDICATED ON THE

PLAN SHEETS. US Army Corps
H ®
3. LOCATION OF CUTS MAY BE ADJUSTED #50 FT FROM of Engineers
LOCATION SHOWN ON THE PLANS WITH PRIOR APPROVAL
BY THE CONTRACTING OFFICER. ,
4. LOCATION OF CONSTRUCTION PADS MAY BE ADJUSTED AS NEEDED WITH w
PRIOR APPROVAL BY THE CONTRACTING OFFICER. <
5. PAD SHAPE AND HEIGHT MAY VARY WITH A GENERAL MAXIMUM DIMENSION
OF 100' X 200'. PADS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF GRANULAR FILL FROM AN
APPROVED BORROW AREA.
700 700
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690 f o S f 690
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1 2 3 4 7 8 | 9 10
NOTES: )
1. ROCK GROINS SHALL BE PLACED 180 FT ON CENTER ALONG THE END OF THE
ISLAND BERM AS INDICATED ON THE CONTRACT DRAWINGS UNLESS
OTHERWISE INDICATED OR DIRECTED BY THE CONTRACTING OFFICER.
2. EXCAVATION MAY BE REQUIRED DURING PLACEMENT OF GROINS IN AREAS US Army Corps
OF SHALLOW WATER. INSURE ALL GROINS HAVE A MINIMUM THICKNESS OF £ Enai ®
byl of Engineers
3. GROIN ELEVATION TO MATCH ISLAND BERM ELEVATION OF EL 688.10. ,
4. TEMPORARY LEADING EDGE OF ISLAND PRELOAD MOUND TO BE w
CONSTRUCTED AT AN AVERAGE 4.5' ABOVE ISLAND TOP FINE FILL BASE <
ELEVATION. TEMPORARY LEADING EDGE OF ISLAND PRELOAD MOUND MAY a
HAVE A MINIMUM 4' TO MAXIMUM 5' HEIGHT ABOVE ISLAND TOP FINE FILL
BASE ELEVATION.
5. LOWEST CONTROL POOL IS EL. 686.10
6. TEMP. LEADING EDGE OF ISLAND PRELOAD MOUND TO BE CONSTRUCTED
AND IN PLACE OVER 3 DAYS.
6A. DAY 1: TEMP. LEADING EDGE OF ISLAND PRELOAD MOUND TO BE
CONSTRUCTED 4.5' ABOVE THE DESIGN BASE ELEVATION FOR ISLAND TOP
720 720 FINE FILL LAYER. SEE TABLE 2 FOR MOUNDING ELEVATIONS. SEE SHEET
| 1 C-201 FOR TEMP. LEADING EDGE OF ISLAND PRELOAD MOUND PROFILE.
I < 9 1 6B. DAY 2: ALLOW FOR MOUNDED SECTION TO SETTLE AND DEFORM.
| i 6C. DAY 3: REGRADE ISLAND TOP TO FINE FILL DESIGN BASE ELEVATION AND
I ! . 1 PLACE FINE FILL MATERIAL. EXCESS MATERIAL IS TO BE PLACED ALONG
700 ~SLAND CREST 40" ISLAND|BERM 30 " 700 ISLAND SIDES AS FILL FOR ISLAND BERMS. SEE TABLE 1, SHEET C-301 FOR
3 l = 4 KEY-IN 1 Z ISLAND DESIGN DIMENSIONS. SEE SHEET C-201 FOR ISLAND PROFILE.
o ISLAND BER] n o
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< <
4 1 ] 4
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3 EL 688.1 241MIN. 1 ';_I:
B 1 O
(2]
| B i
660 L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L 660 o
0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 ¥
<
)
8 PROFILE: ROCK GROIN l
SCALE: 1"=20' 0 20 40 p ~
T e —
z 2 |
i 8 |Z |2
EEEE
< —
S [Egl |2
W Q9 (B
2 398 5 | &
L2 [ R [S I 4 )
w9
=9
== 9
- alZ g
. L ow g
@l ol (2B g
o )% |o 2|0 &—
2 lz 2l z|E o
. o xS S 2SS
ROCK GROIN TABLE 2: TEMPORARY PRELOAD DIMENSIONS 7 8l5 8|0 %[ S|y
TOE OF ISLAND BERM P [ E ] = | N
(IN FEET UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED) i el ) 2
ISLAND TOP
c TEMP. PRELOAD
STATIONING (ISLAND TOP WIDTH)| MOUNDING ELEVATION| FINERILL BASE 2
g
L 0+00 TO L 13+50 50 694.60 £ .5 690.10 [
258
L 14+50 TO L 25+50 50 693.10+.5 688.60 e 55 z
- o<
o) 25=
L 26+50 TO L 44+25 50 691.50 £ .5 687.10 ¥ [
| 5] g oox
TOP OF ISLAND BERM T 5 - 58S
o z 0
a4 >3 %
< W P
E =>o 3
7 TYPICAL PLAN: ROCK GROIN z 23|
SCALE: 1"=20' 0 20 40' N 0
T — T O | \——
o 3o | ——
I 2=
720 720 = 25 W=
TEMPORARY PRELOAD E % = o
L EMBANKMENT EL. VARIES — =N ol
SEE TABLE 2. (Q T '9 E3)
» 59 24
I MATERIAL DISPLACEMENT ] w ’“8 < g
| - d w =) [a]
Z 700 [~ MATERIAL DISPLACEMENT \ Ci2 | FROM BRELOAD 700 2 So o Z g 5
O FREMPRELOAD N $2492 < wo
= = %}
700 700 = SoPZ ||ux e
L 5 il 1 < 3 1 on¥=s P g Y2 <o
S RN f o | 8328 [[izd, 53
BOTH|SIDES o
P4 I g P4 O ao
[e) %\ o L_lLl 680 \\ SAND FILLED DISPLACEMENT 680 .. x g i % E =
= I 1 = - LOow
2 680 N X 680 = F LACUSTRINE OOZE GLAY i o S29% 52
> > ¥ == o
L ] F ] 33
u \ EXISTING RIPRAP u EXISTING GRADE FIRMER CLAY E pet <Z( o
w I GROUND ] w 3 1 e} X Jx
L 4 o
660 40— L b L ] eeo (_‘) 9 '<—(D
3 ] [
660 L L L L 660 -80 -60 -40 -20 0 20 40 60 80 S oz
S) =3
. = Za5
0 20 40 60 80 TYPICAL DETAIL: & I
10 TEMPORARY LEADING EDGE OF ISLAND PRELOAD MOUND = 0o
9 TYPICAL SECTION: ROCK GROIN SCALE 1220 0 20 20 =
=20 ' - e —
SCALE: 1'=20 0 20 40 E
T e —
a
= SHEET ID
0,8
E&8=
<50
29 C-501
HZm
wzo

%PRODUCTION DATA 1%
%PRODUCTION DATA 2%

%PRODUCTION DATA 3% %PRODUCTION DATA 4% 95'%) REVI EW SET





US Army Corps
of Engineers®

p
i
E
<
o
CONTROL LINE DATA - "L" LINE ISLAND GROIN COORDINATES OWFH EXCAVATION POINTS
POINT DISTANCE | NORTHING | EASTING NORTHING | EASTING POINT NORTHING | EASTING
ID BEARING (FEET) Y) (X) PC PI PT DELTA R L T GROIN (Y) (X) D (Y) (X)
] 97138466 | 291772122 040000 G-1 97145958 | 291773897 HA 97143038 | 2916624.16
N 76°40'16" W 226958 G-2 971501.08 2917563.82 H2 971339.53 2916217.6
146°2347 G3 97154258 | 291738866 H3 97118465 | 2916109.21
L2 972060.59 | 2914868.26 | 22+69.58 27+80.60 " -200 511.02 | 662.35 G4 971584.08 | 2917213.51 H4 970902.36 | 2916143.14
S43°0402"E| 230676 G5 97162557 | 2917038.36 H5 970827.12 | 291642292
L3 970375.38 2916443.45 44+25.00 G-6 971667.07 2916863.21 H6 970903.84 2916701.08
G7 97170857 | 2916688.06 H7 97113547 | 291694762
G3 9715007 | 2916512.91 H8 97139352 | 29168665
G-9 971786.35 | 291633652 HO 970856.79 | 291642284
G-10 97182722 | 291616122 H10 97092505 | 291616942
G-11 971868.72 | 291598607 H11 9711769 | 2916139.8 -
G-12 97191022 | 2915810.92 H12 971312.86 | 291623549 2
G-13 97195169 | 291563588 H13 9713679 | 2916477.3 2
CONTROL LINE DATA - "WB" LINE G-14 971459.7 | 2915340.94 H14 97088862 | 2916538.72 g
i
POINT DISTANCE | NORTHING | EASTING G-15 9713282 | 2915463.86 o
D BEARING (FEET) (Y) (X) PC Pl PT DELTA R L T G-16 971196.7 | 2915586.77
WB-1 971592.3 | 2916844.8 0+00.00 G17 9710652 | 2915709.69 ¥
S 77°00'00" W 674.89 G-18 970933.7 2915832.6 ‘E‘J
WB-2 97140579 | 2916036.94 | 6+74.89 9+37.64 | 75°16'22" | -200 26275 | 154.22 G-19 97080221 | 2915955.52 \
S1°4338"W | 577.15 G20 970670.71 | 291607843 > Z
WB-3 9708289 | 2916019.54 13+60.57 G-21 970539.21 | 2916078.43
G22 970407.71 | 2916201.35 g
zZ |z
z 2 |
E R E
< -
S [Ealg |2
w 03l |2
2 3368 |» | §
5 (368 [2 | 3
CONTROL LINE DATA - "D1" LINE 6
POINT DISTANCE | NORTHING | EASTING e ;
D BEARING (FEET) ) (X) PC PI PT DELTA R L T 5 s @ EY s
D1-1 97324372 | 291724528 0+00.00 o &5 g5 2|8 i
S54°09'40" W| 2300 SEz s = e
D1-2 971897.05 | 2915380.75 23+00.00 E § B
0 —|0 |0 J|d Z|o
1]
o
w
2
grE
CONTROL LINE DATA -"D2" LINE w E i
POINT DISTANCE | NORTHING | EASTING oBE
D BEARING (FEET) (Y) (X) PC PI PT DELTA R L T €33
D22 972696.07 | 2916487.03 0+00.00 &2
S 13°31'11"E 1500 zh,
D2-2 97123764 | 2916837.7 15+00.00 z @
@
S
—
——

COORDINATE SYSTEM (HORIZONTAL CONTROL):
NAD 83 (2011)

MN SPCS. SOUTH ZONE-U.S. SURVEY FT.
COMBINED FACTOR (CF): 0.999903633

LOCK & DAM 2 PROTECTIVE ISLAND
MISSISSIPPI RIVER
LOCK & DAM 2
HASTINGS, MN
CONTROL LINE AND COORDINATE TABLES

SHEET ID

C-601

ELEVATION DATUM (VERTICAL CONTROL):

NAVD 88
GEOID12B

%PRODUCTION DATA 1%
%PRODUCTION DATA 2% %PRODUCTION DATA 3% %PRODUCTION DATA 4% 95% REVI EW SET





1. MAXIMUM CUTE DEPTH EL. 680.10. MAXIMUM CUT WIDTH 80 FT.
2. MAIN CHANNEL BORROW MATERIAL MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF FILL
SHALL BE USED AS EMERGENT WETLAND FILL.
US Army Corps
3. LOCATION OF CUTS MAY BE ADJUSTED # 50 FEET FROM LOCATION SHOWN £ Engi ®
ON THE PLANS WITH PRIOR APPROVAL BY THE CONTRACTING OFFICER. of Engineers
4. ACCESS DREDGING ALLOWED ALL SECTIONS OF ACCESS CHANNELS WITH ,
THE EXCEPTION OF THE EAGLE NEST BUFFER ZONE.
g
[s]
Z
<]
|
o
&
(%]
gl
4
['4
<
3
\,
a N
g |,
z |2 |
700 700 L 1B 12 |o
= e |5 |2
L 1 < [ |12 |-
Z o |[Eglg |2
| | w [CYE |2
=0
O 2 =22z 2 §
= hvj 2 1099 |a i
= | —=L= 1 2 |6 oo |< i
< om0 e T e S EXSTING GRADE 680 =
a I 1V:1.5H 1V:1.5H | 28
8p' . 0|Z g
d H MAX CUT EL. §80.10 1 s s [EEMEY
x|y x|@ [ QE
I 1 (W] Feivi] Pl ol 4
e e I
660 L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L 660 5%5%5&%2‘
-100 -80 60 -40 20 0 20 40 60 80 100 232 aE <8 2N
0 |0 -0 Ol Z|n
BB SCALE: 1'=20' 0 20 20 [
— — ]
Z
o
z60o
w @ m
B3 8 »Z
= 52
o) 25=
£ 533
z . oxx
£
8 & _||z°5
o
g >3 <
I W@ 3
E >0 @
z o |l>
o 23
N 05
E 9 | \—
T ig
z 82
= NK
¢ zP
n 5o
weok || e
2848 |3
=29 [} _
0nOZ ||w, o
Yool m >0 =z
O0n®=|l522s =
oxzo ||Rzz; <
OZ=0 szod &
ok g 5}
=%z
2 aPxiE A
0 w200 %]
0 s39s W
['4 <= Q
E a Q
z o4 <
o} 8
o o
_, -
<<
S}
P
4
w
=
=
=}
N = —
<
a
= SHEET ID
S m
3
A1 DREDGE ACCESS PLAN <20
SCALE: 1" = 200' 0 200° 200 S0 C N 1 O 1
e ——— a<w
Lwzo

%PRODUCTION DATA 1%
%PRODUCTION DATA 2% %PRODUCTION DATA 3% %PRODUCTION DATA 4% 95% REVI EW SET





691

690

689

688

687

686

ELEVATION IN FEET (NAVD 88)

691

[e)]
O
o

689

688

687

ELEVATION IN FEET (NAVD 88)

686

685

2014 2015 2016 2017

Notes:

1. These elevation hydrographs were derived using the last ten years of daily stage data at the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers Lock and Dam 2. MSL 1912 - 0.37FT = NAVD 88 at Lock and Dam 2..

2. These elevation hydrographs are based on the gage data at Lock and Dam 2 (Pool). These elevation hydrographs
represent the period shown, and do not necessarily represent all possible future conditions. Questions may be addressed
to the office of the Corps of Engineers St. Paul, Minnesota.
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Notes:

1. These monthly stage duration curves were derived using the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Lock and Dam 2 pool data for
the period 01 Jan 1981 through 31 Dec 2018. MSL 1912 - 0.37 ft = NAVD 88 at Lock and Dam 2.

2. These stage duration curves are based on the best information available. These stage hydrographs represent the period
1981-2018, and do not necessarily represent all possible future conditions. Questions may be addressed to the office of the
Corps of Engineers St. Paul, Minnesota.
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
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attached file is a map of the current footprint of the Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island and where sediment samples
have been taken. The attachment contains the results of the contaminate screening for three of those samples, which
I labelled environmental samples. Environmental samples were completed early on in the planning process (2017)
and therefore are not in ideal locations based on the current project features. Based on the analysis of the
environmental samples, it appears the sediment within the project area is clean and free of contaminates.

Any material dredged within the project area (i.e., access and habitat dredging), would be placed in-water within the
emergent wetland area depicted on the map. Granular and fine material for the island would come from dredged
material placement sites or dredge cuts within Pool 2. With this project requiring an EAW, I wanted to make sure
that we have an adequate number of environmental samples for placing material into the emergent wetland. If
anyone feels that more environmental samples are necessary, please let me know and I can coordinate with my team.

Thank you,

Trevor Cyphers

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

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)

Cc: Castellane, Nicholas J CIV (US); Metzker, Kathleen (DNR)

Subject: [Non-DoD Source] RE: LD2 Protective Island - EAW Submittal (UNCLASSIFIED)
Date: Friday, November 22, 2019 3:14:54 PM

Thank you Trevor.

I am working on downloading them this afternoon. We will consider today the point of receipt of the data submittal
and the beginning of our 30-day review period. You will be hearing from us regarding comments and information
needs approximately December 23, 2019.

Please contact me or Kathy if you have any questions.
Kate

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>

Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 9:04 AM

To: Fairman, Kate (DNR) <kate.fairman@state.mn.us>

Cc: Castellane, Nicholas J CIV (US) <Nicholas.J.Castellane@usace.army.mil>; Metzker, Kathleen (DNR)
<kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us>

Subject: RE: LD2 Protective Island - EAW Submittal (UNCLASSIFIED)

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
Kate,

I've updated the documents so that they are ADA compliant and sent them to you via our file sharing service (DoD
SAFE).

Thanks,

Trevor

From: Fairman, Kate (DNR) [mailto:kate.fairman(@state.mn.us]
Sent: Tuesday, November 19, 2019 4:49 PM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>

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

I wanted to let you know that we have been able to assign a project manager for the LD2 Protective Island EAW.
Kathy Metzker will be acting as the EAW project manager, so you can contact her directly regarding process
questions, etc. at kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us, or at 651-259-5694.

In addition, I wanted to make you aware of an issue that needs resolution prior to our moving forward with review
of the data submittal. While the DNR in general, and the environmental review unit specifically, has long had a
policy of ensuring all documents that are published to our webpage are ADA compliant for screen-readers (for those
with visual impairments), departmental policy has evolved to include these requirements for documents that are
processed internally as well. This allows staff members who might require an accommodation to work on
documents without necessarily exposing their own medical conditions or disabilities. Although I was able to
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download LD Protective Island EAW documents, all of the documents appear to have some 'errors' in terms of ADA
accessibility. The project won't lose its place in our queue, (i.e. Kathy will continue to be your project manager), but
if you would please resolve the ADA accessibility in the documents and re-send them, we will be able to begin the
review process at that point. Aaron McFarlane has worked on ADA accessibility in EA documents in the past and
may be able to assist here. Let us know if you hit any snags or if you have any concerns.

Thank you for your assistance.
Kate

Kate Fairman

Planning Director | Environmental Review Unit Minnesota Department of Natural Resources
500 Lafayette Road North

Saint Paul, MN 55155

Phone: 651-259-5082

Email: kate.fairman@state.mn.us

mndnr.gov

From: Fairman, Kate (DNR)

Sent: Friday, November 15, 2019 3:39 PM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Cc: Castellane, Nicholas J CIV (US) <Nicholas.J.Castellane@usace.army.mil>

Subject: RE: LD2 Protective Island - EAW Submittal (UNCLASSIFIED)

Hello Trevor,
This email is to acknowledge receipt of the LD2 Protective Island EAW initial data submittal. I will be in contact
with you again next week regarding the assignment of a project manager and next steps.

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
Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2019 3:54 PM

To: Fairman, Kate (DNR) <kate.fairman@state.mn.us>

Cc: Castellane, Nicholas J CIV (US) <Nicholas.J.Castellane@usace.army.mil>

Subject: LD2 Protective Island - EAW Submittal (UNCLASSIFIED)



CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
Kate,

I've sent you the EAW files using our SAFE drop-off application. Let me know if you have any trouble accessing
the documents. Also, Steve Clark said that it may be a while until he is ready to resubmit the Pool 2 DMMP.

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

To: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR)

Cc: Jiwani, Suzanne (DNR); Fairman, Kate (DNR)

Subject: RE: need the HEC-RAS model done for the Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project (UNCLASSIFIED)
Date: Tuesday, December 10, 2019 8:46:00 AM

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
Kathy,

I've forwarded your message to the hydrologist who completed the HEC-RAS model and he said he would submit
the model to you. Please let me know when you receive what you need.

Thanks,

Trevor

From: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR) [mailto:kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us]
Sent: Monday, December 9, 2019 8:52 AM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Cc: Jiwani, Suzanne (DNR) <suzanne.jiwani@state.mn.us>; Fairman, Kate (DNR) <kate.fairman@state.mn.us>
Subject: [Non-DoD Source] need the HEC-RAS model done for the Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project

Hi Trevor,

As you know, I am the project manager for the MN DNR’s completeness review for the Lock and Dam 2 Protective
Island Project in the Upper Mississippi River in Minnesota, near the City of Hastings. The EA references a HEC-
RAS model created to simulate expected changes in flood elevations as a result of the island construction, and
summarizes the results of the model in the EA, but I cannot find the model itself in the submissions that we’ve
received. Our floodplain technical review team requires the original model for their review. Can you provide this?

Suzanne Jiwani is our technical lead for the floodplain program, so I am copying her on this email.

Thanks,

Kathy Metzker

Enviromental Review Project Manager- Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island EAW

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
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From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)

To: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR)

Cc: Fairman, Kate (DNR)

Subject: RE: Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Construction EAW- Initial Data Submittal- question about cultural
resources (UNCLASSIFIED)

Date: Wednesday, December 11, 2019 11:21:00 AM

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
Kathy,

The archeologist that completed Sections 3.3 and 4.3 for the project (Bradley Perkl) is currently out of the office. I'll
touch base with him and either he or myself will get back to you regarding your cultural resource questions.

Thanks,

Trevor

From: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR) [mailto:kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us]
Sent: Wednesday, December 11, 2019 10:47 AM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>

Cc: Fairman, Kate (DNR) <kate.fairman@state.mn.us>

Subject: [Non-DoD Source] Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Construction EAW- Initial Data Submittal- question
about cultural resources

Hi Trevor,

I have a documentation question for you. Section 3.3 describes the cultural resources found within and near the
project area. This section mentions several previous cultural/historic/archeological investigations in the area, as well
as consultations with the Minnesota State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO). Do you have any of this
documentation or correspondence, especially any correspondence that would convey any final decisions or
determinations by SHPO? This documentation is required by our Minnesota EAW process. Also, is there any
continuing or ongoing involvement by SHPO or any similar agency on this project?

Thanks, Kathy Metzker

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
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From: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR)

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)

Cc: Fairman, Kate (DNR); Townley, Jill (DNR); Shillcox, Jennifer (DNR)

Subject: [Non-DoD Source] DNR Completeness Determination- Initial Data Submittal, Proposed Lock and Dam Pool 2
Protective Island

Date: Monday, December 23, 2019 4:22:27 PM

Attachments: 2019-12-23-1 ockAndDam?2ProtectivelslandEAW-CompletenessDetermination.pdf

2019-12-23-1 ockAndDam2Protectivelsland-Comments-InitialDataSubmission-USACECopy.xlsx

Dear Trevor,

Attached please find a letter conveying MN DNR’s decision regarding the completeness of the initial EAW data
submittal for the proposed Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island. Also please find attached a spreadsheet with the
DNR’s comments on the data submittal.

I look forward to working with you further on this,

Kathy Metzker

Land Use Hydrologist
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m*f-‘i‘a DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL RESOURCES

Minnesota Department of Natural Resources

Division of Ecological and Water Resources

500 Lafayette Road
St. Paul, MN 55155

December 23, 2019 (sent via E-mail)

Trevor W. Cyphers

Fishery Biologist

St. Paul District, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
180 Fifth Street East, Suite 700

St. Paul, MN 55101-1678

Dear Mr. Cypers,

The Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (DNR) as the Responsible Government Unit for the proposed
Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project (the Project) EAW, has reviewedthe Initial Data Submittal provided via
email by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, on November 23, 2019. The DNR has determined the EAW Initial Data
Submittal to be incomplete.

The information described on the attached spreadsheet is needed for the DNR to prepare an EAW for the
Project. Some items request specific information or provide suggestions for consideration, while others seek
elaboration or clarification that may, upon further review, result in the need for additional information. items
have been labeled by Comment ID for easier reference in discussion and for the intermediate data submittal
responses asappropriate.

After you have considered each of these comments, please feel free tocontact me at (651) 259-5694, or
kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us if you have any questions regarding the information that is being requested.

I also think it would be beneficial to have a meeting sometime in early January to discuss the project and
answer any questions. Please contact me so we can make arrangements.

Sincerely,

4
/

JA—

Kathy Metzker
Environmental Review

C: lJill Townley, DNR, Environmental Review Unit Supervisor
Kate Fairman, DNR, Environmental Review, State Planning Director

Minnesota Department of Natural Resources ¢ Division of Ecological and Water Resources
500 Lafayette Road, St. Paul, MN 55155






Sheet1

		Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island EAW- Initial Data Submittal

		Project Proposer=USACE; RGU=MN DNR

		Comment ID Number		EAW Section		EA Section		comment

		1						Corps must provide to DNR the HEC-RAS model run to determine that the island construction would result in no increase in regional flood elevations.

		2		14				In 2017, SHPO consulted with the Corps on Boulanger Bend (the island project is considered a subsequent phase for Boulanger Bend).  Any requests for subsequent consultation on this project must come from the Corps, following the federal process.

		3		6b-construction methods				don't really describe HOW the project would be constructed; this is a very important piece of information without which the proposed project cannot be adequately assessed.

		4		13				any required erosion control products should be natural so creatures don't get stuck in them and plastic doesn't enter the water

		5		6b, 13				There should be a discussion of  how they plan to vegetate the site (seeds, plugs, types of seed mixes (native mixed
should be used), or if they are assuming it will self‐vegetate, etc.).

		6		13				There is no discussion of invasive species; reed canary grass may likely establish in the new wetlands. This possibility should be addressed, and the EAW should include a discussion of practices intended to minimize this possiblity and limit its extent.

		7		3.1.1				typo: last word in second sentence (pg 18) is population, but should probably be pollution 

		8		noise				MPCA typically recommends that construction equipment be muffled and that activities take place during daytime hours (0700 to 2200) to mitigate noise pollution and noise nuisances. Suggest adding this to reduce temporary, negative effects of noise on nearby residential areas of Eagle Bluff and Featherstone Road.

		9		3				Change RGU contact information from Kate Fairman to Kathy Metzker

		10		6b				This section should include a discussion of how the proposed island construction will be accomplished, an indication of timing and duration of construction activities, a discussion of how dredged sediments will be collected and transported to the site, a discussion of how the island will be vegetated, and a figure showing the locations of dredged sediment stockpiles that will be harvested for the island. None of this is in 6b.

		11		8				More permits will be needed than just the two listed. Some additional likely permits have been added. This section will probably continue to be modified as the project is refined.

		12		9.a.i				Nearby residential areas should also be discussed here, especially the neighborhood in Hastings on the right bank of the river facing the proposed island

		13		9.a.ii				The proposed project area  is in the MNRRA, the MRCCA, and three governmental units- Hastings, Nininger Township, and Dakota County. All of these units have management plans or comprehensive plans that address resources management in this area.  These plans should be discussed with respect to the creation of this island.  For example, Hastings, Dakota County, and Nininger Township have MRCCA management plans that include a discussion of the community's scenic views- the addition of this island would have a net positive effect on these communities' scenic views. Also, the creation of the island would probably result in additional recreational opportunities in the MNRRA, which is probably discussed in NPS' MNRRA management plan.

		14		9.a.iii				The area is also in the MRCCA ROS district.  The area is zoned AE on the Dakota County DFIRM floodplain panel 27037C0144E (effective 6/18/2010)

		15		9.b				Need to discuss project's compatibility in relation to the MRCCA and MNRRA management plans and the LGU's comp plans.  

		16		10b- Soils and Topography				This section should discuss the sediment profile of the riverbed at the proposed project site and the potential of the island for slumping, as well as the possibility of a mud wave.

		17		10b- Soils and Topography				The relevance of EA chapter 4.2.5 to the questions on the EAW is unclear.

		18		11.a.1- surface water				Lock and Dam #2 Pool has a shoreland classification of General Development (GD); Rebecca has a shoreland classification of Natural Environment (NE).  Lake Rebecca is listed as impaired for aquatic consumption due to mercury.  The project is in the MRCCA. 

		19		11.b.i- wastewater				What about during the mining and transportation of stored dredged sediments to the island, or wastewater associated with the construction of the protective rock groin, or the access dredging,or the construction pads? Would any of those activities result in wastewater?

		20		11.b.ii- stormwater				What about possible stormwater runoff or erosion/sediment control problems at sites where stockpiled dredged sediments are harvested, or from the island itself while it is under construction, or along the embankment due to mud waves? The possibility of any of these resulting in erosion or stormwater runoff should be discussed, as well as plans to reduce the risk and/or mitigate the impact.

		21		11.b.iv.b-other surface waters				This section deals with the consequences of the dradging, transport, and placement of dredged sediments, and of the island construction. However, it is not possible to fully evaluate the possible environmental consequences of these activities until the activities themselves are known and described in much greater detail. The construction timeline, which is also unknown at present, is also critical to answering this question, since some impacts are dependent on the time of year.

		22		11.b.iv.b-other surface waters				More discussion of the possibility of a mudwave, what the consequences of it would be, and how those consequences could be mitigated or the possibility minimized should be in this section.

		23		11.b.iv.b-other surface waters				One of the questions asked in this section is 'Discuss how the project will change the number or type of watercraft on any water body, including current and projected watercraft usage'- presumably, the island will eventually be a scenic, recreational, and hunting attraction. It is reasonable to anticipate an increase in canoe and small motorized watercraft in this area. This should be commented on here. In addition, a discussion of any effects of the construction activities on current river traffic would be appropriate.

		24		11.b.iv.b-other surface waters				The text in the current submission states These effects are also discussed in the Clean Water Act Section 404(b)(1) analysis in Appendix C (currently being prepared)'-- when will this analysis be done? A review of it would be very helpful in making a completeness determination.   

		25		12.b-Project-related Generation/storage of solid wastes				What about such solid wastes as: waste or remnant dredge spoils, any spoils that turn out to be unsuitable, solid waste related to construction activities such as construction and placement of the groins and rip rap?

		26		12.b-Project-related Generation/storage of solid wastes				The text in the EAW cites Chapter 4.2.5 in the EA. This section of the EA describes effects of the project on terrestrial habitat and does not seem relevant to the question in the EAW.

		27		13.a- Fish, wildlife, plant communities, and rare features				Is there any vegetation: on the earthen embankment; in Pool 2; or on or near any of the dredged sediment placement sites that could be harmed by proposed activities?

		28		13.a- Fish, wildlife, plant communities, and rare features				Are there any fish or wildlife resources on or near the dredged sediment placement sites that could be harmed by proposed activities?

		29		13.a- Fish, wildlife, plant communities, and rare features				Do any reptiles, amphibians, or other kinds of wildlife nest or hibernate in the earthen embankment, and what is the potential for them being harmed by island construction activities?

		30		13.a- Fish, wildlife, plant communities, and rare features				The mussel survey was conducted in 2017. The possibility of mussels in the project area may need to be revisited when the project is ready to begin.  Depending on the results,  plan to relocate mussels may need to be devised.

		31		13.b- Rare features				Table 1 identifies the mudpuppy as a mussel rather than an amphibian

		32		13.b- Rare features				Are any rare features found around the dredged sediment placement sites, that could be affected by removing sediments for the island?

		33		13.c				Include a discussion on introduction and spread of invasive species from the project construction and operation'- Invasive species are not addressed in the EAW. The EAW should include a discussion of the practices that will be followed to minimize the possibility of introduction of invasive species to the island during construction, through contaminated dredge sediments or from contaminated constrution equipment; or from post construction vegetation procedures.  

		34		13.d				Should address the possibility of harming nesting, burrowing, or hibernating creatures in the embankment.

		35		14- Historic Properties				Copies of consultations with SHPO must be provided for submission to EQB along with the complete EAW.

		36		15-Visual				FYI- The communities in the MRCCA are currently working on their MRCCA management plans. One element of these plans is the identification of high value scenic views.  When this island is completed it would enhance scenic views in Hastings, Nininger Township, and Dakota County.  This might be important information to include in the EAW

		37		15-Visual				Evaluating the temporary negative impact to views would be helped by knowing the approximate construction schedule.

		38		16.c-Dust and odors				Would construction of the riprap berms and groins on the island generate dust? Would harvesting of dried dredged sediments from the stockpile areas generate dust? What would be done to reduce the dust contribution from these sources?

		39		17-Noise				Noise associated with construction can be mitigated by requiring that all construction equipment have mufflers, and limiting hours of operation

		40		18-Transportation				Without knowing more specifically how the island will be constructed and how the stockpiled dredged sediments will be harvested and transported to the project area, it is premature to conclude that there will be no impacts.

		41		19-CPE				Geographic scales and timeframes for environmental effects need to be described individually (for each individual effect), and it is helpful to define a timeframe for a construction period and operational period if they are different.  For 19.b. reasonably foreseeable projects may also include projects that are not proposed by the Corps. Any projects proposed by other governmental units or private entities that rise to the level of "reasonably foreseeable for which a basis of expectation has been laid" might be appropriate for inclusion in this analysis. Please contact us if you have any questions on the development of this information.  

		42		13.a- Fish, wildlife, plant communities, and rare features		3.2.3, Biological Resources		On Page 28 of the EA, The FISHERIES section states “As of 2010, 78 species of fish are reported to occur or have occurred in the past within Pool 2 of the UMR. Of these 78 species, 30 are classified as either abundant or common (Steuck et al. 2010, Table 3‐2). In 1995, this species number was 64 (Pitlo et al. 1995), indicating an increase in fish diversity within the pool.” This is an oversimplification of the fish diversity within Pool 2. The goal of most surveys on Pool 2 are to assess fish populations (usually with a sport fish emphasis). They are not designed to assess every fish species present within the pool. Every survey will fail to sample species that are present. The Pitlo et al. 1995 citation does not occur in the References section. If they want to say the diversity has been increasing, I would point out Eddy et al. 1962, The fish fauna of the Mississippi River above St. Anthony Falls as related to the effectiveness of this falls as a migration barrier. They stated “There are 123 species of fish known from Minnesota and contiguous Wisconsin waters below the falls…” Based on that, diversity is decreasing. One must recognize the reason behind fish surveys as they are typically used to assess sport fish populations. Case in point, they refer to the 2012 fish survey in Lake Rebecca and mentioned “17 fish species were present within the lake…” The survey wasn’t designed to assess the number of species within thelake, it was designed to assess sport fish populations. Another survey was conducted in 2018 in Lake Rebecca that is not mentioned. In that survey, only 8 species were sampled. Based on how they are interpreting the fish survey data, that would indicate a monumental decrease in fish diversity.

		43		13.b- Rare features		3.2.5-Threatened and Endangered Species (EA Table 3-5)		EA Table 3-5 lists the state-listed species within one mile of the Project Area. In addition to this information, paddlefish and lake sturgeon (Acipenser fulvescens, SPC) have been observed within the project area, with last observations for each in 2019(Joel Stiras, personal communication)

		44		11.a-Surface Waters		3.2.3, Biological Resources		Page 34, First paragraph, states “Concentrations of mercury, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), and perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) in fish tissue were classified as unsafe for consumption in this section of the UMR.”  Fish are NOT listed as unsafe for consumption for mercury, PCBs and PFOS. Fish are tested for contaminants, and there may be some restrictions of 1 meal/week or 1 meal/month. As of the April 2018 fish consumption advisory for Pool 2, here are NO species of fish listed as “Do Not Eat” by the Minnesota Department of Health. MPCA may have various categories for impaired waters for fish consumption and water quality,but being impaired does not necessarily mean “unsafe for consumption.” 






From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)

To: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR)

Cc: Fairman, Kate (DNR)

Subject: RE: Permits and Approvals Required - LD2 Island EAW
Date: Thursday, February 13, 2020 9:45:00 AM

Kathy,

Thank you for the response and the permit list. I just wanted to clarify one thing. We don't issue Corps permits to
ourselves (i.e., Section 10 and 404 CWA), and the reasoning is listed below:

"As outlined in 33 CFR 335.2 and in 33 CFR 322.3(c)(1), the Corps of Engineers does not issue itself permits under
Section 10 of the 1899 Rivers and Harbors Act, or Section 404 of the Clean Water Act. However, unless otherwise
exempted, the Corps does comply with the same laws that apply to applications for Corps permits (NEPA,
Endangered Species, Section 401 water quality certification, Section 404(a) notice and opportunity for hearing,
Section 404(b)(1) compliance, Historic Preservation, Fish and Wildlife Coordination, etc)."

As for the wetland creation aspect of the project, that action would be covered under the section 10 and 404 permits,
so no additional permit would be required for this project.

Thanks again,

Trevor

From: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR) [mailto:kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us]
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2020 9:57 AM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Cc: Fairman, Kate (DNR) <kate.fairman@state.mn.us>
Subject: [Non-DoD Source] RE: Permits and Approvals Required - LD2 Island EAW

Hi Trevor,

I can see how that would be confusing. I apologize. We added additional likely permits in the EAW text while we
were doing our review, but apparently did not add these details to the spreadsheet. One is an endangered species
takings permit, which you may or may not need, and the other two are Corps permits. I have been advised that the
Corps still needs to get permits for Corps-related work.

I added wetland permits as a possibility, because you will be creating wetlands where none now exist. [ don't know
whether such permits are currently required for wetland creation or not. I can tell you that, back in the 90s when I
was a grad student in the wetland ecology program at Ohio State, we created a study wetland and the Corps made us
apply for permits for working in wetlands in order to create them but that was a long time ago and maybe the
protocols have been refined. I expect to get further guidance on this question from people who work regularly with
these issues.

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 1:50 PM

To: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR) <kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us>

Subject: Permits and Approvals Required - LD2 Island EAW

This message may be from an external email source.


mailto:Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil
mailto:kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us
mailto:kate.fairman@state.mn.us
mailto:kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us

Do not select links or open attachments unless verified. Report all suspicious emails to Minnesota IT Services
Security Operations Center.

Kathy,

I'm working through the EAW comments and had a question regarding the required permit and approval (EAW
Section 8, Comment ID #11), which states that some additional permits have been added. Could you provide the
potential permits that you mention in this comment? The only additional permit that I can think of would be and
NPDES permit, which the awarded contractor would get if necessary.

Thanks

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

Cc: Fairman, Kate (DNR); Shillcox, Jennifer (DNR)

Subject: [Non-DoD Source] RE: LD 2 Protective Island - Data Submittal Two
Date: Monday, March 16, 2020 3:14:11 PM

Thanks Trevor. I got them.
Today marks the beginning of our 30-day review period, which will end on April 15. At that time we will make a
determination of data completeness for this submission. You may receive comments and requests for further

information at various points during the 30-day review period, as the need arises.

Sincerely,

Kathy Metzker

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Sent: Monday, March 16, 2020 3:00 PM

To: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR) <kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us>

Cc: Fairman, Kate (DNR) <kate.fairman@state.mn.us>

Subject: RE: LD 2 Protective Island - Data Submittal Two

Kathy,

I finally got the remaining documents to upload. Let me know if you have any troubles accessing them.
Thanks,

Trevor

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)

Sent: Monday, March 16, 2020 1:57 PM

To: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR) <kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us>

Subject: RE: LD 2 Protective Island - Data Submittal Two

Yep, working on it. Having a some slight issues with the internet at the moment.

From: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR) [mailto:kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us]

Sent: Monday, March 16, 2020 1:23 PM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Cc: Fairman, Kate (DNR) <kate.fairman@state.mn.us>

Subject: [Non-DoD Source] RE: LD 2 Protective Island - Data Submittal Two

I already downloaded the EA, so that would be fine.

I don't have the EAW yet.

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>


mailto:kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us
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Sent: Monday, March 16, 2020 1:17 PM

To: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR) <kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us>
Cc: Fairman, Kate (DNR) <kate.fairman@state.mn.us>

Subject: RE: LD 2 Protective Island - Data Submittal Two

It appears that my second attempt crashed. If it isn't too much hassle, I send the remaining documents and leave out
the EA, as it is the largest file.

From: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR) [mailto:kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us]
Sent: Monday, March 16, 2020 12:59 PM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Cc: Fairman, Kate (DNR) <kate.fairman@state.mn.us>
Subject: [Non-DoD Source] RE: LD 2 Protective Island - Data Submittal Two

Oh, okay.

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Sent: Monday, March 16, 2020 12:58 PM

To: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR) <kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us>

Cc: Fairman, Kate (DNR) <kate.fairman@state.mn.us>

Subject: LD 2 Protective Island - Data Submittal Two

This message may be from an external email source.
Do not select links or open attachments unless verified. Report all suspicious emails to Minnesota IT Services
Security Operations Center.

Kathy,

It appears DoD SAFE sent my submittal before I was done uploading all the appropriate files. The full submittal is
currently being downloaded and should be coming your way very soon. Sorry for the inconvenience.

Thanks,

Trevor


mailto:kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)

To: jason.spiegel@state.mn.us; melissa.kuskie@state.mn.us
Subject: Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project

Date: Thursday, April 2, 2020 4:01:00 PM

Attachments: LD2 Protective Island Exect Summary&Figure.pdf

Jason and Melissa,

I was told that both of you were either taking over for Jennie Skancke and Jim Brist in your respective departments
or could point me to the proper point of contact. I wanted to touch base with both of you regarding a project that the
Corps is working toward implementing near Lock and Dam 2. The project requires a Minnesota EAW and I've
currently submitted the second iteration of the review document. If everything goes smoothly with this submittal, it
is the Corps' intent to submit the EA for public review concurrently with the EAW.

Being that both Jennie and Jim were involved to some extent with this project, I was wondering what level of
understanding each of you have with the project. It is my intent to have the permitting completed fairly soon after
the EAW is completed and signed. With that being said, what would be the best time to begin the permit application
process for this project?

For some background information, I've attached the executive summary and a figure containing the primary features
of the project. If you would like more information, I can send you the draft EA and Plans Sets. If you think it would
be beneficial, we could set up a call to discuss the permitting process for this project.

Thanks,

Trevor Cyphers

Fishery Biologist

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
180 5th Street East, Suite 700

St. Paul, MN 55101-1678

Office: (651) 290-5031

Mobile: (507) 273-7546
trevor.w.cyphers@usace.army.mil
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mailto:jason.spiegel@state.mn.us
mailto:melissa.kuskie@state.mn.us

Executive Summary — Lock and Dam 2
Protective Island Project

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Paul District is responsible for operation and
maintenance of the 9-foot Navigation Channel within the Upper Mississippi River. One
component of this effort is assuring that locks, dams and associated structures are
properly maintained. One structure that is being considered for increased protection is the
embankment at Lock and Dam 2. The current embankment is being degraded due to
erosion via wind-driven wave action, ice action and river currents. The goal of the Lock
and Dam 2 Protective Island Project would be to protect the current embankment from
erosive forces, while providing environmental benefits to the area through the beneficial
use of dredged material.

To address the environmental effects associated with the proposed project and to ensure
compliance with the National Environmental Policy Actof 1969, the Corps is preparing a
draft environmental assessment with the following preliminary assessment results:

The Proposed Alternative (creating a protective island) would result in minor long-term
benefits to noise levels, aesthetic values, commercial navigation, habitat diversity and
biological productivity; and substantial benefits to recreation, terrestrial habitat and
wetlands. The Proposed Alternative would result in temporary minor adverse effects on
noise, aesthetics, air quality, and surface water quality; a one-time to biological
productivity and long-term minor adverse effects to aquatic habitat within the Project
Area. The protective island would provide a diverse riparian habitat with the potential to
attract natives species (e.g., nesting turtles, shorebirds, overwintering fish) while
providing the required protection to the existing embankment at Lock and Dam 2.

The Corps’ preliminary determination is that the Proposed Alternative would not have a
significant effect on the quality of the human environment; therefore, this project will not
require the preparation of an Environmental Impact Statement.

Executive Summary 4
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Figure 2-2. Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project Proposed Alternative, including the different features to be incorporated.
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From: Brist, Jim (MPCA)

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)
Subject: [Non-DoD Source] RE: Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project
Date: Wednesday, April 8, 2020 4:22:15 PM

Perfect! Thx, Trevor.
Jim

Jim Brist (he/him/his)

401 Water Quality Certification Coordinator
MPCA

651-757-2245

NOTICE: This email (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C.
2510-2521. This email may be confidential and may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you
are hereby notified that any retention, dissemination, distribution, or copying of this communication is strictly
prohibited. Please reply back to the sender that you have received this message in error, then delete it. Thank you.

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Sent: Wednesday, April 8, 2020 3:28 PM

To: Brist, Jim (MPCA) <jim.brist@state.mn.us>

Cc: Hotz, Anna (MPCA) <Anna.Hotz@state.mn.us>

Subject: RE: Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project

Jim,

A couple of great questions. According to Jon Hendrickson, once an island of this fashion is constructed and
vegetation is established, maintenance is very low to non-existent. He said that the most likely cause of damage
would be during Spring break-up, when ice could potentially displace some of the stability features (i.e., groins,
vanes, riprap). If that were to happen, we could either fix the structure or monitor it, but he has never seen this type
of thing result in structural failure. The benefit with the island, if structures needed to be fixed or maintenance was
necessary, we could coordinate and permit the fixes in a timely fashion instead of doing it immediately.

Our original idea was to do a riparian berm with an offshore island. However, during the planning phase of the
project our geotech engineer told us that a riparian berm would cause settlement of the embankment and we would
need to reshape and overbuild the embankment to account for this. This would have likely been outside of project
funds and costly, so we decided against incorporating the berm.

The DNR will let us know if they approve of this version of the EAW by 15 April. After that, I believe they have 30
days to prepare the document before it goes out for a 30-day public review. If everything works out, it would be
sometime in Mid-May, but a date hasn't been decided upon at this point.

Thanks,

Trevor

From: Brist, Jim (MPCA) [mailto:jim.brist@state.mn.us]
Sent: Wednesday, April 8, 2020 9:33 AM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Cc: Hotz, Anna (MPCA) <Anna.Hotz@state.mn.us>
Subject: [Non-DoD Source] RE: Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project


mailto:jim.brist@state.mn.us
mailto:Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil
mailto:jim.brist@state.mn.us

Hi Trevor.
I reviewed the draft EA and just have a couple of questions.

At some point the island is likely to need repair as well. Is there any estimated life expectancy of the island
structure?

One of the rejected alternatives was a riparian berm. Was there any consideration given to using both the Island in
addition to riparian berms?

Ok, I guess I have one more, but this one is related to timing. You said that if all goes well with this draft, that the
EA would be released at the same time as the EAW. Do you know what that date is?

Thx, Jim

Jim Brist (he/him/his)
401 Water Quality Certification Coordinator MPCA
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

Sent: Friday, April 3, 2020 1:46 PM

To: Brist, Jim (MPCA) <jim.brist@state.mn.us>

Cc: Schnick, Emily (MPCA) <emily.schnick@state.mn.us>; Hotz, Anna (MPCA) <Anna.Hotz@state.mn.us>
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

Glad you will be still involved with the project. I've attached the draft EA, draft 404(b)(1) and the Plans and Specs
to get your started. Be sure to let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks,

Trevor

From: Brist, Jim (MPCA) [mailto:jim.brist@state.mn.us]
Sent: Friday, April 3,2020 1:15 PM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Cc: Schnick, Emily (MPCA) <emily.schnick@state.mn.us>; Hotz, Anna (MPCA) <Anna.Hotz@state.mn.us>
Subject: [Non-DoD Source] Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project

Hi Trevor.


mailto:jim.brist@state.mn.us

I'll be your MPCA contact and yes, please send me the draft EA and the Plan Sets.

Because this project utilizes dredge material, I have copied Emily Schnick (MPCA dredge expert) and have included
our guidance document on managing dredge materials

BlockedBlockedBlockedhttps://www.pca.state.mn.us/sites/default/files/wq-gen2-01.pdf

Thanks for including us!

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

Subject: [Non-DoD Source] Completeness determination- proposed Lock and Dam 2 Pool Protective Island EAW- Second
Data Submittal

Date: Wednesday, April 15, 2020 11:06:26 AM

Attachments: Appendix C LD2 Island 404(b)(1) Draft East Metro Fisheries comments 3-17-20.docx

LockAndDam?2Protectivelsland-SecondDataSubmittal-Comments.xIsx
LD2 Island Appendix B EAW Supplement-USACECopy.docx
2020-04-15-USACE-LockAndDam2ProtectivelslandEAW-SecondDataSubmittal-CompletenessDecision.pdf

Dear Mr. Cyphers,

Attached please find MN DNR’s completeness determination for the second data submittal for the EAW for the
proposed Lock and Dam 2 Pool Protective Island Project. Also please find attached an Excel spreadsheet with
comments, as well as two Word documents (the draft EAW, and the draft Appendix C) with embedded comments
and other items flagged for your convenience.

If you have any questions about this or would like to talk further about it, please email me or call me at 651-259-
5694.

Sincerely,

Kathy Metzker


mailto:kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us
mailto:Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil
mailto:kate.fairman@state.mn.us
mailto:jill.townley@state.mn.us
mailto:jennifer.shillcox@state.mn.us
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Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project





































Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project 

I.  Project Description

A.  Location and General Description

The Lock and Dam 2 Project Area is within the UMR outside of the 9-Foot Navigation Channel on the upstream side of the Lock and Dam 2 embankment, at River Mile 815.2. The project is located near the southeastern edge of the Minneapolis–St. Paul Metropolitan area and is entirely within the boundaries of the Mississippi National River and Recreation Area (MNRRA) and Mississippi River Corridor Critical Area corridors (MRCCA). The proposed project lies within Nininger Township and Hastings, MN and is bordered by Denmark Township, MN to the northwest, and Cottage Grove, MN to the north. 

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Paul District is responsible for operation and maintenance of the 9-foot navigation channel within the Upper Mississippi River. One component of this effort is assuring that locks, dams and associated structures are properly maintained. One structure that is being considered for increased protection is the embankment at Lock and Dam 2. The embankment is being degraded due to erosion via wind-driven wave action, ice action and river currents. The proposed project’s goal would be to protect the embankment from erosive forces, while providing environmental benefits to the area through the beneficial use of dredged material. In order to accomplish this, an offshore protective island would be constructed with material from dredged material placement sites within Pool 2, resulting in increased capacity for routine dredging operations. 



In compliance with Section 404 of the Clean Water Act, this evaluation addresses the impacts resulting from the discharge of fill into approximately 30.2 acres of waters of the United States. 



Detailed descriptions of the proposed project features and impact areas can be found in the Environmental Assessment.

B.  Authority and Purpose

Congress first authorized the Corps to maintain navigation on the Mississippi River through removing sandbars, snags and other obstacles via the Rivers and Harbors Act (RHA) of 1824. A later revision to the RHA (1930), authorized the Corps to maintain a 9-foot navigable channel on the Mississippi River through the use of locks and dams. This project will be conducted as maintenance to structures or features authorized through these acts.



C.  General Description of Dredged or Fill Material

	1.  General Characteristics of Material

The proposed protective island would be constructed using sand from dredged material placement sites within Pool 2. The exact physical characteristics of the sand (i.e., gradation, makeup) is dependent upon the dredge cut it would come from (Table 1). The base of the island would utilize conventional sand (granular fill) and be capped with fine-grained material (silts and clay, fine fill or fines) to prevent erosion and establish turf for vegetation. An emergent wetland area on the inside of the island would be filled with fine-grained material (fine fill) from the riverbed south of the island. The island would be further stabilized with rockfill in the form of rock groins and a bullnose structure at the northern tip of the island. Rockfill for both of these structures would consist of R140 riprap from an authorized quarry.



		Cut Name

		Location (RM)

		Annual Avg Qty: ’70-‘14

		Year Last Tested

		Avg.

%  Sand

		Avg.

% Silt

		Avg.

% Clay



		Above + Below Smith Ave

		840-841.3

		2,917

		2013

		45

		.6

		.5



		Abv Wabasha Ave Br

		839.5-839.6

		25

		2014

		88

		7

		4



		Small Boat Harbor - St. Paul

		839.6

		4,237

		2013

		58

		40

		2



		St. Paul Barge Terminal

		836.4-837.8

		49,864

		2013

		92

		5

		3



		Robinson Rocks/Gray Cloud

		826.1-828.3

		6,170

		2013

		97

		1.0

		1.5



		Pine Bend Landing

		824.3-824.6

		5,551

		2014

		93

		1

		.2



		Boulanger

		820.3-821.4

		20.315

		2013

		80

		15

		5



		Boulanger/lower light

		819.3-820.3

		8,984

		2013

		35

		51

		14



		Freeborn Light

		818.0-819.3

		10,110

		2014

		89

		7

		3



		Upper Approach L/D 2

		815.2-816.5

		332

		2014

		61

		29

		8





Table 1: Pool 2 dredge cut sediment quantities and physical characteristics. Sample results are taken from two random locations in each cut using a ponar dredge sampler.

	2.  Quantity of Material

Estimated quantities for fill material are:

	Rock: 

	Rock groins – 1,265 Cubic Yards

	Bullnose structure – 1,760 Cubic Yards

	Total rockfill – 3,025 Cubic Yards 



Granular sand fill: 

	Island Footprint – 285,378 Cubic Yards

	Temporary construction pads (2) – 11,840 Cubic Yards 

	Total granular sand fill - 297,218 Cubic Yards 



	Fine fill 

		Island design (turf) – 15,300 Cubic Yards 

		Emergent wetland (wet fill) – 43,268.5 Cubic Yards

		Access Dredging (wet fill, if necessary) – 12,330.5 Cubic Yards  

		Total fine fill – 70,899 Cubic Yards 



		Total fill material: 368,117 Cubic Yards 

	3.  Source of Material



Rockfill: Riprap would be sourced by the contractor from an authorized gravel pit or quarry. 



Granular and dry fine fill: The granular fill for the base of the island and the fine fill utilized for turf establishment would come from Corps authorized dredged material placement sites within Pool 2. The majority of the material from the dredged material placement sites would have been dredged at some point over the previous ten years. These sites include Pine Bend, Upper Boulanger and Lower Boulanger. 



Wet fine fill: The fine fill necessary to construct the emergent wetland area would come from the riverbed from the access channels or the fish overwintering habitat south of the island. This material would either be hydraulically pumped to the emergent wetland area or placed mechanically. See the Environment Assessment for more details on location, process and purpose of the wet fine fill and the emergent wetland area.  

E.  Description of the Proposed Discharge Site

	1.  Location

The island and subsequent features would be constructed on the upstream side of the Lock and Dam 2 embankment, at River Mile 815.2. Figures detailing the locations of the proposed project features can be found in the Environmental Assessment.

	2.  Size of Fill

The protective island would consist of four primary features: the island top, the inner berm, outer berm, and emergent wetland. A fine fill layer would be included for all three features to allow for the establishment of native plant species. The protective island top would have a constant top width of 50’ with a cross slope of 0.00%, and side slopes of 1V:3H. The side slopes would tie into the inner and outer protective island berms at elevation 688.10 (NAVD 88). The protective island top would include multiple elevation tiers that would be capped with fine fill and vegetation to provide both positive habitat and erosion protection. The inner and outer protective island berms would contain a 40’ top width with a cross slope of 0.00%, a 20’ wide fine fill top layer, and a side slope of 1V:4H that ties into the existing river bottom. The inner and outer island berms would have a top elevation of 688.10, which would be constant for the entire island alignment. The inner and outer protective island berm fine fill layer would start at the toe of island top side slope and go to the berm center. Both berm centers are located 20’ from the toe of the island top side slopes. The Emergent Wetland or “mudflat” would be constructed by filling in the 9.3 acre area between the emergent wetland berm and island layouts to a variable elevation of +/- 1.0 foot Low Control Pool (LCP), providing an average design elevation of 685.60. The overwintering fish habitat area, which would provide the majority of the fine fill required for the emergent wetland would be approximately 8.6 acres in size. 



The size of the island footprint, including the emergent wetland and rockfill would be approximately 30.2 acres. Including the overwintering area and all potential access dredging routes (5.4 acres) would increase the footprint size to approximately 44.2 acres. 

	3.  Site and Habitat Description

The Project Area is located at the downstream end of Pool 2 near the right descending bank at RM 815.2. The area upstream of the embankment where the protective island would be situated is relatively shallow in depth, as it is outside of the navigation channel. The project is located near the southeastern edge of the Minneapolis–St. Paul Metropolitan area and is entirely within the boundaries of the Mississippi National River and Recreation Area (MNRRA) corridor, a unit of the National Park Service (NPS). This area is also within the Mississippi River Corridor Critical Area (MRCCA), which is a joint state, regional and local program that provides coordinated planning and management for the 72 mile stretch of the UMRR that lies within the seven-county boundary of the Minneapolis-St. Paul Metropolitan area. The MRCCA shares a boundary with the MNRRA corridor.



The Project Area is located almost entirely within the UMR floodplain. According to the UMR aquatic habitat classification system (Wilcox 1993), the north side of the project area is impounded aquatic habitat. According to the Minnesota National Wetland Inventory (NWI) the Project Area has a mixture of riverine, lake and freshwater pond habitat. From a wetland standpoint the project site on the upstream side of the Lock and Dam 2 embankment is open water and inundated with water year round. The long wind fetch and riprap on the upstream side is not conducive for plant growth, resulting in minimal wetlands, if any. Using the Upper Mississippi River Restoration (UMRR) Program – Long Term Resource Monitoring (LTRM) data there are a total of seven different land use class descriptions (15 class descriptions available) within the Project Area. These classifications include: open water, road/levee, development, wet forest, submersed aquatic vegetation, and upland forest; however, the footprint of the proposed island is entirely within open water habitat. 



Implementing the proposed project would result in a decrease in impounded aquatic habitat (-38.8 acres) and an increase in fish overwintering habitat (+ 8.6 acres), wetland (+ 9.3 acres), wooded/forest (+ 2.8 acres), brush/grassland (+ 7.6 acres), beach (+ 4.7 acres), littoral transition zone (+ 4.9) and riprap habitats (+ 0.9 acres). Any access dredging (up to 5.4 acres) necessary to construct the project would result in a habitat change, as it would remain as impounded aquatic habitat. 

F.  Description of Disposal Method

A majority of the fill required for the proposed island would be set in place via typical mechanical dredging equipment including barges and excavators. This includes the granular fill for the island footprint and riprap for the rock groins and bullnose structure. The fine fill for the emergent wetland and turf mixture to cap the island would likely be placed hydraulically; however, there is a chance that the contractor would choose to complete this work mechanically. See the Chapter 2.2 of the Environmental assessment for more details on how the proposed island would be constructed.  

II. Factual Determinations

A.  Physical Substrate Determinations

	1.  Substrate Elevation and Slope

The existing elevation of the project footprint varies throughout the Project Area, but in general the substrate elevation is between elevations 683.1 – 681.1 feet (water depth of 3 – 6 feet LCP, EL 686.1).  As the channel borders approach the main channel, the slope increases sharply and the channel bottom is generally between 9 and 18 feet deep (EL 677.6 – 668.6 feet). Once completed the proposed island would tie into the existing river bottom with a side slope of 1V:4H and have varying top elevations of 692.1, 690.1 and 688.1 feet. The varying island elevations and purposes behind them are further explained within the Environmental Assessment. 

	2.  Substrate Changes 

Sediment borings conducted in 2017 and 2018 from the Project Area indicated that the near-surface substrate consists of mostly alluvial sands or lacustrine clays. The substrate is typically loose at the surface but increases in density with depth. The clay layer thickness throughout the Project Area is variable and typically greater than 3 feet. Underlying the alluvial and lacustrine deposits is the Fanconia Franconia Formation, which is bedrock consisting of very fine grained sandstone. More information regarding the existing substrate of the Project Area can be found within Appendix F of the Geotechnical Design and Geology Report. 



The proposed island and emergent wetland footprints would be overlain with varying elevations/depths of clean sand. The islands top elevation would be above the water surface most of the time, and covered with fine fill sand to mimic soil for vegetation. The area where the island ties into the existing riverbed would likely be changed to sand, or a mixture of sand and the existing substrate. The tie-in of the rock groins would introduce a substrate type that is currently not present within the proposed island footprint. 

	3.  Fill Material Movement

Some localized fill material movement and existing sediment resuspension is expected during project construction, depending on current and wind conditions. These effects would be temporary and would end following construction. Additionally, construction could cause lateral movement of the underlying (existing) substrate, often referred to colloquially as a “mud wave”. Lateral displacement could occur in a semi-liquid fashion, in which the material is simply “squeezed” outwards from beneath the fill in a plastic fashion, where soil masses or wedges of material would be displaced outwards from the fill. This movement would also only be expected to occur during construction, and would result in a more variable substrate elevation around the islands.

Once material is in place, secondary movement of fill material used to construct the proposed island would be minimal because project features would be designed to discourage erosion. The sand that would make up most of the island would be capped with a mixture of fine sands and planted with vegetation. Also, rockfill structures would be incorporated to lower erosion and maintain island stability. 

	4.  Actions Taken to Minimize Impacts

A number of procedures would be used to minimize impacts where needed. All work performed by a contractor will be subject to applicable agency permits. The contractor will also be required to submit and Environmental Protection Plan that will include best management practices designed to minimize the unintended movement of fill material.

B.  Water Circulation, Fluctuation, and Salinity Determination

	1.  Water

Some minor, short-term decreases in water clarity are expected from the proposed fill action. The use of clean fill materials should preclude any significant impacts on water chemistry. If hydraulic dredging is used for any part of the project, the carriage return water would be taken from the Mississippi River to mix with the dredged material and allow hydraulic movement, and returned to the river after settling. Returning this water without the suspended sediments should not have any effect on water chemistry. The long-term effect from the proposed project features would likely be a minor improvement in water clarity in the study area over present conditions due to the reduction in wind-generated waves, especially south of the proposed island.



The proposed fill would have no measureable impact on salinity, color, odor, taste, dissolved oxygen levels, nutrients, eutrophication, or temperature. 

	2.  Current Patterns and Circulation

		a. Current Velocity and Patterns

The velocity of water movement throughout the project area is currently low as the area is outside of the thalweg and resides within the ineffective flow zone of the river. Any river current once acting on the embankment would be displaced by the proposed island. 

		b. Stratification

		The proposed project would not affect stratification.

		c. Hydrologic Regime

The proposed project would not alter the existing hydrologic regime within the project area.  

	3.  Normal Water Level Fluctuations

The proposed activities would not have an effect on normal water level fluctuations in the project area.  

	4.  Salinity Gradient

	The proposed project would have no effect on the salinity gradient.

	5.  Actions Taken to Minimize Impacts

No special actions would be taken to minimize the effects of the proposed project on water circulation, fluctuation, or salinity.



C.  Suspended Particulate/Turbidity Determination

	1.  Expected Changes in Suspended Particulates and Turbidity Levels in the 

		Vicinity of the Disposal Site

Minor increases in suspended particulates and turbidity levels would occur from the construction activities in the immediate project vicinity. Being that the project area is close to the Lock and Dam 2 embankment and within the ineffective flow zone, suspended particulates would not travel downstream of the project area. The utilization of Best Management Practices (BMPs) during construction would minimize these potential effects. When construction activities cease, suspended particulates and turbidity levels would return to pre-project conditions.

	2.  Effects on Chemical and Physical Properties of the Water Column

The minor increase in suspended particulates and turbidity. Related short-term effects of this would be decreased light penetration and reduced aesthetic qualities near the construction site.  Suspended particulates are not expected to cause a change in dissolved oxygen, toxic metals, organisms, or pathogens in the water column. 

	4.  Actions Taken to Minimize Impacts

The discharge of dredged material would result in disturbance to the existing substrate, which would likely cause a temporary and localized increase in suspended sediment.  Through the project the contractor would develop an Environmental Protection Plan that would include best management practices to minimize impacts of suspended particulates and turbidity created through the Project Area. Any requirements (e.g., turbidity sampling) necessary through the permitting process would be implemented to reduce the effects of suspended sediment. 



D.  Contaminant Determinations

Sediment samples from the Project Area were analyzed for environmental characteristics by the Corps in June 2017. The results of this analysis indicated that sediments were relatively clean and free of contaminants. No analytes were detected within project area in concentrations higher than Minnesota Pollution Control Agency’s (MPCA) Sediment Quality Targets (SQT) or Soil Reference Value (SRV) guidelines. Results of these tests are further discussed in the Environmental Assessment. 

The proposed fill material would include rock, and dredged material. The rock used in the construction of rock groins and bullnose structure would be clean and come from a sourced quarry. Sand (granular and fines) that would be utilized for the construction of the proposed island would come from dredged material placement sites in Pool 2. The St. Paul District has implemented a standard operating procedure to evaluate the sediment in dredge cuts, which calls for periodic sediment sample collection and analysis for a standard set of chemical and physical characteristics (Table 1). To date, the St. Paul District has completed 15 sediment surveys of the dredge cuts in Pool 2 (1974, 1975, 1978, 1981‒1985, 1989, 1992, 1994, 2002, 2008, 2013 and 2014).  Fill material for the emergent wetland would come from the fish overwintering area and access dredge cuts (if necessary). A further description of the dredged material used for fill is discussed in Appendix G.



E.  Aquatic Ecosystem and Organism Determination

	1.  Effects on Plankton

During construction, increases in turbidity and suspended solids near the dredged and filled areas would have a localized suppressing effect on phytoplankton productivity. However, these local effects would be short-term and minor. The plankton populations would recover quickly once construction activities have ceased.

	2.  Effects on Benthos

Any benthic organisms within the fill and dredged areas of the project would likely be destroyed during construction, which would equate to approximately 44.2 acres of benthic habitat. Mussel surveys were conducted within the Project Area to determine potential impacts of the proposed island. These surveys indicated that the Project Area does not contain any know mussel beds and is poor mussel habitat. The proposed island construction would likely not have a lasting impact on the native mussel population within the Project Area and greater Pool 2. After project completion, benthic organisms would colonize the new littoral transition zone and rockfill structures created through the proposed island construction. These areas would create substrate diversity that currently is not available within the Project Area. 

	3.  Effects on Nekton

During construction, increases in turbidity and suspended solids near the dredged and filled areas would have a localized suppressing effect on nekton productivity. Nekton would most likely leave or avoid the area while construction is occurring. These effects would be local, short-term, and minor and the nekton populations would quickly recolonize the area once construction activities have ceased. The constructed fish overwintering habitat would provide a unique habitat for nekton that is currently not available within the Project Area and would provide long-term nekton benefits. 

	4.  Effects on Aquatic Food Web

The covering (burrial) and dredging of existing benthos and localized impacts on plankton productivity would cause a temporary, minor, adverse impact on the local food web. However, these organisms would be expected to recover quickly following the completion of the project, and there would likely be no long-term negative effects to the aquatic food web.

	5.  Effects on Special Aquatic Sites

The proposed project would not impact any special aquatic sites.

	6.  Threatened and Endangered Species

The proposed action would not affect any federally-listed species. The only federally-listed species that would have the potential to be affected by the proposed island project would be Higgins eye, snuffbox and sheepnose mussels. These mussel species were not found during mussel surveys within the Project Area and are usually found in a high quality mussel bed, which the Project Area does not have. 



[bookmark: _GoBack]State-listed threatened and endangered species populations would likely not be affected under the proposed project. There was one state-listed mussel that was observed during the 2017 sampling event. Though a single Quadrula nodulata was observed it is unlikely that the project would have an adverse effect on this species as it is considered common in Pool 2. Though there is a possibility that other state-listed mussels may be present, the Project Area is not deemed as favorable mussel habitat or does not contain any known mussel beds. 

	7.  Other Wildlife

The proposed project would likely have a positive long-term effect on other wildlife such as waterfowl, shorebirds, and other wildlife species that would utilize the unique habitats that would be created within the Project Area.

	8.  Actions Taken to Minimize Impacts

Due to what was observed and found during mussel surveys, no action or mitigation would be completed to preserve benthic organisms within the Project Area. There is an active bald eagle nest (2019) found near the vicinity of Project Area. Prudent avoidance measures would be taken to insure that construction complies with the Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act.  

F.  Proposed Disposal Site Determinations

	1. Mixing Zone Determination

Fill material placement and dredging to construct the proposed project would cause a minor increase in turbidity levels in the immediate project vicinity. However, no long-term adverse impacts to water quality would likely occur from any of the proposed project features/activities.

	2.  Determination of Compliance with Applicable Water Quality Standards

It is not anticipated that the proposed project would violate Minnesota’s water quality standards for toxicity. Material from dredge cuts within Pool 2 are periodically analyzed for specific chemical and physical characteristics to assure dredged material within placement sites are relatively clean and free of contaminates. Fill material to construct the island would be sourced from authorized dredged material placement sites that are permitted through the MPCA. Rockfill used for rock groins and the bullnose structure would come from approved quarries within the area. Water quality certification would be obtained from Minnesota prior to project construction.

	3.  Potential Effects on Human Use Characteristics

		a. Municipal and Private Water Supply

No municipal or private wells would be impacted by the proposed project. 

		b. Recreational and Commercial Fisheries

Fish within the Project Area would be temporarily displaced during the proposed construction, but this effect would be temporary and minor. The proposed project would likely have a long-term positive impact on the local fishery through the construction of the fish overwintering habitat south of the proposed island.

		c. Water Related Recreation and Aesthetics

The completion of the proposed project would result in a benefit toward recreational opportunities within the area. Creation of the fish overwintering habitat would allow for better fishing opportunities, specifically during the winter months via ice fishing. Spring and summer months could see an increases in recreational boaters, kayakers and canoers due to the aesthetics and beach habitat the island would provide. 

		d. Cultural Resources	

The potential for the Project Area to contain intact, significant cultural resources is remote. Construction of the proposed island would partially mimic past floodplain landforms. The Corps has determined that the project will have no adverse effect to historic properties within the Project Area. A synopsis of the cultural resources investigations for the project can be found in Chapter 4.3 of Environmental Assessment. See Appendix H for Section 106 correspondence and Native American consultation. 

G.  Determination of Cumulative Effects on the Aquatic Ecosystem

A number of factors would impact the future environment of the UMR, specifically within Pool 2. Some of those factors include the continued operation and maintenance of the navigation system, hydrologic and hydraulic processes in an altered environment, commercial traffic, public use, point and nonpoint source pollution, commercial and residential development, agricultural practices and watershed management, and exotic species.  The factors most likely to affect the future of the Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island area are those related to public use, shoreline erosion, and turbidity effects due to wind-generated waves. The completed project would provide a recreational benefit that would likely increase public use of the area. The proposed project would decrease the erosion rate on the Lock and Dam 2 embankment and increase and enhance the habitat diversity within the Project Area, resulting in a positive effect on the UMR ecosystem. 

H.  Determination of Secondary Effects on the Aquatic Ecosystem

No significant secondary effects on the aquatic ecosystem would be expected from the proposed action.

III.	 Finding of Compliance With Restrictions on Discharge

1.  No significant adaptations of the guidelines were made relative to this evaluation.



2.  The proposed fill activity would comply with the Section 404(b)(1) guidelines of the Clean Water Act.  The proposed project is the least environmentally damaging practicable alternative.  



3.  There are no practical and feasible alternatives to the placement of fill in the proposed areas that would meet the objectives and goals of this project.



4.  The proposed fill activity would comply with State water quality standards.  The disposal operation would not violate the Toxic Effluent Standards of Section 307 of the Clean Water Act.



5.  The proposed projects would not harm any endangered species or their critical habitat.



6.  The proposed fill activities would not result in significant adverse effects on human health and welfare, including municipal and private water supplies, recreation and commercial fishing. The proposed activities would not adversely affect plankton, fish, shellfish, wildlife, and special aquatic sites. The life stages of aquatic life and other wildlife would not be adversely affected. Significant adverse effects on aquatic ecosystem diversity, productivity, and stability and on recreational, aesthetic, and economic values would not occur.



8.  On the basis of this evaluation, I have determined that the proposed discharge complies with the requirements of the guidelines for discharge of dredged or fill material.













_________________________			Karl D. Jansen

Date									Colonel, Corps of Engineers

									District Engineer
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Sheet1

				Lock and Dam Pool 2 Protective Island Second Data Submittal- Comments

		Comment ID		commenter		Agency		comments received		EAW Section		EA Section		comment		Action Required

		1		Emily Schnick		MPCA		3/26/20		Permits, Section 8				Corps' SDS permit for management and reuse of dredged material is covered by an existing permit (MN0050580) and this project will not need an additional permit.		no

		2		Emily Schnick		MPCA		3/26/20		12.a and 12.b-Contamination/Hazardous Materials/Wastes				EA/EAW should discuss PFAS data the Corps has for the dredged sediment being reused and how it compares to the new PFAS SRVs (soil reference values).		yes

		3		Roberta Getman		MPCA		3/25/20		11.b.ii- stormwater				If the staging area results in disturbance of at least one acre and is above the OHWL, they will need a CSW permit and a SWPPP that describes stormwater BMPs.		maybe, depending on size of staging area

		4		Roberta Getman		MPCA		3/25/20		11.b.ii-stormwater				If the staging are needs the permit, they will need BMPs to control runoff from this area including redundant downgradient sediment controls for encroachments within 50 feet of the river. If this is the case, please provide a short list of likely BMPs.		maybe, depending on size of staging area

		5		Roberta Getman		MPCA		3/25/20		11.a-surface waters				Mississippi is impaired for turbidity- this needs to be mentioned in the EA.		yes

		6		Roberta Getman		MPCA		3/25/20		11.b.i-wastewater				EA does not include plans to limit in water sediment discharges following their proposed alternative method of placing fill. To protect the Mississippi, they should still use in-water BMPs to limit the amount of sediment released downstream as well as use a fill placement method that offers the least sediment release. The current discussion of construction methods offers too little detail to get any impression of the amount of sediment that would enter the river's water column and be released downstream, or any discussion of how this could be minimized, or any discussion of how it could be mitigated.  This is especially relevant given that the Mississippi is impaired for turbidity.		yes

		7		Joel Stiras		DNR-Fisheries		3/17/20		NA- Draft 404(b)				Minor typo edits		yes

		8		Joel Stiras		DNR-Fisheries		3/17/20		6.-Project Description; also 13.c-invasive species		2.2.2-Wetland Construction		Page 14 of the EA…“The emergent wetland area would not be seeded, as it would likely be under water during construction. Instead, it is assumed that this area will self‐vegetate with local emergent wetland plants. The elevation of the emergent wetland should discourage the establishment of invasive species (i.e., reed canary grass) due to the high likelihood of inundation 		yes

														throughout the growing season. After the emergent wetland area is constructed, the emergent wetland berm would bescored or breached in multiple places to the current pool level to promote the passage of water between the emergent wetland and the river.” This is not a good assumption. It is unlikely the emergent wetland area will be seeded with any beneficial native wetland

														vegetation. It is desirable to plant the area with plugs, potted plants, and/or vegetated mats. Species such as pickerelweed, bulrush species (hardstem, softstem, river), sweet flag, and blue flag iris are all plants that can be cultivated (from local seed sources) and planted to provide desirable habitat. Assuming it will self‐vegetate is less work and cost, but also far less likely to establish on its own. IF any vegetation does colonize, it likely would be undesirable plants.

		9		Joel Stiras		DNR-Fisheries		3/17/20		6.-Project Description		2.2.2-Wetland Construction		page 48 of the EA…..		yes

														WETLANDS

														“Currently, the area on the upstream side of the embankment is impounded aquatic habitat that is inundated

														throughout the year and does not contain any wetlands. The Proposed Alternative includes implementing an emergent

														wetland area on the south end of the island (Figure 2‐2). The emergent wetland would be completed using fine

														materials from the fish overwintering area and access dredging cuts, if necessary. This action would create roughly 9.3

														acres of emergent wetland within the Project Area, resulting in substantial benefit for wetlands.”

														If there are no plants, is it still a wetland? It needs to be planted.

		10		Melissa Collins		DNR		3/31/20		6-Project Description; 13.c-invasive species		2.2.2-Wetland Construction		 There is no plan to seed the emergent wetland. This is a reasonable		yes

														strategy for Type 3, Type 4, and Type 5 wetlands, however Type 2 wetlands have a higher level of success and

														species diversity when seeded. Consider seeding these wetland fringe areas in addition to the terrestrial areas.

														There should also be a plan in place to monitor and address invasive species in the emergent wetland.		yes

		11		Melissa Collins		DNR		3/31/20		6.-Project Descriptoin		2.2.2-Rock Groins		Add smaller rock aggregates to the R140 riprap near the shoreline to make it wildlife passable		yes

		12		Melissa Collins		DNR		3/31/20		13.b-rare features		Section 3.2.2 Mussels, Section 4.2.1 Mussels.		The USACE should contact Rich Baker (DNR Endangered Species		yes

														Coordinator) to determine if the sampling method used for surveying the mussel population is comprehensive

														enough, and if a permit to take is necessary. A plan to avoid impact might be needed, such as the relocation of

														existing mussels within the project area.

		13		Timothy Schwarz		MPCA		4/1/20		11.a-surface waters		Section 3.2.5- Water Quality		It looks like ACOE didn’t completely address the comments I originally had on characterizing the water quality of the		yes

														Mississippi River in the project area. The language they use in Section 3.2.5 ‐ Water Quality is likely from an outdated

														assessment. They refer to this reach of the river as suitable for aquatic recreation, which is not accurate due to a

														bacteria impairment. There is no discussion of this bacteria impairment nor of the impairment for nutrients.

														This link is contains information about the impairments on the river:

														https://cf.pca.state.mn.us/water/watershedweb/wdip/waterunit.cfm?wid=07010206‐814. A search for 07010206‐814

														on our Impaired Waters Viewer (IWAV) is also likely of relevance: https://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/impaired‐watersviewer‐iwav



		14		Kathy Metzker		DNR						Figure 2-4		The figure shows plans to have a 'mixed forest' on the edge of the island, distinct from the willows. Willow planting is discussed, but the composition and planting of the mixed forest is not. This should be discussed also.		yes

		15		Kathy Metzker		DNR						Figure 3-4		Figure 3-5 shows the different land uses, including the different kinds of wetlands. Figure 3-4 only shows main channel/impounded/channel border/land/ and lake. Maybe Figure 3-4 should be revised so it can be referenced on page 26 of the EA.		yes

		16		Daniel Dieterman		DNR-Fish and Wildlife								Does not expect any organisms living in the embankment to be impacted by sedimentation/turbidity or other activities stemming from the island construction project		no

		17		Kathy Metzker		DNR				5-Project Location				text says that county parcel data is different from the corps data. How is this possible? Someone will ask about this, so I think we should know the answer.		yes

		18		Kathy Metzker		DNR				6-Project description; 13.c- invasive species				Need to ensure that the seed mixes and native grasses are free of invasives. See https://www.dnr.state.mn.us/waters/watermgmt_section/pwpermits/gp_2004_0001_manual.html for best practices for invasive species prevention and management.		 https://www.dnr.state.mn.us/waters/watermgmt_section/pwpermits/gp_2004_0001_manual.html

		19		Kathy Metzker		DNR				6.d				Minnesota EAW expects beneficiaries of project to be identified. Suggest something like this:  Beneficiaries of the proposed project would include users of the Mississippi River navigation system, taxpayers who pay for maintenance of the lock and dam system, local residents who would otherwise be harmed if the embankment were to fail, and recreationists who would take advantage of the increased recreational opportunities created by construction of the island.  		yes

		20		Kathy Metzker		DNR				8- Permits and Approvals				Appendix E is referenced but was not provided; this should be provided and be part of the ultimate submission		yes

		21		Kathy Metzker		DNR				13.d- Measures taken to avoid, minimize, or mitigate….				Current text says: "The Construction of the offshore island would not impact the embankment or any potential animals that may occupy it."-- We try to avoid making a flat statement of nonimpact. This statement should be revised to say 'impacts are expected to be minimal because....'. DNR remains concerned about impacts to the mussels that were discovered near the embankment. How would potential impacts to the mussels be mitigated?		yes

		22		Kathy Metzker		DNR				14				The first sentence is  'Pool 2 contains numerous historic properties indicating continual human occupation over approximately the last 12,000 years. '-- Does this mean IN Pool 2 (as in the land submerged when Pool 2 was created), or in the area AROUND Pool 2? Please clarify.		yes

		23		Kathy Metzker		DNR				16.b- dust and odors				The statement 'The placement of riprap would likely not generate a noticeable amount o dust' is made- is this because it would be placed underwater? Will any riprap be placed above water? If so, will the riprap be wetted to keep dust down?		yes

		24		Kathy Metzker		DNR				18-Transportation				If the island is left in an incomplete state outside of construction season, or if normal construction is interrupted while the island is unfinished, will it be a safety hazard or impediment to transportation, traffic, or aquatic recreation? What steps would be taken to minimize or mitigate this safety hazard (marker buoys, etc)?		yes

		25		Kathy Metzker		DNR				Exhibit 2-Parcel Information				typo on 'aquired'-- should be 'acquired'		yes

		26		Kate Fairman		DNR				6.b.- construction timing				Can the project proposer be more specific about season and number of years needed to complete the project?		yes

		27		Kathy Metzker		DNR				6.b-construction-Emergent Wetland Construction				The average elevation of the wetland would be set to 0.5 feet below Low Control Pool (LCP) or 658.6’. '-- what datum is this? NAVD88? 		yes

		28		Kathy Metzker		DNR				6.b-island seeding and vegetation				Figure 2-4 shows willows and grasses and mixed forest as two separate units, implying that trees in addition to willows would be planted. However, these trees and their planting are not mentioned. Clarify.		yes

		29		Kathy Metzker		DNR				12.c.- Hazardous materials				This section contains the sentence 'Handling, storage and disposal of this hazardous waste would be conducted to prevent contamination, following standard   industry Best Management Practices'- does this apply to staging areas as well? Please clarify.		yes



https://www.dnr.state.mn.us/waters/watermgmt_section/pwpermits/gp_2004_0001_manual.html


Exhibit 4. Well and boring reports near the Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project
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Appendix B:

Minnesota EAW Supplement

Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project

Minnesota EAW Item Identification

A supplement prepared for the Minnesota DNR to identify locations of EAW Items within the Draft Environmental Assessment



1. Project Title: Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project

2. Proposer – U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

Contact Person: 	Trevor W. Cyphers

Fishery Biologist

St. Paul District, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

180 Fifth Street East, Suite 700

Saint Paul, MN 55101-1678

Telephone: 651-290-5031

Email: trevor.w.cyphers@usace.army.mil

3. RGU – Minnesota Department of Natural Resources

Contact Person: 	Kathy Metzker

Land Use Hydrologist | Environmental Review Unit

Minnesota Department of Natural Resources

Division of Ecological and Water Resources

500 Lafayette Road North

Saint Paul, MN 55155

Telephone: 651-259-5694

Email: Kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us

4. Reason for EAW Preparation – The proposed action is a required mandatory EAW under Subpart 27, Wetlands and Public Waters, Item A.

5. Project Location 

County: Dakota

City/Township: Hasting and Nininger Township

PLS Location: Sections 16, 17, 20, 21 within Township 115N, Range 17W	

Watershed: Mississippi River & Lake Pepin

GPS Coordinates: Southwest edge – 44.75484; -92.87797, Center – 44.75701; -92.87342, Northeast edge: - 44.75903; -92.87034	 

Tax Parcel IDs: Dakota County – 037-037-190200001010, 037-037-190210060010 (Exhibit 1).

County parcel information for the project area differs to what the USACE has for that area (Exhibit 2).	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: How does this happen?

* See Chapter 1.3 of the EA for additional information regarding project location.	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Double check text, but this reference is probably okay here

At a minimum attach each of the following to the EAW:	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Need to make sure these are included

· County map showing the general location of the project;



· U.S. Geological Survey 7.5 minute, 1:24,000 scale map indicating project boundaries (photocopy acceptable);

	

· Site plans showing all significant project and natural features. Pre-construction site plan and post-construction site plan.

6. Project Description

a. Provide the brief project summary to be published in the EQB Monitor, (approximately 50 words).– The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Paul District is proposing to protect the Lock and Dam 2 embankment from erosion through construction of an offshore protective island. The island would result in a variety of unique habitat types that are not currently present above the Lock and Dam 2 embankment. Some of these habitat types include; wooded/forest, brush/grassland, beach, fish overwintering and emergent wetlands.  The island would be constructed with sediments dredged from the Mississippi River.

b. Give a complete description of the proposed project and related new construction, including infrastructure needs. If the project is an expansion include a description of the existing facility. Emphasize:  1) construction, operation methods and features that will cause physical manipulation of the environment or will produce wastes, 2) modifications to existing equipment or industrial processes, 3) significant demolition, removal or remodeling of existing structures, and 4) timing and duration of construction activities.

The primary goal of the Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project is to protect the embankment from the multiple erosive forces acting on it. A secondary goal of the project is to provide a beneficial use of dredged material within Pool 2. In order to accomplish this, an offshore protective island would be constructed upstream of the existing embankment using dredged material (sand) made up of conventional sand (granular) and fine-grained sand (silts and clays, fine fill or fines) from dredged material placement sites within Pool 2 (Figure 2-1). The design of the protective island would diminish the erosive forces acting on the embankment and allow for a large quantity of dredged material from Pool 2 to be used in a beneficial manner. 

An offshore protective island near the Lock and Dam 2 embankment would prevent erosion to the embankment during both low and high water conditions by reducing wind fetch and ice action. The island would be equipped with rock groins and a riprap bullnose structure to provide protection and stability, since the main erosive forces would be acting on the island instead of the embankment (Figure 2-2). The island would provide the necessary protection to the embankment without requiring additional work to the embankment itself (i.e., riprap armoring). 

In addition to embankment protection, a number of features would be implemented during construction to provide environmental benefits to the Project Area (Figure 2-2). These features would include an area of emergent wetland behind the island, an area of overwintering fish habitat, and varying elevations that would sustain different vegetation types (Figures 2-3, 2-4, 2-5). Varying vegetation types would result in different terrestrial habitat, which would allow for a greater variety of native species that could utilize these habitats. Higher elevations on the island would provide sustained protection to the embankment during severe flood events. 

 PROTECTIVE ISLAND IMPLEMENTATION AND CONSTRUCTION

Construction of the protective island would utilize mostly granular dredged materials (sand) for the island base and fine fill for the top of the island (Figure 2-5). A fine fill mixture would be used as a turf to promote vegetation growth that would result in added erosion control, stability and habitat diversity (Figure 2-4). Fine fill material dredged from the access and overwintering cuts would be placed in the emergent wetland area. Prior to filling in the emergent wetland area with fines, part of the island and emergent wetland berm would need to be built in order to contain the fines procured from the access cuts and overwintering area. Granular material for the base of the island and the dry fines for the topsoil would come from dredged material placement sites throughout Pool 2 (Figure 2-1).

The Corps has evaluated the proposed island for general constructability, which includes building the island mechanically, hydraulically or a combination of both. The Corps is not restricting the awarded contractor’s construction methodology; however, there would be stipulations in place that the contractor would have to follow. The sections below discuss the different construction options, features, best management practices and how the proposed project construction would potentially be implemented. 

ISLAND CONSTRUCTION 

As mentioned above, the Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project could be constructed using mechanical, hydraulic, or a combination of both construction options. During construction the awarded contractor would implement best management practices to reduce the negative impacts associated with the island construction (i.e., silt curtains, implement natural erosion control products, reduce the spread of invasive species). The contractor would submit an environmental protection plan to demonstrate how best management practices would be used during the construction process. Any federal, state or local ordinances would be followed to minimize construction impacts. Finally, the contractor would follow any requirements established by the Minnesota Public Waters Work Permit or other required permits. 



Mechanical construction would utilize barges, excavators and bulldozers to implement the proposed project. Granular sand would be excavated mechanically from dredged material placement sites (Figure 2-1) within Pool 2 and moved via barges to the Project Area to construct the island base. Once the necessary amount of material is excavated from the placement sites, the contractor would shape the finished stockpiles to provide positive drainage. The action of removing and placing sand at the temporary placement sites and any potential impacts attributed to those actions, are discussed and covered (NEPA compliance) under the 1997 CMMP. These actions are permitted by the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (MN DNR) via a Public Waters Work General Permit (See Chapter 5.3.3 of the EA).	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Should reference the EAW portion with permit discussion in it

If necessary, the contractor would access the new island footprint by dredging access channels in the proposed locations and building construction pads to assist with the construction of the island base (Figure 2-6). Any access dredged material generated from this process would need to be handled in the proper manner (See Access Dredging section below). 

Granular fill would be placed in the island footprint using an excavator and shaped to the specified elevations, likely via a bulldozer (Figure 2-3). Once the emergent wetland berm and necessary island sections are constructed, fines from access cuts and the fish overwintering area could be dredged mechanically and placed within the emergent wetland area (Figure 2-2, 2-6). After the base of the island is constructed to match the necessary specifications, dry fines would be placed in the designated areas to provide a base for vegetation (Figure 2-5). Dry fines would be moved mechanically via barge from dredged material placement sites in the same fashion as granular material. Rock for the bullnose features and rock groins would be placed mechanically in a fashion to produce a well-graded mass with minimal void spaces. 

The proposed island base could also be constructed using hydraulic dredging equipment. This would likely involve bringing dry granular material from the dredged material placement sites via barge and placing it inter a hopper barge near the Project Area that can re-slurry granular material. This mixture of sand and water would then be pumped with hydraulic dredging equipment into the island footprint. During this process, parts of the island could be constructed from a distance. This process would provide the necessary containment needed for the placement of fine materials into the emergent wetland area by constructing the necessary berms around this area. Fines from the access cuts and the fish overwinter area could be placed within the emergent wetland area using hydraulic dredging equipment. 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: How would the project avoid exacerbating the river’s turbidity problem?

If the contractor has the capability, they could also construct the proposed island using a combination of mechanical and hydraulic construction equipment. As mentioned previously, the construction method would be left up to the contractor and likely driven by cost. The contractor would be responsible for providing the finished proposed project in a manner that is best suited for their operation while minimizing environmental damage and adhering to any permit requirements.  

ISLAND CONSTRUCTION TIMING 

Due to the project location and nature of the construction, nearly all the work would require the use of marine equipment, thus limiting construction to the open water season on the UMR. Construction in certain years can begin in April, but May is a more typical month for beginning construction due to the constraints associated with spring high water.  The construction season usually lasts until late November when work must stop due to winter freeze-up. The implementation year for the proposed project would depend on the availability of funds. Based on the current O&M budget and project priorities within the St. Paul District, it is estimated that construction of this project would begin during the 2021 construction season. There is the possibility that the proposed project would take multiple field seasons to construct and fully implement.	Comment by Kate Fairman: I wonder if we could get them to be any more specific about season and number of years to complete the project	Comment by Kathleen Metzker:  

ACCESS DREDGING 

The proposed project has the potential to generate access dredged material (fines) that the contractor would need to store in the proper fashion. If the emergent wetland berm and the island around the emergent wetland area is completed, access dredged material could be placed within the emergent wetland area to begin the establishment of the emergent wetland. If this portion of the island is not constructed, access dredged material would need to be contained or stored in barges or moved to one of the authorized dredged material placement sites (Figure 2-1). 

CONSTRUCTION STAGING AREAS 

In order for the contractor to complete the proposed project, land within the Corps’ Lock and Dam 2 facility would be provided as a construction staging area (Figure 2-6). This would provide the contractor with an area to get construction equipment and other necessary material to the Project Area in order to complete the proposed island. This area includes a barge loading and unloading area that would utilize the Corps’ loading platform at the far south of the Lock and Dam 2 facility. The staging area would also provide space for parking and a construction trailer, if necessary. The contractor would provide signage indicating which areas would be closed off to the public for safety reasons. Any alterations or disturbances made to the staging area by the contractor during construction would be restored to the original condition.	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Maybe this figure would give us an idea of the maximum size of the staging area. If the staging area is = 1 acre, MPCA has additional requirements that must be met. See comment spreadsheet for details.


 PROTECTIVE ISLAND CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 

EMERGENT WETLAND CONSTRUCTION 

The emergent wetland area would be positioned on the interior or embankment side of the island and be contained by the island and the emergent wetland berm. (Figure 2-2, 2-3). Fine fill material procured from the fish overwintering area and access dredging cuts (if applicable) would be placed within the wetland area to promote wetland plant growth. The average elevation of the wetland would be set to 0.5 feet below Low Control Pool (LCP) or 658.6’. The final elevation of the fine material would be variable by plus or minus one foot of elevation, which would provide varying habitat and promote a variety of wetland plants. The emergent wetland area would not be seeded, as it would likely be under water during construction. Instead, it is assumed that this area will self-vegetate with local emergent wetland plants. The elevation of the emergent wetland should discourage the establishment of invasive species (i.e., reed canary grass) due to the high likelihood of inundation throughout the growing season. After the emergent wetland area is constructed, the emergent wetland berm would be scored or breached in multiple places to the current pool level to promote the passage of water between the emergent wetland and the river. Granular material from the scoring or breaching process would be incorporated or spread into the emergent wetland area. 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Which datum? NAVD 88?	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: MN DNR does not advocate this approach. The wetland should be vegetated. See comment spreadsheet for more details.

FISH OVERWINTERING AREA 

The fish overwintering area would be used to procure the fine fill material necessary to fill in the emergent wetland area. This area would be dredged at two varying elevations, six and eight feet below LCP (Figure 2-2). Once completed, this dredged area would provide a unique habitat for fish that is currently not available within the Project Area. 

ISLAND SEEDING AND VEGETATION

Upon constructing the base of the island using granular sand, the contractor would bring in dry fines for soil and turf establishment from approved dredged material placement sites within Pool 2 (Figure 2-1). The depth of fines placed on the granular sand would be dependent on the elevation of the island and would vary between 24, 18 and 12 inches (Figure 2-5), which coincides with the seeding and vegetation plan (Figure 2-4). Seeding would involve the contractor covering all fine fill areas with either permanent native grasses or a winter wheat mixture. Winter wheat would be utilized if the permanent native grasses could not be established before the end of the growing season. The winter wheat mixture would provide winter erosion protection and temporary surface erosion control. If winter wheat is used, the contractor would establish native grasses the following construction season. Willow planting would be implemented on the exterior and interior of the 12 inch fine fill areas (Figure 2-4, 2-5). Planting would consist of 2 rows of willows, two feet apart and staggered. Once native grasses and willows are fully established, a mixture of native tree species would be planted within the 24 and 18 inch fine fill areas as part of a separate contract (Figure 2-4, 2-5).  	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Need to ensure that the seed mixes and native grasses are free of invasives. See https://www.dnr.state.mn.us/waters/watermgmt_section/pwpermits/gp_2004_0001_manual.html for best practices for invasive species prevention and management.	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Figure 2-4 shows willows and grasses and mixed forest as two separate units, implying that trees in addition to willows would be planted. However, these trees and their planting are not mentioned. Clarify.

ROCK GROINS 

Rockfill for both the rock groins and bullnose structure would consist of R140 riprap from an authorized commercial quarry. Rock would not be placed until after the base of the island or the granular sand is in place. Rockfill could be barged to the island and placed using mechanical equipment (e.g., excavators) from the new island base or placed from the water via excavator barge. Once complete the rock groins and bullnose structure would provide structural integrity to the island.



a. Project Magnitude – Total Acreage Directly Impacted: 44.2 total acres, roughly 5.4 acres of which would be linked to access dredging (if necessary). Estimated volume of fill material is provided in Appendix C.



b. Explain the project purpose; if the project will be carried out by a governmental unit, explain the need for the project and identify its beneficiaries.

Background 

The St. Paul District U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) is proposing to implement a project to protect and stabilize the current earthen embankment at Lock and Dam 2 of the Upper Mississippi River (UMR). Lock and Dam 2 creates Pool 2 of the UMR, is located at River Mile 815.2, and is entirely within Minnesota. The current riprap on the Lock and Dam 2 embankment is becoming degraded due to erosion from long wind fetch, moderate ice action and a lack of protective vegetation. Wind fetch at Lock and Dam 2 is close to three miles in length, making the forces acting on the embankment some of the strongest in the St. Paul District. For this reason, increased protective measures at Lock and Dam 2 are required. 

A summary of the repair needs at the Lock and Dam 2 embankment were determined through a Problem Appraisal Report (PAR) completed by the Corps in November 2017. This PAR focused on evaluating the embankments of Locks and Dams 2 through 10 on the UMR to assess condition, prioritize needs, and recommend protection strategies.  Options evaluated in the PAR included adding additional riprap to the current embankment, constructing an offshore island, and/or building a riparian berm adjacent to the embankment (Figure 1-1). Offshore islands and riparian berms could be implemented as either a high or low elevation structure, with the high option demanding more dredged material. The construction option chosen by the Corps would need to provide sufficient erosion protection, thus ensuring embankment stability. In addition to providing protection to earthen embankments, the PAR considered the use of dredged material to provide environmental benefits. The environmental goal for embankment rehabilitation was to incorporate prudent measures that would advance the environmental sustainability of the UMR. Through the PAR, Lock and Dam 2 was deemed as a high priority.	

 Purpose and Scope of the Project

The goal of the Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project would be to protect the current earthen embankment and implement a beneficial use of dredged material. The earthen embankment along with Lock and Dam 2 maintains the water surface elevation in Pool 2, making it a vital structure within the area. As mentioned above, the major stressors acting on the embankment are long wind fetch and moderate ice action, resulting in reoccurring degradation and erosion. Lessening or eliminating these stressors on the earthen embankment would ensure the longevity of the structure. 

Beneficiaries of the proposed project would include users of the Mississippi River navigation system, taxpayers who pay for maintenance of the lock and dam system, local residents who would otherwise be harmed if the embankment were to fail, and recreationists who would take advantage of the increased recreational opportunities created by construction of the island. 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Check with trevor to make sure this statement is okay

c. Are future stages of this development including development on any other property planned or likely to happen? -No

If yes, briefly describe future stages, relationship to present project, timeline and plans for environmental review. None planned. Related studies and reports are listed in Chapter 1.5 of the Federal Environmental Assessment.

d. Is this a subsequent stage? If yes, briefly describe the past development, timeline and any past environmental review. – The project is linked to the Corps’ ongoing management of the Nine-Foot Navigation Channel Project. For that reason, this project is considered a phased action of two previously reviewed projects: Pool 2 Dredged Material Management Plan (DMMP) and Lower Pool 2 Channel Management Study (CMS): Boulanger Bend to Lock and Dam No. 2.  The DMMP addresses long term management and storage of sediments dredged from the Mississippi to maintain channel navigability, and is currently under development. The Channel Management Study (1996) and its Environmental Impact Statement (EIS; 1997) describe the Corps’ plan for channel management and maintenance in Pool 2. Both the Pool 2 DMMP and the CMS are supplements to the Corps’ Channel Maintenance Management Plan.



7. Cover Types – Below are the cover types, in acres, of the project area before and after the implementation of the proposed project. Changes in habitat types are further discussed in Chapter 4.2 of the EA. 

		Habitat Type 

		Before 

		After 



		Impounded aquatic habitat

		38.8

		0.0



		Fish overwintering habitat

		0.0

		8.6



		Wetland a

		0.0

		9.3



		Wooded/forest 

		0.0

		2.8



		Brush/grassland

		0.0

		7.6



		Beach habitat

		0.0

		4.7



		Littoral zone

		0.0

		4.9



		Riprap 

		0.0

		0.9



		Total

		38.8

		38.8
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8. Permits and Approvals Required: List all known local, state and federal permits, approvals, certifications and financial assistance for the project. Include modifications of any existing permits, governmental review of plans and all direct and indirect forms of public financial assistance including bond guarantees, Tax Increment Financing and infrastructure.  All of these final decisions are prohibited until all appropriate environmental review has been completed. See Minnesota Rules, Chapter 4410.3100. – 



		Permit

		Responsible Agency 

		Status



		Clean Water Act Section 401 Water Quality Certification

		Minnesota Pollution Control Agency

		Not yet applied for



		Public Waters Work Permit

		Minnesota Department of Natural Resources

		Not yet applied for



		Endangered Species Takings Permit

		Minnesota Department of Natural Resources

		Will apply for if required



		National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit

		Minnesota Pollution Control Agency

		Will apply for if required



		

		

		







Planning for the overall project has been coordinated with the public, state and federal agencies, and other interested parties. Detailed descriptions of compliance efforts for certain regulations can be found in the coordination appendix (Appendix E).	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Don’t have Appendix E; should get it



The activities associated with the proposed project and the construction of the protective island would result in the placement of fill into waters of the United States. For this reason, a Clean Water Act Section 401 Water Quality Certification from the State of Minnesota would be requested by the Environmental Compliance Branch of the Corps, which would be based on the Corps’ 404(b)(1) evaluation of the proposed project (Appendix C). 



In compliance with the Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act, project plans and potential impacts were coordinated with the Minnesota/Wisconsin Ecological Services Field Office on March 9th, 2020 via telephone call. During this conversation the USFWS concurred with the Corps’ determination that the proposed project would have no effect on Federally-listed threatened and endangered species within the Project Area. Federal and state agencies will have the opportunity to review and comment on the project during the public review of the EA.	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Do we have this concurrence record?- Can’t find it, but maybe we don’t need it since the field office will have opportunity to comment on the project.



The Corps would submit an application to the MN DNR for a Public Waters Work Permit. The action of removing and placing any dredged material (granular or fine sand) on temporary placement sites during the Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project is covered under a MN DNR Public Waters Work General Permit (General Permit Number: 1994-5082). The Corps’ existing SDS permit (MN0050580) for management and reuse of dredged material also applies to the management of dredged materials for this project, and the Corps will not need an additional permit for this purpose.  Some additional permits and environmental planning may fall under the responsibility of the contractor conducting the proposed project. The contractor would be responsible for construction permits as necessary, such as a National Pollution Discharge Elimination System permit. These responsibilities would be detailed in the Specification document provided to the contractor.  	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: According to MPCA	Comment by Kate Fairman: Did we get this confirmed?

9. Land Use

a. Describe:

i. Existing land use of the site as well as areas adjacent to and near the site, including parks, trails, prime or unique farmlands. 

The Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project Area is located at the downstream end of Pool 2 near the right descending bank of the Mississippi River at RM 815.2 (Figure 1-2), in the city limits of Hastings, Minnesota. The pool is part of the Mississippi River’s lock and dam system, which manages commercial navigation on the Mississippi River.  The river’s navigation channel, to the east of Pool 2, is maintained at a depth of nine feet by periodic dredging to facilitate navigation. Pool 2 is also used for aquatic recreation. The pool is on the upstream side of the lock and dam’s embankment. On the downstream side is Lake Rebecca, which was once a side channel lake (King Lake) of the Mississippi River before construction of the lock and dam. 

Land use surrounding Pool 2 is a mix of public lands, agricultural land, forests, wetlands, and low density residential neighborhoods, The area surrounding the Project Area has a number of scenic lookouts that provide the opportunity to observe the landscape of the UMR. The embankment itself contains a walking trail that can be utilized to see the surrounding areas (i.e., Lake Rebecca, Pool 2). Other areas of interest  near the Project Area include the Spring Lake Park Reserve, which includes Schaar’s Bluff Trail and lookout; Gray Cloud Dunes Scientific and Natural Area (SNA); Spring Lake Island Wildlife Management Area (WMA); and Lake Rebecca Park  (Figure 3-1). 

The neighborhoods nearest the Project Area are Eagle Bluff and Featherstone Road, which would be most impacted by the proposed project. The neighborhood closest to the Project Area, Eagle Bluff, contains around 80 residential parcels, 13 of which are adjacent to the Mississippi River. This neighborhood is classified as a River Neighborhood by the MRCCA district classification, while Featherstone Road is not visible from the river and classified as a district Separated from the River. 

 RECREATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES

In the past, poor water quality has limited the recreational value of Pool 2. Recent improvements and interest in the water quality of this region continue to increase the potential for recreational activities. As of 2004, there were 11 boat accesses and 5 marinas in Pool 2. The lower section of Pool 2 is less developed than the rest of the pool and offers fishing and boating opportunities. Private docks and accesses are also scattered throughout the region, including several docks at the southern end of the pool near the Lock and Dam 2 embankment. The Project Area encompasses several walking and biking trails, specifically the Mississippi River Regional Trail, which is a partially completed 27-mile trail within Dakota County. A section of this trail lies within the Project Area and crosses the Lock and Dam 2 embankment. Other recreational opportunities just south of the Project Area include Lake Rebecca Park and Jaycee Park. Lake Rebecca Park is situated around parts of Lake Rebecca and has a boat launch, fishing pier and picnic tables. Jaycee Park has a number of picnic tables and benches and includes a boat launch and dock, providing access to Pool 3 of the UMR (Figure 3-1). 

LAND USE AND COVER TYPES 

The Project Area is located almost entirely within the UMR floodplain. According to the UMR aquatic habitat classification system (Wilcox 1993), the north side of the Project Area is impounded aquatic habitat, while the south side is classified as lake habitat (Figure 3-3). According to the Minnesota National Wetland Inventory (NWI) the Project Area has a mixture of riverine, lake and freshwater pond habitat. From a wetland standpoint there are both emergent wetlands and forested/shrub wetlands on the downstream side of the embankment (Figure 3-4). Using the Upper Mississippi River Restoration (UMRR) Program – Long Term Resource Monitoring (LTRM) data there are a total of seven different class descriptions (of 15 total class descriptions) within the Project Area. These classifications include: open water, road/levee, developed, wet forest, shallow marsh, deep marsh, submersed aquatic vegetation, and upland forest (Figure 3-5). 

ii. Plans.  Describe planned land use as identified in comprehensive plan (if available) and any other applicable plan for land use, water, or resources management by a local, regional, state, or federal agency.

Because the Project Area is within the MNRRA and MCRRA corridors, many of the surrounding government units have comprehensive plans to guide planning and development activities in accordance with the rules governing these areas. These rules were updated in 2017, and all MRCCA communities are currently in the process of adopting new comprehensive plans and ordinances for the MRCCA.   In general, these plans are in place to preserve and enhance the natural and aesthetic resources of the UMR and MNRRA and MRCCA corridors. Land adjacent to the Project Area is classified within the Dakota County Comprehensive Plan into two distinct MRCCA districts, Rural and Open Space (CA-ROS) and River Neighborhood (CA-RN). In Hastings, land in the MRCCA near the project area is classified as CA-ROS, CA-RN, and Separated From River (CA-SR). Minnesota Rules 6106.0100 defines the character of these districts, and their management requirements, as follows:	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Added a lot of this from Minnesota Rules

 Rural and open space district (CA-ROS): 

· The rural and open space district (CA-ROS) is characterized by rural and low-density development patterns and land uses, and includes land that is riparian or visible from the river, as well as large, undeveloped tracts of high ecological and scenic value, floodplain, and undeveloped islands. Many primary conservation areas exist in the district. 

· The CA-ROS district must be managed to sustain and restore the rural and natural character of the corridor and to protect and enhance habitat, parks and open space, public river corridor views, and scenic, natural, and historic areas.

River neighborhood district (CA-RN): 

· The river neighborhood district (CA-RN) is characterized by primarily residential neighborhoods that are riparian or readily visible from the river or that abut riparian parkland. The district includes parks and open space, limited commercial development, marinas, and related land uses. 

· The CA-RN district must be managed to maintain the character of the river corridor within the context of existing residential and related neighborhood development, and to protect and enhance habitat, parks and open space, public river corridor views, and scenic, natural, and historic areas. Minimizing erosion and the flow of untreated storm water into the river and enhancing habitat and shoreline vegetation are priorities in the district.

Separated from river district (CA-SR): 

· The separated from river district (CA-SR) is characterized by its physical and visual distance from the Mississippi River. The district includes land separated from the river by distance, topography, development, or a transportation corridor. The land in this district is not readily visible from the Mississippi River. 

· The CA-SR district provides flexibility in managing development without negatively affecting the key resources and features of the river corridor. Minimizing negative impacts to primary conservation areas and minimizing erosion and flow of untreated storm water into the Mississippi River are priorities in the district.

Similarly, the Hastings municipal Comprehensive Plan classified most of the land adjacent to the Project Area as an Urban Diversified District, meaning the lands and waters within this district should be developed to maintain the present diversity of commercial industrial, residential, and public uses of the land. This land classification should also protect historical sites, natural areas, environmental resources, and expand public access to and enjoyment of the river.  The proposed project is consistent with the management goals as expressed in the communities’ comprehensive plans.

Zoning, including special districts or overlays such as shoreland, floodplain, wild and scenic rivers, critical area, agricultural preserves, etc.– 

The Project Area and adjacent lands are in the shoreland district of the Mississippi River and in the MRCCA Rural and Open Space (CA-ROS) and River Neighborhood (CA-RN) Districts.  ROS districts are rural undeveloped and developed low density residential land that is riparian or visible from the river and often contains tracts of high quality ecological resources, while CA-RN is developed residential land and existing or  planned parkland that is visible from the river or borders riparian parkland. The planned project is consistent with the goals of these districts.

b. Discuss the project’s compatibility with nearby land uses, zoning, and plans listed in Item 9a above, concentrating on implications for environmental effects.  –Nearby land uses include residences, outdoor recreation, conservation, and commercial navigation.  The proposed project would be compatible with these land uses and would enhance recreation and conservation goals. The proposed island would also be compatible with the different MNRRA and MRCCA plans in place by the local governmental units, as it would provide additional environmental resources, aesthetic value and recreation opportunities to the immediate project area. Also, the proposed island would not impact any extant historical sites and natural areas. 

c. Identify measures incorporated into the proposed project to mitigate any potential incompatibility as discussed in Item 9b above. – No land use incompatibilities were identified, therefore no mitigation has been proposed.

10. Geology, soils, and topography/landforms

a. Geology - Describe the geology underlying the project area and identify and map any susceptible geologic features such as sinkholes, shallow limestone formations, unconfined/shallow aquifers, or karst conditions. Discuss any limitations of these features for the project and any effects the project could have on these features. Identify any project designs or mitigation measures to address effects to geologic features– 

The proposed project area is on the UMR in a glacial valley, located in the Central Lowlands Physiographic Province. Regional topography in Dakota County is comprised of undulating till covered highlands with large outwash plains divided by modern streams. The UMR is entrenched in a glacial valley with steep riverbanks that can reach upwards of a few hundred feet in height. Upland areas on both banks of the river have a thin mantle of glacial soils overlying sedimentary rock, with bedrock consisting of alternating layers of limestone, siltstone, shale, and sandstone.	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Should mention depth to bedrock and the names of the formations

Lock and Dam 2 and the embankment are primarily situated on alluvial and lacustrine deposits consisting of poorly graded sands, sands/silts, and silts/gravels. The most recent sediments were predominantly deposited by modern streams during episodes of flooding. In the early Holocene (10,000 years ago), Lake Pepin formed as the Chippewa River Delta impounded the Mississippi River. Early Lake Pepin is thought to have existed upstream of the Project Area to St. Paul, MN. During the impoundment of Lake Pepin large amounts of clays were deposited within the Project Area.  These deposits consisted of interbedded fat clays and silts up to 50 feet thick. The deposits of clay stratum have resulted in settlement and rotation of the original lock walls.

No sinkholes, shallow limestone formations, or karst conditions exist in or near the project area.

See Chapter 3.2.1 of the EA (Geomorphology) and the Geotechnical Design and Geology Report (Appendix G) for further information.

b. Soils and topography - Describe the soils on the site, giving NRCS (SCS) classifications and descriptions, including limitations of soils.  Describe topography, any special site conditions relating to erosion potential, soil stability or other soils limitations, such as steep slopes, highly permeable soils.  Provide estimated volume and acreage of soil excavation and/or grading. Discuss impacts from project activities (distinguish between construction and operational activities) related to soils and topography.  Identify measures during and after project construction to address soil limitations including stabilization, soil corrections or other measures.  Erosion/sedimentation control related to stormwater runoff should be addressed in response to Item 11.b.ii.	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Need to add table showing the soils’ NRCS classifications	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Sounds good to me.

Soil borings taken near the Project Area indicate that near surface soils consist of alluvial sands or lacustrine clays. The alluvial sands are typically loose at the surface but increase in density with depth. Underlying the alluvial and lacustrine deposits is the bedrock unit known as the Franconia Formation, which consists of fine grained sandstone approximately 60-80 feet thick. This formation can be found at varying elevations across the valley from 500 to 600 feet (NAVD88).

Soil borings were also used to determine the subsurface composition of the Project Area, which then helped determine island alignment (Figure 3-6). The alignment was chosen in an attempt to avoid the deepest and softest clay deposits to reduce island settlement and material displacement during construction. Though the thickest layer of clays would be avoided through the realignment, there would still likely be some settlement of sand with the construction of the Proposed Alternative. To compensate for settlement, material would be placed in a fashion that would build up the base of the island before the necessary allotment is placed to achieve the desired island elevations. The necessary fill to construct the island would be calculated to adjust for island settlement.

Due to the geomorphology of the Project Area, construction could cause lateral movement of the underlying (existing) substrate, often referred to colloquially as a “mud-wave”. Lateral displacement could occur in a semi-liquid fashion, in which the material is simply “squeezed” outwards from beneath the fill in a plastic fashion, where soil masses or wedges of material would be displaced outwards from the fill. The displacement of this material would only be expected to occur during sand placement or construction, and would result in a more variable substrate elevation around the islands. 

Additional information regarding geomorphology of the Project Area can be found in Appendix F, Geotechnical Design and Geology Report.

11. Water Resources

a. Describe surface water and groundwater features on or near the site in a.i. and a.ii., below.

i. Surface water - lakes, streams, wetlands, intermittent channels, and county/judicial ditches. Include any special designations such as public waters, trout stream/lake, wildlife lakes, migratory waterfowl feeding/resting lake, and outstanding resource value water.  Include water quality impairments or special designations listed on the current MPCA 303d Impaired Waters List that are within 1 mile of the project.  Include DNR Public Waters Inventory number(s), if any –	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Need to mention impairments here

 The proposed project would take place in the impounded aquatic area above the Lock and Dam 2 embankment. This section of the Mississippi River is classified as “U.S. Lock and Dam #2 Pool (DOW Lake ID Number 19000500). The shoreland classification of the Lock and Dam 2 embankment is classified as General Development (GD). Other designated public waters within one mile of the Project Area includes "Rebecca Lake (DOW Lake ID Number 19000300), which has a shoreline classification of Natural Environment (NE) and is listed as impaired for aquatic consumption due to mercury. The project area is not within a designated wild, scenic, or recreational river segment; however, it is within the Mississippi National River and Recreation Area (MNRRA) and Mississippi River Corridor Critical Area (MRCCA). The Lower St. Croix River, designated as a recreational river segment, flows into the Mississippi River four river miles downstream of the project area, beyond Lock and Dam 2. There are no designated wildlife lakes, trout lakes or streams, or calcareous fens identified within or near the project area.

		Basin Name

		DOW Lake ID Number

		Shoreland Classification

		Impairments or other Special Characteristics



		Lock and Dam #2 Pool

		19000500

		General Development (GD)

		See Mississippi River, below



		Lake Rebecca

		19000300

		Natural Environment (NE)

		Impaired for Aquatic Consumption Due to Mercury; TMDL for Mercury







Watercourses within one mile of the Project Area include:

		Watercourse

		Shoreland Classification

		Location

		Impairments or other Special Characteristics



		Mississippi

		Transition 

		Throughout the project area

		Aquatic Consumption, Aquatic Life, Aquatic Recreation. TMDLs approved for mercury; TSS. Additional impairments: Aluminum, Fecal Coliform bacteria, nutrients, PCBs, PFOS



		Unnamed

		Tributary

		S36-T27N-R21W

		



		unnamed

		tributary

		S35-T27N-R21W

		Impaired for Aquatic Life (fish bioassessment)







According to the Minnesota National Wetland Inventory (NWI) the Project Area has a mixture of riverine, lake and freshwater pond habitat. From a wetland standpoint there are both emergent wetlands and forested/shrub wetlands on the downstream side of the embankment (Figure 3-4).

ii. Groundwater – aquifers, springs, seeps. Include:  1) depth to groundwater; 2) if project is within a MDH wellhead protection area; 3) identification of any onsite and/or nearby wells, including unique numbers and well logs if available.  If there are no wells known on site or nearby, explain the methodology used to determine this. –

 The project is not expected to have any groundwater impacts. The following considerations contributed to this determination: 

1. Depth to groundwater at the proposed project area would be 0 feet as dredged material would be placed into open water and on the existing bed of the river. 

2. The project area is not within a wellhead protection area(WHPA) as of July 15, 2019, the date of the data provided on the Minnesota Department of Health website (Exhibit 3): https://gisdata.mn.gov/dataset/water-wellhead-protection-areas

3. There are nine known wells near the project area.  Of these, two are active, one is sealed and six have an unknown status (Exhibit 3). Well and Boring Reports of all wells depicted in Exhibit 3 can be found in Exhibit 4.

b. Describe effects from project activities on water resources and measures to minimize or mitigate the effects in Item b.i. through Item b.iv. below. 

i. Wastewater - For each of the following, describe the sources, quantities and composition of all sanitary, municipal/domestic and industrial wastewater produced or treated at the site. 

1)	If the wastewater discharge is to a publicly owned treatment facility, identify any pretreatment measures and the ability of the facility to handle the added water and waste loadings, including any effects on, or required expansion of, municipal wastewater infrastructure. 

2)	If the wastewater discharge is to a subsurface sewage treatment system (SSTS), describe the system used, the design flow, and suitability of site conditions for such a system. 

3)	If the wastewater discharge is to surface water, identify the wastewater treatment methods and identify discharge points and proposed effluent limitations to mitigate impacts. Discuss any effects to surface or groundwater from wastewater discharges.

–The Proposed project would not produce any traditional wastewater through the construction and implementation process. Possible hydraulic construction of the island and emergent wetland would involve carriage water; however, this water would come from the river and not be altered chemically. This action would comply with any requirements established by the Minnesota Public Waters Permit or other required permits.

ii. Stormwater - Describe the quantity and quality of stormwater runoff at the site prior to and post construction. Include the routes and receiving water bodies for runoff from the site (major downstream water bodies as well as the immediate receiving waters). Discuss any environmental effects from stormwater discharges.  Describe stormwater pollution prevention plans including temporary and permanent runoff controls and potential BMP site locations to manage or treat stormwater runoff. Identify specific erosion control, sedimentation control or stabilization measures to address soil limitations during and after project construction.  

N/A – No stormwater impacts are anticipated, as the project is to be constructed within an existing water body.   If necessary, the awarded contractor would be responsible for acquiring any permits associated with stormwater runoff (i.e., NPDES permit). In a related manner, the awarded contractor would implement an erosion and sediment control plan utilizing Best Management Practices as part of their environmental protection plan. 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: What about stormwater runoff from the sediment storage sites? Are those addressed in the other project? Find out and reference.	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Stormwater runoff from the sediment storage sites is addressed in the CMMP. If the staging area is >= 1 acre, they will need to apply for a permit and adopt a SWPP.	Comment by Kate Fairman: If we  want greater specificity, we could certainly ask for a short list of likely   BMPs to be used to mitigate potential impacts.

iii. Water appropriation - Describe if the project proposes to appropriate surface or groundwater (including dewatering). Describe the source, quantity, duration, use and purpose of the water use and if a DNR water appropriation permit is required. Describe any well abandonment. If connecting to an existing municipal water supply, identify the wells to be used as a water source and any effects on, or required expansion of, municipal water infrastructure.  Discuss environmental effects from water appropriation, including an assessment of the water resources available for appropriation. Identify any measures to avoid, minimize, or mitigate environmental effects from the water appropriation.

– N/A – The project will not involve water use. 

iv. Surface Waters

a. Wetlands - Describe any anticipated physical effects or alterations to wetland features such as draining, filling, permanent inundation, dredging and vegetative removal.  Discuss direct and indirect environmental effects from physical modification of wetlands, including the anticipated effects that any proposed wetland alterations may have to the host watershed.   Identify measures to avoid (e.g., available alternatives that were considered), minimize, or mitigate environmental effects to wetlands.  Discuss whether any required compensatory wetland mitigation for unavoidable wetland impacts will occur in the same minor or major watershed, and identify those probable locations.

– No existing wetlands are identified within the project footprint. The project would result in the creation of 9.3 acres of emergent wetland habitat. See Chapters 2.2.1 and 2.2.2 of the EA for the construction of the emergent wetland area. See Chapter 3.2.4 for information on existing wetlands surrounding the project area and 4.2.3 of the EA for more information on creation of the emergent wetland area and what sort of benefits it would provide. 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Make sure all relevant information has been inserted into the EAW. 

b. Other surface waters- Describe any anticipated physical effects or alterations to surface water features  (lakes, streams, ponds, intermittent channels, county/judicial ditches) such as draining, filling, permanent inundation, dredging, diking, stream diversion, impoundment, aquatic plant removal and riparian alteration.  Discuss direct and indirect environmental effects from physical modification of water features. Identify measures to avoid, minimize, or mitigate environmental effects to surface water features, including in-water Best Management Practices that are proposed to avoid or minimize turbidity/sedimentation while physically altering the water features.  Discuss how the project will change the number or type of watercraft on any water body, including current and projected watercraft usage.	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Note this.

This project would involve the placement of fill in public waters, as well as excavation of a fish overwintering pool and the possible deepening of some parts of the river to provide easier channel access. This would change the bed profile in the pool.  Placement of the fill for the island could cause the underlying, existing substrate to squeeze outwards from underneath the fill, resulting in a more variable bottom profile in the pool.  Chapter 2.2.1 of the EA describes the proposed project features and how they would be constructed, including the best management practices that would be applied. See Chapter 3.2.1 of the EA (Geomorphology) for further information on how fill at the project area may interact with the existing riverbed. The exact changes in water surface (i.e., impounded aquatic habitat) from an acreage standpoint can be seen above in Item 7 of this EAW and Appendix C ((404(b)(1) analysis). Aquatic habitat impacts are discussed in chapter 4.2.1 of the EA, while water quality is addressed in chapter 4.2.5 of the EA. 

This project is anticipated to increase recreational usage within the vicinity of the proposed island, which would mean a potential increase in personal watercraft (e.g., motor boats, kayaks, and canoes) within the area (See chapter 4.1.3 of the EA). The potential effects of the island construction within the extant impounded water area are further discussed in the Clean Water Act Section 404(b)(1) analysis (Appendix C). 

12. Contamination/Hazardous Materials/Wastes

a. Pre-project site conditions - Describe existing contamination or potential environmental hazards on or in close proximity to the project site such as soil or ground water contamination, abandoned dumps, closed landfills, existing or abandoned storage tanks, and hazardous liquid or gas pipelines. Discuss any potential environmental effects from pre-project site conditions that would be caused or exacerbated by project construction and operation. Identify measures to avoid, minimize or mitigate adverse effects from existing contamination or potential environmental hazards. Include development of a Contingency Plan or Response Action Plan.– 

See chapter 3.2.6 of the EA and Appendix G for information pertaining to the existing sediment within the project area and the sand makeup that would be utilized for island construction. In general, the existing sediment where construction of the proposed island would take place is relatively clean and free of any contaminants. There are no known hazardous material or wastes within the existing project area. 

b. Project related generation/storage of solid wastes - Describe solid wastes generated/stored during construction and/or operation of the project.  Indicate method of disposal. Discuss potential environmental effects from solid waste handling, storage and disposal. Identify measures to avoid, minimize or mitigate adverse effects from the generation/storage of solid waste including source reduction and recycling. 

The only solid waste that would be generated by the proposed activities within the project area would be fine sediments dredged from access channels and the fish overwintering habitat. Materials generated from these actions would be incorporated into the emergent wetland area south of the proposed island. If the sediments are not incorporated into the island, they would be contained or stored in barges or moved to one of the authorized dredged material placement sites (Figure 2-1, EA). Sediment testing of the project area has demonstrated this material is free of contaminants and suitable for this use. Though it is not anticipated, any excess construction material left over after project completion (i.e., sand, riprap) would be properly handled and removed in compliance with Federal, State and local laws and regulations. 

c. Project related use/storage of hazardous materials - Describe chemicals/hazardous materials used/stored during construction and/or operation of the project including method of storage. Indicate the number, location and size of any above or below ground tanks to store petroleum or other materials. Discuss potential environmental effects from accidental spill or release of hazardous materials. Identify measures to avoid, minimize or mitigate adverse effects from the use/storage of chemicals/hazardous materials including source reduction and recycling. Include development of a spill prevention plan. 

The only expected hazardous materials to be used during the proposed construction would be fuels and oils generated from construction equipment. Handling, storage and disposal of this hazardous waste would be conducted to prevent contamination, following standard industry Best Management Practices.  As part of the Corps’ contracting procedure, any contractor would be required to prepare and submit for approval a Spill Prevention and Control Plan for these materials prior to construction.  Though none are anticipated with this project, the contractor would dispose of hazardous waste in compliance with Federal, State and local laws or regulations. 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: What about spills, etc from equipment staging areas? Will this be addressed in the SPCP? Would fuels, lubricating oils, etc for the construction equipment be stored on site or would they be serviced off site?	Comment by Kate Fairman: My guess is that  this language is  intended to apply to staging areas as well , but a clarifying sentence wouldn’t hurt.

d. Project related generation/storage of hazardous wastes - Describe hazardous wastes generated/stored during construction and/or operation of the project. Indicate method of disposal. Discuss potential environmental effects from hazardous waste handling, storage, and disposal. Identify measures to avoid, minimize or mitigate adverse effects from the generation/storage of hazardous waste including source reduction and recycling.

No hazardous waste is expected to be generated or stored during project construction or operation.

13. Fish, wildlife, plant communities, and rare features

a. [bookmark: OLE_LINK1]Describe fish and wildlife resources as well as habitats and vegetation on or in near the site.

[bookmark: OLE_LINK13][bookmark: OLE_LINK14]FISHERIES

The quality of the fishery in Pool 2 is typically related to water quality within the pool, which has improved recently. As of 2010, 78 species of fish are reported to occur or have occurred in the past within Pool 2 of the UMR. Of these 78 species, 17 are classified as either abundant or common, 2 historic (not collected with last ten years) and 4 likely to occur through stray tributaries or inland stocking (Steuck et al. 2010, Table 3-2). These numbers are similar to the 1995 fish distribution assessment that was completed through the Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee. That survey estimated that Pool 2 contains 74 total species, 20 of which are abundant or common, 3 historic and 4 likely to occur through stray tributaries or inland stocking (Pitlo et al. 1995). Surveys from the past 25 years would indicate that the fish diversity within Pool 2 is stable. 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: This section needs a bit of clarification. See DNR Fisheries comments for further information.

Fish species most likely to be impacted within the Project Area are those that utilize shallow, slack-water habitat. The Project Area downstream of the embankment includes Lake Rebecca, which the DNR identifies as an oxbow lake. Past surveys conducted by the  DNR, in 2012 and 2018, indicated that 17 and 8 fish species (respectively) were present within the lake. These survey efforts were completed with an emphasis on sport fish populations. 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: would ‘the lake’ be Rebecca?	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: This means that the fish surveys were conducted to gather information on the sport fishes. No conclusions can be drawn about the state of nonsport fishes, or the fish community in general, so the conclusions in the preceding paragraphs are not valid. See fisheries comment on spreadsheet for further information.

Table 3-2. Abundant and common fish species within Pool 2 (adapted from Steuck et al. 2010).

		Common Name

		Scientific Name

		Species Abundance



		Black crappie 

		Pomoxis nigromaculatus

		Common



		Bluegill 

		Lepomis macrochirus

		Common



		Channel catfish

		Ictalurus punctatus

		Common



		Common  carp 

		Cyprinus  carpio

		Abundant



		Emerald shiner 

		Notropis atherinoides

		Abundant



		Freshwater drum

		Aplodinotus grunniens

		Abundant



		Gizzard shad

		Dorosoma cepedianum

		Abundant



		Quillback

		Carpiodes cyprinus

		Common



		Sauger 

		Sander canadensis

		Common



		Shorthead  redhorse  

		Moxostoma macrolepidotum

		Common



		Silver redhorse  

		Moxostoma anisurum

		Common



		Smallmouth bass

		 Micropterus dolomieu

		Common



		Sand shiner

		Notropis stramineus 

		Common



		Spotfin shiner 

		Cyprinella spiloptera

		Common



		Spottail shiner

		Notropis hudsonius

		Common



		Walleye 

		Sander vitreus

		Common



		White bass 

		Morone chrysops

		Common





MUSSELS

Mussel surveys compiled from Kelner (2017) for Pool 2 indicates there are 32 current and 9 historic species for a total of 41 potential mussel species within the pool (Table 3-3). Federally-listed endangered Higgins eye (Lampsilis higginsii), winged mapleleaf (Quadrula fragosa), and snuffbox (Epioblasma triquetra) mussels are rarely found within Pool 2. These three federally-endangered species were re-introduced into Pool 2 by the Corps beginning in 2001 and annually through 2012. Of these species, only Higgins eye has shown evidence of recruitment within Pool 2. Sheepnose (Plethobasus cyphyus) mussels, another federally-listed endangers species, have only been found historically (pre-1980) in Pool 2. 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: are any of these likely to be harmed by the construction of the island?	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Corps should consult with Rich Baker on mussel sampling methodology

 In September 2017, the Corps completed a pre-project mussel survey within potential impact areas (Project Alternatives) using a skimmer dredge designed for sampling the riverbed. (Figure 1-1, 3-7). During this survey a total of 12 mussel transects were completed, which yielded 48 live mussels encompassing 8 different species, with no additional dead specimens found. Of the mussels that were observed, over 77% were from transects in areas near the existing Lock and Dam 2 embankment (i.e., shoreline habitat). This indicated that the best mussel habitat within the Project Area is nearest the existing shoreline. Once Project Alternatives were further refined, an additional sampling effort was completed by the Corps in June 2018, which focused on evaluating the offshore island footprints. The 2018 sampling effort incorporated nine additional mussel transects, which yielded one live mussel (Quadrual quadrula). Combining all mussel data from 2017 and 2018 indicates that the four most abundant mussel species were Fusconaia flava (30.6%), Amblema plicata (22.4%), Quadrula quadrula (20.4%) and Obliquaria reflexa (10.2%, Table 3-4). 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Could sedimentation and wave disturbances from construction bury these mussels?	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Should they do another transect of this area just prior to construction to make sure no mussels have moved in?

During the 2017 sampling event a single live individual of a Minnesota State-threatened species (Quadrula nodulata) was found; however, the 2018 surveys did not yield any additional state-threatened or endangered species (Figure 3-7). Although a Quadrula nodulata was found within in the Project Area, it is unlikely that the Proposed Alternative would have an adverse effect on this species as it is considered common in Pool 2 (Table 3-3). Additionally, no Federally-listed species, living or dead, were observed during mussel surveys. Mussel surveys conducted within the Project Area did not reveal any intact mussel beds and indicated relatively poor mussel habitat (Table 3-4). 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Because Q. nodulata is a state listed species, Corps should consult with Baker of DNR to see whether they need a takings permit.

Table 3-3. Known mussel species within Pool 2 of the UMR.  

		Species 

		Scientific name

		Species Distribution 



		Threeridge

		Amblema plicata

		Abundant



		Wabash pigtoe

		Fusconaia flava

		Common 



		Washboard

		Megalonaias nervosa

		Rare



		Round pigtoe

		Pleurobema sintoxia

		Rare



		Winged mapleleaf

		Quadrula fragosa

		*Re-established Rare



		Monkeyface

		Quadrula metanevra

		Rare



		Wartyback

		Quadrula nodulata

		Common 



		Pimpleback

		Quadrula pustulosa

		Abundant



		Mapleleaf

		Quadrula quadrula

		Abundant



		Pistolgrip

		Tritogonia verrucosa

		Rare



		Elktoe

		Alasmidonta marginata

		Rare



		Rock pocketbook

		Arcidens confragosus

		Common 



		White heelsplitter

		Lasmigona complanata

		Rare



		Fluted shell

		Lasmigona costata

		Rare



		Giant floater

		Pyganodon grandis

		Common 



		Strange floater

		Strophitus undulatus

		Common 



		Paper pondshell

		Utterbackia imbecillis

		Rare



		Mucket

		Actinonaias ligamentina

		Rare



		Butterfly

		Ellipsaria lineolata

		Rare



		Snuffbox

		Epioblasma triquetra

		*Re-established Rare



		Species 

		Scientific name

		Species Distribution 



		Plain pocketbook

		Lampsilis cardium

		Common 



		Higgins eye

		Lampsilis higginsii

		*Re-established Rare



		Fatmucket

		Lampsilis siliquoidea

		Rare



		Fragile papershell

		Leptodea fragilis

		Common 



		Black sandshell

		Ligumia recta

		Con



		Threehorn wartyback

		Obliquaria reflexa

		Abundant



		Hickorynut

		Obovaria olivaria

		Rare



		Pink heelsplitter

		Potamilus alatus

		Common 



		Pink papershell

		Potamilus ohiensis

		Rare



		Lilliput

		Toxolasma parvus

		Rare



		Fawnsfoot

		Truncilla donaciformis

		Rare



		Deertoe

		Truncilla truncata

		Abundant





*Re-established Rare = Species that have been captured since 2005 and were once extirpated from the area, red font indicates recent collections by MN DNR since 2005 (Davis and Sietman unpublished data).



Table 3-4. Mussel species richness and abundance at Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project Area utilizing skimmer dredge surveys from September 2017 and June 2018.

		 

		

		Offshore Island

		Total 



		Species

		Common Name

		No. 

		% 

		No.

		% 



		

		

		

		

		

		



		Subfamily Ambleminae

		

		

		

		

		



		Amblema plicata

		Threeridge

		2

		18.2

		11

		22.4



		Fusconaia flava

		Wabash pigtoe

		3

		27.3

		15

		30.6



		Quadrula nodulata*

		Wartyback 

		1

		9.1

		1

		2.0



		Quadrula quadrula

		Mapleleaf

		3

		27.3

		10

		20.4



		

		

		

		

		

		



		Subfamily Anodontinae

		

		

		

		

		



		Pyganodon grandis

		Giant floater

		

		

		1

		2.0



		

		

		

		

		

		



		Subfamily Lampsinilinae

		

		

		

		

		



		Leptodea fragilis

		Fragile papershell 

		

		

		3

		6.1



		Obliquaria reflexa

		Threehorn wartyback

		1

		9.1

		5

		10.2



		Potamilus ohiensis

		Pink papershell

		1

		9.1

		3

		6.1



		

		

		

		

		

		



		Total live

		

		11

		

		49

		



		Total species

		

		6

		

		8

		



		Sled transects (n)

		

		12

		

		21

		



		Mussels per transect

		 

		0.9

		 

		2.3

		 





* Represents Minnesota state threatened mussel species.



Vegetation

The project area is underwater and unvegetated.  Adjacent land within one mile of the project area includes a Red Oak-Sugar Maple-Basswood (Butternut Hickory) forest at the southern end of Lake Rebecca. Project activities would not affect this forest. Construction of the protective island would create wetland habitat, providing an opportunity for establishment of wetland vegetation. 

[bookmark: _Toc25143305]AQUATIC HABITAT

The U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) publication, “An Aquatic Habitat Classification System for the Upper Mississippi River System” (D.B. Wilcox 1993), has been used to classify aquatic areas within the UMR. A majority of the Project Area, specifically upstream of the embankments, is defined as impounded, which is a large, mostly open area that is located in the downstream portions of the navigational pool. Downstream of impounded habitat usually includes the navigational dam and connecting dike (Wilcox 1993). The impounded habitat at the Project Area is relatively shallow in depth (Figure 3-3). The shoreline classification of the Lock and Dam 2 embankment is classified as General Development (GD). Other classifications within the Project Area, mainly Lake Rebecca, can be classified as an artificial abandoned channel lake (Wilcox 1993). Lake Rebecca was once a side channel lake (King Lake) of the Mississippi River prior to the creation of the Lock and Dam 2 embankment in 1928. Other aquatic habitat on the downstream portion of the Project Area includes both deep and shallow marsh habitat with areas of submerged aquatic vegetation (Figure 3-5).  The Project Area above the embankment has a Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) designation of floodway Zone AE, while the area below the embankment is outside of the floodway, but still in Zone AE, meaning the area is subject to a 1-percent-annual-chance flood event.

[bookmark: _Toc25143302]WETLANDS

Wetlands are areas that are inundated or saturated by surface and ground water at a frequency to support vegetation typically adapted to saturated soils, which include swamps, marshes, bogs and similar areas (Eggers 1997, MN DNR 2013). Most of the Project Area on the upstream side of the Lock and Dam 2 embankment is open water and inundated with water year round (Figure 3-5). The long wind fetch and current riprap on the upstream side is not conducive for plant growth, resulting in minimal wetlands, if any. The downstream side of the Lock and Dam 2 embankment contains wetlands around Lake Rebecca and the eastern side of the embankment. These wetlands include deep and shallow marsh wetlands, along with wet forest habitat (Figure 3-5).

TERRESTRIAL HABITAT

The Project Area is within the Eastern Broadleaf Forest province, which serves as a transition zone between the semi-arid regions to the west that were historically prairie and the mixed coniferous-deciduous forests of the northeast (Aaseng et al. 2011). Most of the vegetation within this province consists of forests of broad-leaved deciduous trees, including oaks, maples, basswood, and elm with smaller areas of oak savanna and prairie (Marschner 1974). Terrestrial habitat closer to the Project Area includes upland forest, upland meadows, floodplain forests, wetlands, and areas disturbed by commercial and residential development (Figure 3-5). The land within the Lock and Dam 2 facility that would be utilized by the contractor for staging purposes is considered developed and would mostly be restricted to existing parking lots and concrete surfaces. The minimal vegetation in this area is a mixture of maintained grasses and some native plants and trees. The north side of the embankment closest to the Project Area has little to no vegetation, as it is mostly covered with rock riprap. The southern portion of the structural embankment contains a 15-foot zone vegetated with a variety of grass species but otherwise kept vegetation-free. This area transitions into a mixture of marsh and wet forest habitats that contain plants typical to these environments. 



b. Describe rare features such as state-listed (endangered, threatened or special concern) species, native plant communities, Minnesota County Biological Survey Sites of Biodiversity Significance, and other sensitive ecological resources on or within close proximity to the site.  Provide the license agreement number (LA- 768) and/or correspondence number (ERDB #20170133) from which the data were obtained and attach the Natural Heritage letter from the DNR.  Indicate if any additional habitat or species survey work has been conducted within the site and describe the results. 

[bookmark: _Toc25143303]THREATENED AND ENDANGERED SPECIES 

FEDERALLY-LISTED THREATENED AND ENDANGERED SPECIES

Six federally-listed endangered or threatened species have been known to occur within or near the Project Area (Table 3-5). An endangered species list was generated using the USFWS’ Information for Planning and Consultation (IPaC) website (10/28/2019). The USFWS’ IPaC website was consulted to determine if any listed, proposed, or candidate species may occur in the Project Area, or if the area contains any designated or proposed critical habitats. No designated or proposed critical habitats were identified in the Project Area.

Table 3-5. Federally-listed species having the potential to be present within the Project Area. 

		Species

		Scientific Name

		Status 

		Group



		Northern Long-eared Bat

		Myotis septentrionalis

		Threatened

		Mammal



		Higgins Eye

		Lampsilis higginsii

		Endangered

		Mussel 



		Sheepnose Mussel 

		Plethobasus cyphyus 

		Endangered

		Mussel 



		Snuffbox Mussel 

		Epioblasma triquetra 

		Endangered

		Mussel 



		Prairie Bush-clover

		Lespedeza leptostachya

		Threatened

		Plant





NORTHERN LONG-EARED BAT

Suitable habitat for northern long-eared bat (Myotis septentrionalis) is variable depending on the season and life stage. In the summer, bats often roost under the bark of tree species within diverse mixed-age and mixed-species tree stands, commonly close to wetlands. In the winter, the northern long-eared bat hibernates in caves and abandoned mines. During periods of migration and foraging, these bats tend to use edge habitat where a transition between two types of vegetation occurs (USFWS 2015). 

HIGGINS EYE

Suitable habitat for Higgins eye (Lampsilis higginsii) includes deep water areas of various stable substrates in large streams and rivers with moderate current (USFWS 2004). Although rare, live specimens of the Higgins eye have been found recently in Pool 2 of the UMR (Kelner 2017). Higgins eye are most commonly associated with diverse, high-density mussel beds.

SHEEPNOSE

Suitable habitat for sheepnose (Plethobasus cyphyus) is typically shallow areas of large rivers and streams that contain moderate to swift currents with substrate containing coarse sand and gravel (USFWS 2012). Sheepnose have only been found historically in Pool 2 (pre-1980, Kelner 2017). 

SNUFFBOX

Suitable habitat for snuffbox (Epioblasma triquetra) is usually small to medium-sized streams with swift current and some larger river systems (USFWS 2012). Snuffbox are recently re-established within Pools 2 (Kelner 2017).

PRAIRIE BUSH-CLOVER

Prairie bush-clover is a threatened plant species found only in the tallgrass prairie region of Wisconsin, Minnesota, Illinois and Iowa. It is a member of the bean family and holds a unique niche within the tallgrass prairie ecosystem. Prairie bush-clover provides habitat for tiny predatory insects that are specialized to live within seeds (USFWS 2009).



BALD EAGLES

The bald eagle (Haliaeetus leucocephalus), though no longer listed or protected under the ESA, is still protected under the Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act (Eagle Act). This act prohibits anyone from taking or disturbing a bald or golden eagle or their nest. USFWS guidelines to comply with the act indicate that any construction activity shouldn’t be within 660 feet of a visible bald or golden eagle nest in order to lower the chance of disruption, especially during the breeding season. If an eagle nest is within the area of the proposed project, work would be postponed until after breeding season, which is from December through July for the Northern United States (USFWS 2007). There is at least one active eagle nest within the Project Area that was observed by the Corps in July 2019 (Figure 3-7). 



STATE-LISTED RARE SPECIES	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Need to make sure this is attached to the EAW

In addition to federally listed species, there are a number of state-listed species and terrestrial communities that have the potential to reside within the Project Area (Table 3-6). These species were compiled through the Minnesota Natural Heritage Information System (NHIS) using a one-mile buffer within the Project Area (September, 2019). A status of when each species was last observed was also determined through the NHIS to better indicate the possibility of each species being present within the Project Area.



Table 3-6. Minnesota state-listed species and communities within one mile of the Project Area.

		Scientific Name

		Common Name

		MN Status

		Last Observed



		Mussels

		 

		

		 



		Actinonaias ligamentina

		Mucket

		THR

		2001



		Alasmidonta marginata

		Elktoe

		THR

		Pre-2000



		Arcidens confragosus

		Rock Pocketbook

		END

		2013



		Cumberlandia monodonta

		Spectaclecase

		END

		Pre-2002



		Ellipsaria lineolata

		Butterfly

		THR

		Pre-1944



		Elliptio crassidens

		Elephant-ear

		END

		2004



		Epioblasma triquetra

		Snuffbox

		END

		Pre-2002



		Eurynia dilatata

		Spike

		THR

		2003



		Lampsilis higginsii

		Higgins Eye

		END

		2010



		Lampsilis teres

		Yellow Sandshell

		END

		Pre-2001



		Lasmigona costata

		Fluted-shell

		THR

		Pre-2002



		Ligumia recta

		Black Sandshell

		SPC

		2009



		Plethobasus cyphyus

		Sheepnose

		END

		1988



		Pleurobema sintoxia

		Round Pigtoe

		SPC

		2013



		Quadrula fragosa

		Winged Mapleleaf

		END

		Pre-2002



		Quadrula nodulata

		Wartyback

		THR

		2011



		Reginaia ebenus

		Ebonyshell

		END

		2004



		Simpsonaias ambigua

		Salamander Mussel

		END

		2004



		Theliderma metanevra

		Monkeyface

		THR

		2008



		Tritogonia verrucosa

		Pistolgrip

		END

		2008



		Venustaconcha ellipsiformis

		Ellipse

		THR

		Pre-2002



		Fish

		 

		

		 



		Acipenser fulvescens 

		Lake Sturgeon

		SPC

		2019



		Polyodon spathula

		Paddlefish

		THR

		2019



		Amphibians

		 

		

		 



		Necturus maculosus

		Mudpuppy

		SPC

		2016



		Birds

		 

		

		 



		Falco peregrinus

		Peregrine Falcon

		SPC

		1989



		Lanius ludovicianus

		Loggerhead Shrike

		END

		2012



		Vireo bellii

		Bell's Vireo

		SPC

		2007



		Terrestrial Communities

		 

		

		 



		Red Oak - Sugar Maple  - Basswood - (Bitternut Hickory) Forest 



		White Pine - Oak - Sugar Maple Forest 

		

		



		Southern Wet Cliff

		

		

		



		Dry Bedrock Bluff Prairie (Southern)

		

		



		Oak - (Red Maple) Woodland

		 

		 

		 











Heritage Database License Agreement Number: 

[bookmark: OLE_LINK54][bookmark: OLE_LINK55]Information regarding species and community types listed by the State of Minnesota as endangered, threatened, or special concern were compiled using the Minnesota Natural Heritage Information System (NHIS) dataset. The potentially-affected rare species within the project area were compiled using a one-mile buffer around the proposed island and the newest available NHIS layer (July 8, 2019) through ESRI ArcGIS Pro.



c. Discuss how the identified fish, wildlife, plant communities, rare features and ecosystems may be affected by the project. Include a discussion on introduction and spread of invasive species from the project construction and operation.  Separately discuss effects to known threatened and endangered species  

See Chapter 4.2.3 of the EA for the potential project effects to Federal and State-listed species within the project area. Terrestrial species (i.e., reptiles, mammals, birds, etc.) that have the potential to occupy the surrounding project area (i.e., the embankment) would not be impacted by the proposed project as construction would take place in water.  

Invasive species – Equipment and watercraft utilized throughout the construction of the project would be previously cleaned to prevent the spread of invasive species. This would include insuring that equipment and watercraft are free of soil residuals, egg deposits from plant pests, noxious weeds, aquatic plants and animals and residual water. The contractor would clean equipment based on the MN DNR’s Best Practices for Preventing the Spread of Aquatic Invasive species. Further, the contractor would devise a plan to prevent the spread of invasive species during the construction process as part of the Environmental Protection Plan. 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: See comment spreadsheet for comments on minimizing the potential for introduction of invasives.

Once the proposed island is constructed and turf is established, the island would be seeded with a mixture of native grasses and willows. This process would contest against potential invasive species (i.e., reed canary grass, buckthorn) inhabiting the newly constructed island.  Seeding would involve the contractor covering all fine fill areas with either permanent native grasses or a winter wheat mixture. Winter wheat would be utilized if the permanent native grasses could not be established before the end of the growing season. The winter wheat mixture would provide winter erosion protection and temporary surface erosion control. If winter wheat is used, the contractor would establish native grasses the following construction season. Willow planting would be implemented on the exterior and interior of the 12 inch fine fill areas (Figure 2-4, 2-5). Planting would consist of 2 rows of willows, two feet apart and staggered. Once native grasses and willows are fully established, a mixture of native tree species would be planted within the 24 and 18 inch fine fill areas as part of a separate contract (Figure 2-4, 2-5).  	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: In 2.2.2 of the EA, it says that the island would not be seeded. Which is it? DNR recommends seeding.	Comment by Kate Fairman: Also seems inconsistent with the discussion in the project description having to do with allowing vegetation to naturally establish.	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: See comment spreadsheet for further information on this.





d. Identify measures that will be taken to avoid, minimize, or mitigate adverse effects to fish, wildlife, plant communities, and sensitive ecological resources. 

The Construction of the offshore island would not impact the embankment or any potential animals that may occupy it. There is an active eagle nest near the project area, which will be avoided according to the Bald Eagle Act (1962, as amended).  Fish are not expected to be adversely harmed, since they can move away from the project site and the riverbed in the project area is not used for spawning.  No other specific actions are planned under the proposed project to further avoid, minimize or mitigate adverse effects of constructing the protective island. 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Is this true? What about sedimentation from creation of the island? Would the area be re-surveyed for mussels prior to commencement of activities?	Comment by Kate Fairman: Also, we try to avoid making statements of “would not impact”  or “no impact” in the EAW. Perhaps, “impacts are expected to be minimal.”	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Agreed. They should clarify this.

[bookmark: _Toc493768824]Table 1. Minnesota state-listed species and communities within one-mile of the proposed island.

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

		 

		 

		 





(END = Endangered; THR = Threatened; SPC = Special Concern)

*Copyright 2019, State of Minnesota, Department of Natural Resources (DNR). Rare Features Data included here were provided by the Division of Ecological and Water Resources, Minnesota DNR, and were current as of July 8, 2019. These data are not based on an exhaustive inventory of the state. The lack of data for any geographic area shall not be construed to mean that no significant features are present.

14. Describe any historic structures, archeological sites, and/or traditional cultural properties on or in close proximity to the site. Include: 1) historic designations, 2) known artifact areas, and 3) architectural features. Attach letter received from the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO).  Discuss any anticipated effects to historic properties during project construction and operation.  Identify measures that will be taken to avoid, minimize, or mitigate adverse effects to historic properties.  	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Don’t forget to attach letter

Pool 2 contains numerous historic properties indicating continual human occupation over approximately the last 12,000 years. Historic properties include a variety of pre-contact and historic archaeological sites.  Pre-contact sites include lithic and artifact scatters, village sites, petroglyphs, and burial mounds. Historic sites include Dakota villages, trading posts and forts, early town sites, standing structures, shipwrecks, transportation corridors, bridges and river training structures. Several historic properties within this locality are listed on the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) or are eligible for listing on the NRHP. In addition, the pool contains several historic districts.	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Is this IN Pool 2 or in the area AROUND Pool 2?

Lock and Dam 2, completed in 1930, was constructed under the six-foot channel project. It is unique in having all tainter gates and a Boule pass structure. A second landward lock was completed in 1948 to accommodate the 9-foot channel project specifications. Sometime after 1947 and before 1974 an oil tank field was established south of the lock.  The tank field was removed in the 1990s and an above surface pipeline running along the toe of the downstream side of the embankment was removed in 1994.

Prior to construction of Lock and Dam 2, this stretch of the Mississippi River floodplain once consisted of side channels, sloughs, wetlands and natural levees.  From west to east, the dam embankment transects a slough (King Lake, Lake Rebecca) running along the western edge of the valley and a series of swales and ridges (natural levees) before encountering the lock structure and associated improvements (e.g., control house, parking lot, comfort station, Electronic Communication Center). The embankment cut off the slough and truncated relict natural levees while the landward lock removed or otherwise altered most of a natural levee formed along the right descending bank of the main channel.

An analysis of the pre-inundation landforms in the Project Area uses the MRC 1895 chart as a proxy for elevations. Low lying areas (e.g., swales and wetlands) average approximately 680 feet above mean sea level (amsl). Areas thought to coincide with natural levees approach elevations of approximately 690 feet amsl. Pool 2 is currently maintained with a water surface elevation of approximately 687 feet amsl, equating to a water level rise of approximately 12 feet since 1930.  By 1937, much of the floodplain was inundated, although narrow islands along the main channel-the tops of natural levees-remained. By 1953 these features are absent. Recent bathymetry indicates that the depth of the river bottom just upstream of the embankment ranges between approximately three to four feet. From this information, it appears that approximately a minimum six to seven feet of the natural levees have eroded across the area.  In other areas, approximately three to four feet of overburden/sedimentation blankets the pre-lock and dam land surfaces.  Any cultural resources that may have existed proximal to the upstream side of the embankment would have been destroyed by fluvial action or deeply buried from subsequent silt deposition.

In addition to inundating the floodplain, embankment construction during the 1920s involved clearing vegetation, stripping the topsoil and stockpiling the spoil on the upstream and downstream aspects of the embankment corridor. The space between the spoil piles was then dredged. Dredging depths are uncertain, although deep enough to reach solid sand. Next, fill material was hydraulically placed to create the earthen embankment and the removed topsoil presumably placed over the sand fill.  Finally, stone rip-rap was placed over the embankment. As a result, the cut and fill activities would have destroyed cultural resources that may have existed along the embankment and adjacent areas.

Previous investigations proximal to the Project Area include exploration of burial mounds, identification of military roads, transportation features and standing structures. Previous consultations (i.e., 1981, 1986, 1993) with the Minnesota State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) for hydroelectric installation and removal of the lock house determined that the complex was not eligible for listing on the NRHP. Other than the lock and dam, no other cultural resources have been identified within one mile of the Project Area.	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Are the features listed in the first paragraph of this question not considered to be cultural resources?- confused



15. Describe any scenic views or vistas on or near the project site. Describe any project related visual effects such as vapor plumes or glare from intense lights. Discuss the potential visual effects from the project. Identify any measures to avoid, minimize, or mitigate visual effects.  

The Project Area itself lies within the MNRRA and MRCCA corridors, making it an important natural area. In general, governmental plans in these areas are established to preserve and enhance the natural and aesthetic resources of the UMR. Any action that would result in the aesthetic enhancement of the area would align with these plans. The area surrounding the Project Area has a number of scenic lookouts that provide the opportunity to observe the unique landscape of the UMR. The embankment itself contains a walking trail that can be utilized to see the surrounding areas (i.e., Lake Rebecca, Pool 2). Areas outside of the Project Area includes the Spring Lake Park Reserve, which includes Schaar’s Bluff Trail and lookout (Figure 3-1).

The Proposed Project would have a temporary minor adverse effect on aesthetics within the Project Area during construction. This would be due to construction equipment and unfinished work, which may be unsightly to local residents. The construction process could take multiple construction seasons, prolonging the impacts on the aesthetics of the Project Area. Once the proposed island is completed and the vegetation develops, the Proposed Alternative would provide substantial aesthetic benefits to the Project Area compared to the No-Action Alternative. The overall aesthetic enhancement the proposed island would align with the different governmental MNRRA and MRCCA comprehensive plans that are currently in place for this stretch of the river.



16. Air 

a. Stationary source emissions - Describe the type, sources, quantities and compositions of any emissions from stationary sources such as boilers or exhaust stacks. Include any hazardous air pollutants, criteria pollutants, and any greenhouse gases. Discuss effects to air quality including any sensitive receptors, human health or applicable regulatory criteria. Include a discussion of any methods used assess the project’s effect on air quality and the results of that assessment. Identify pollution control equipment and other measures that will be taken to avoid, minimize, or mitigate adverse effects from stationary source emissions. - N/A

b. Vehicle emissions - Describe the effect of the project’s traffic generation on air emissions. Discuss the project’s vehicle-related emissions effect on air quality. Identify measures (e.g. traffic operational improvements, diesel idling minimization plan) that will be taken to minimize or mitigate vehicle-related emissions. 

The Proposed Project would require the use of construction equipment. This action would result in a minor adverse impact on air quality and an increase in greenhouse gas production throughout the Project Area. This effect would be temporary in nature and air quality would return to normal conditions once construction ceases.

c. Dust and odors - Describe sources, characteristics, duration, quantities, and intensity of dust and odors generated during project construction and operation. (Fugitive dust may be discussed under item 16a). Discuss the effect of dust and odors in the vicinity of the project including nearby sensitive receptors and quality of life. Identify measures that will be taken to minimize or mitigate the effects of dust and odors. 



The construction of the Proposed Project would require the placement of dredged material into water, which would likely not create dust emissions within the Project Area. In a similar fashion, riprap for the bullnose feature and rock groins would either be placed in water or from the island once the required portions are constructed. The placement of riprap would likely not generate a noticeable amount of dust because it would be placed underwater. The top of the island would be capped with fine material that is wet in nature, making dust emissions minimal. In general, dust emissions generated from the Proposed Project would be negligible. There is a chance that the fine-material and construction equipment would generate unpleasant odor within the Project Area. 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Would any riprap be placed above water? If so, how is dust minimized under this circumstance? Will the riprap be wet?—It is unlikely that any dust generated would travel far.



17. Describe sources, characteristics, duration, quantities, and intensity of noise generated during project construction and operation. Discuss the effect of noise in the vicinity of the project including 1) existing noise levels/sources in the area, 2) nearby sensitive receptors, 3) conformance to state noise standards, and 4) quality of life. Identify measures that will be taken to minimize or mitigate the effects of noise. – 

Noise levels within the Project Area are similar to that of other semi-populated UMR reaches or areas. Though the Project Area is not densely populated, there are a few neighborhoods within the vicinity that would receive noise pollution. The Project Area is also close to Lock and Dam 2, which generates noise pollution through the process of commercial navigation. Like other areas along the UMR, the Project Area has occasional to frequent commercial and recreational boat traffic. Noise levels increase as commercial and recreational watercraft move through the Project Area and decreases as watercraft depart from the area. In general, the Project Area experiences higher noise levels during daylight hours while boat traffic and recreational usage is typically higher. 

[bookmark: _GoBack]The Proposed Project would have a temporary minor negative effect on the noise level within the Project Area in the short-term. Noise levels would increase during the construction of the Proposed Project, specifically affecting the homes east within Eagle Bluff and Featherstone Road neighborhoods. In order to minimize noise within the Project Area, the awarded contractor would comply with any state regulations and/or local ordinances regarding to construction operations. This limitation would reduce noise pollution for the neighborhoods closest to the Project Area. The Proposed Alternative in the long-term would result in less of a need to repair the embankment due to the protective benefits the island would provide. Therefore, in the long-term the Proposed Alternative would have a beneficial effect on noise within the Project Area when compared to the No-Action Alternative.	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: What about mufflers? Would construction equipment be equipped with mufflers?



18. Transportation – 

a. Describe traffic-related aspects of project construction and operation. Include: 1) existing and proposed additional parking spaces, 2) estimated total average daily traffic generated, 3) estimated maximum peak hour traffic generated and time of occurrence, 4) indicate source of trip generation rates used in the estimates, and 5) availability of transit and/or other alternative transportation modes.	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Would there be any impact on river traffic or transportation if the island is left in an incompletely constructed state out of construction season? Would this be a safety hazard? Would the construction site be marked off with buoys or other markers to reduce the safety hazard?


b. Discuss the effect on traffic congestion on affected roads and describe any traffic improvements necessary. The analysis must discuss the project’s impact on the regional transportation system. If the peak hour traffic generated exceeds 250 vehicles or the total daily trips exceeds 2,500, a traffic impact study must be prepared as part of the EAW. Use the format and procedures described in the Minnesota Department of Transportation’s Access Management Manual, Chapter 5 (available at: http://www.dot.state.mn.us/accessmanagement/resources.html) or a similar local guidance.

c.	Identify measures that will be taken to minimize or mitigate project related transportation effects.

Dredged material necessary to construct the proposed project would be brought into the project area via barges from the temporary placement sites in Pool 2; therefore, no further transportation impacts, specifically truck traffic, are expected to occur during the construction of the proposed island. The barges necessary to transport material to the project area are not expected to deviate from normal barge traffic within Pool 2. See Chapter 3.1.4 and 4.1.4 for additional information regarding commercial navigation and barge traffic within Pool 2. 



19. Cumulative potential effects – See Chapter 4.4., and further summarized below:



a. Describe the geographic scales and timeframes of the project related environmental effects that could combine with other environmental effects resulting in cumulative potential effects. 



The project timeframe for the Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project has the potential to begin in the 2020 construction season; however, implementation would likely not begin until the 2021 construction season. There is a possibility that the proposed island would take multiple field seasons to fully construct and implement. Also, the construction timeframe could vary due to funding, seasonal flooding and unforeseen environmental factors. Due to the nature of the project, construction season would align with the open water season on the UMR. Construction in certain years can begin in April, but May is a more typical for beginning construction due to the constraints associated with spring high water.  The construction season usually lasts until late November when work must stop due to winter freeze-up. The overall geographic timescale of the propose project would be one to three years once the construction process begins during the described construction season. 	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Can we make any kind of an estimate on how many construction seasons it would take?



The construction of the proposed island would result in temporary minor adverse effects to noise, aesthetic values, air quality and surface water quality within the project area, which would occur over multiple construction seasons, if necessary, and cease once construction is complete. The proposed project would have a one-time impact on biological productivity within the island footprint due to the initial placement of sand for island construction. In a similar timeframe and fashion, the completed island project would result in a loss of aquatic habitat within the project area; however, it would provide terrestrial habitat benefits. The construction of the island and other associated projects within Pool 2 would provide benefits to commercial navigation. In general, the geographic scale of all environmental effects is expected to be limited to the project area surrounding the island. Therefore, this project would not result in additional cumulative effects on other Corps projects within Pool 2.



b. Describe any reasonably foreseeable future projects (for which a basis of expectation has been laid) that may interact with environmental effects of the proposed project within the geographic scales and timeframes identified above. 



As described in Chapter 1.5 and 4.4, the Lower Pool 2 Channel Management Study, Pool 2 DMMP and Pigs Eye Lake are underway or planned to occur in Pool 2. The local governments of Dakota County, Hastings and Nininger Township have comprehensive or master plans in place to preserve and enhance the natural and aesthetic resources of the MNRRA and MCCRA corridors. Most of these plans are update on a 10-year cycle and dictate what will happen over a 20-year period (i.e., Dakota County Comprehensive Plan). As stated in the EA, the island project would align with these plans and provide an overall aesthetic and recreational enhancement to the area. At this time there are no other projects from other local or state entities are anticipated to overlap or result in cumulative environmental or social effects within the project area. This is due to the fact that construction of the island will take place in water and have little impact on projects taking place on the land surrounding the project area. 



c. Discuss the nature of the cumulative potential effects and summarize any other available information relevant to determining whether there is potential for significant environmental effects due to these cumulative effects. 



The potential for cumulative effects was considered and discussed as warranted in Chapter 4 of the EA. Due to the nature of the project and the requirement of dredged material, the Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project is linked to projects that deal directly with dredged material management within the pool. The construction of the proposed island would provide a beneficial use of dredged material within Pool 2, thus reducing some of the negative effects associated with dredged material management. 



Water Quality – The proposed project’s temporary, minor, adverse impacts on water quality would be attributed to the construction of the island. Construction action would increase turbidity through the re-distribution of sediments into the water column. Dredged material that would be utilized is mostly considered clear or free of contaminates (Sediment Quality, Appendix G) and meets Minnesota’s guidelines for Sediment Quality Targets for use in aquatic environments. This minor impact would cease once material is fully placed for the island and the features associated with it (i.e., rock groins, emergent wetland habitat). The potential water quality impact from the other projects mentioned in Pool 2 would not be close enough to the proposed island project area to cause a cumulative effect. 



Aquatic Habitat – Construction of the proposed island would result in a conversion of 16 acres of aquatic habitat within the area of the project to terrestrial habitat. The project would also convert 9.3 acres of low-quality impounded open-water habitat to emergent wetland. Impacts on aquatic habitat linked to the other analyzed projects, if any, are expected to be minor. 



Visual Effects – The proposed island would have a temporary minor adverse effect on aesthetics during construction due to construction equipment and unfinished work, which may be unsightly to local residents. This minor effect would cease once the island is finished and the seeding plan is implemented. Similar equipment would be used in the Pool 2 DMMP and CMS; however, these projects are far enough apart to not result in a compounding effect. 



Noise Effects – Noise levels would increase during the construction of the proposed island, specifically affecting homes nearest the construction area. Construction equipment from other projects in Pool 2 would not be close enough to each other or close enough to any identified noise receptors to form a cumulatively greater noise impact.



Air Effects – Construction of the proposed island would result in minor adverse impacts to air quality and an increase in greenhouse gas production through the use of construction equipment. This effect would be temporary in nature and air quality would return to normal conditions once construction is over.  Other projects in the vicinity, such as the Pool 2 DMMP, would result in an overall reduction in exhaust emissions in comparison to the project’s no-action alternative. 



Terrestrial Habitat – The protective island would result in the conversion of aquatic habitat to terrestrial habitat. The offshore island would result in roughly 16 acres of land that is at least two feet above low control pool. The Pool 2 CMS and DMMP has the potential to have a minor positive impact on terrestrial habitat depending upon final placement (i.e., Pigs Eye Lake). 



Commercial Navigation – The proposed protective island, in combination with the Pool 2 CMS and DMMP would have a combined beneficial effect on commercial navigation within Pool 2. 





20. Other potential environmental effects  - N/A

Appendix B – EAW Supplement		EAW - 16
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Exhibit 1. Dakota County parcel information for the Lock and Dam 2 protective island project area. 

[image: ]	Comment by Kathleen Metzker: Typo on ‘aquired’

Exhibit 2. USACE parcel information of the Lock and Dam 2 protective island project area. 
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Exhibit 3. Minnesota verified wells near the Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project.
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Minnesota Unique Well Number

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

oy o WELL AND BORING REPORT piybate 02710198
Quad  Prescott ) Update Date 07/11/2018
249905 Minnesota Statutes Chapter 1031 P
Quadip 102D Received Date
'Well Name Township Range Dir Section Subsection 'Well Depth Depth Completed Date Well Completed
LOCK NO. 2 115 17 W 21 BBAACD 312 ft. 3121t
Elevation 697 ft. Elev. Method 7.5 minute topographic map (+/- 5 feet) Drill Method  Cable Tool Drill Fluid
{Address Use  public supply/non-community Status  Active
C/W 1350 LOCK & DAM RD HASTINGS MN 55033 \Well Hydrofractured? Yes D No D From To
Casing Type Single casing Joint
Stratigraphy Information Drive Shoe?  Yes [ | No [ Above/Below 0ft.
Geological Material From To(ft.) Color Hardness Casing Diameter Weight
GLACIAL DRIFT 0 189 8 in.To 232 ft. Ibs./R.
FRANCONIA 189 263
IRONTON-GALESVILLE 263 305
[EAU CLAIRE 305 312
pen Hole From 232  ft To 32y
Screen? [ Type Make
Static Water Level
1 ft. land surface Measure 02/03/1995
[Pumping Level (below land surface)
‘Wellhead Completion
Pitless adapter manufacturer Model
| Casing Protection [] 12 in. above grade
] At-grade (Environmental Wells and Borings ONLY)
Grouting Information Well Grouted? [ | Yes [ | No [K] Not Specified
Nearest Known Source of Contamination
feet Direction Type
Well disinfected upon completion? ] Yes [] Neo
[Pump D Not Installed Date Installed
Manufacturer's name
Model Number HP o Volt
Length of drop pipe ft  Capacity gp. Typ
/Abandoned
Does property have any not in use and not sealed well(s)? [ Yes [] No
Variance
Was a variance granted from the MDH for this well? [ Yes 7 Ne
Miscellaneous
First Bedrock  Tunnel CIty/Lone Rock Fm Aquifer Tunnel City-Eau
Last Strat Eau Claire Formation Depth to Bedrock 189 ft
Located by Minnesota Geological Survey
Remarks Locate Method Digitized - scale 1:24,000 or larger (Digitizing Table)
GAMMA LOGGED AND TV 2-3-1995 BY GEOSHPHERE MIDWEST. System UTM - NADS3, Zone 15, Meters X 510389 Y 4956171
Unique Number Verification Information from InputDate  07/18/1996
Angled Drill Hole
‘Well Contractor
Minnesota Geological Survey MGS
Licensee Business Lic. or Reg. No. Name of Driller
249905

Minnesota Well Index Report

Printed on 08/16/2019
HE-01205-15
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Minnesota Unique Well Number

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

oo . WELL AND BORING REPORT pubre s
Quad  Prescott ) Update Date 07/11/2018
559259 Minnesota Statutes Chapter 1031 s
Quadip 102D Received Date
'Well Name Township Range Dir Section Subsection 'Well Depth Depth Completed Date Well Completed
LOCK & DAM 115 17 W 21 BACBBA 305 ft. 305 ft. 05/22/1995
Elevation 700 ft. Elev. Method 7.5 minute topographic map (+/- 5 feet) Drill Method  Non-specified Rotary Drill Fluid Bentonite
Address Use  public supply/non-comm -transient Status  Active
C/W 1350 LOCK & DAM RD HASTINGS MN 55033 (Well Hydrofractured? Yes D No D From To
Casing Type Single casing Joint Welded
Stratigraphy Information Drive Shoe?  Yes No D Above/Below 0ft.
Geological Material From To(ft.) Color Hardness Casing Diameter Weight Hole Diameter
SAND 0 38 BROWN  SOFT 8 in.To 255 ft. 28.5 Ibs/fi. 12 in.To 255 ft.
CLAY 38 138 BLUE MEDIUM 8 in.To 305 ft.
CLAY 138 178 RED MEDIUM
ROCK 178 185 BLUE HARD
LIMEROCK 185 187 YELLOW HARD
LIMEROCK 187 195  YELLOW HARD Spe" }i"le Erom: 355 ff; T i
e ake
SANDROCK 195 261  GRN/GRY MEDIUM ereen? [ ] w
SANDROCK 261 305 GRN/GRY MEDIUM
Static Water Level
10 ft. land surface Measure 05/22/1995
[Pumping Level (below land surface)
20 f 15 hrs.  Pumping at 155 g.pm.
‘Wellhead Completion
Pitless adapter manufacturer BAKER Model  10.5PS810W
| Casing Protection [] 12 in. above grade
] At-grade (Environmental Wells and Borings ONLY)
Grouting Information Well Grouted? X Yes [ | No [ ] Not Specified
Material Amount From To
neat cement 6 Cubicyards 0 ft. 255 ft.
Nearest Known Source of Contamination
60 feet South Direction Septic tank/drain field Type
Well disinfected upon completion? X] Yes [] Neo
[Pump D Not Installed Date Installed 07/04/1995
Manufacturer's name GRUNDFOS
Model Number 1355100-6 HP 10 Volt 460
Length of drop pipe 84 ft Capacity 135 gp. Typ Submersible
/Abandoned
Does property have any not in use and not sealed well(s)? X] Yes [] No
Variance
Was a variance granted from the MDH for this well? [] Yes [ ™
Miscellaneous
First Bedrock  Tunnel CIty/Lone Rock Fm Aquifer Wonewoc
Last Strat Wonewoc Sandstone Depth to Bedrock 187 ft
Located by Minnesota Department of Health
Remarks Locate Method GPS SA Off (averaged) (15 meters)
GAMMA LOGGED 62-1995. System UTM - NADS3, Zone 15, Meters X 510430 Y 4956083
EOCKRN'DAM NO:3/WEEENOZ, Unique Number Verification ThfoH o Fom InputDate  (8/14/2000
Angled Drill Hole
‘Well Contractor
Kimmes-Bauer 19521 MILLER, M.
Licensee Business Lic. or Reg. No. Name of Driller

Minnesota Well Index Report

559259

Printed on 08/16/2019
HE-01205-15







image6.jpg

Minnesota Unique Well Number
County Dakota

255874 Quad St Paul Park
QuadIp 102C

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

WELL AND BORING REPORT
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 1031

Entry Date

Update Date
Received Date

09/26/2002
07/11/2018

Minnesota Well Index Report

'Well Name Township Range Dir Section Subsection 'Well Depth Depth Completed Date Well Completed
115 17 W 20 DBADAD 410 ft. 410 ft.
Elevation 793 ft. Elev. Method 7.5 minute topographic map (+/- 5 feet) Drill Method Drill Fluid
{Address Use  domestic Status  Sealed
Well 1976 NININGER RD HASTINGS MN 55033 (Well Hydrofractured? Yes D No D From To
Casing Type Single casing Joint
Stratigraphy Information Drive Shoe?  Yes D No D Above/Below 11t
Geological Material From To(ft.) Color Hardness Casing Diameter Weight Hole Diameter
GLACIAL DRIFT g 410 4 in.To 407 ft. Ibs./ft. 4 inTo 410 ft.
pen Hole From ft. To ft.
Screen? [ Type Make
Static Water Level
9%.5 fi. land surface Measure 09/17/2002
[Pumping Level (below land surface)
‘Wellhead Completion
Pitless adapter manufacturer Model
| Casing Protection [X] 12 in. above grade
] At-grade (Environmental Wells and Borings ONLY)
Grouting Information Well Grouted? [ | Yes [ | No [ ] Not Specified
Nearest Known Source of Contamination
feet Direction Type
Well disinfected upon completion? ] Yes [] Neo
[Pump D Not Installed Date Installed
Manufacturer's name
Model Number HP Volt
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
First Bedrock Aquifer Quat. buried
Last Strat Quaternary deposit Depth to Bedrock ft
Located by Minnesota Geological Survey
Remarks Locate Method Digitization (Screen) - Map (1:24,000) (15 meters or
GAMMA LOGGED 9-17-2002. System UTM - NADS3, Zone 15, Meters X 509554 Y 4955368
IT IS POSSIBLE TO HAVE A SCREEN IN BOTTOM OF WELL. Unique Number Verification Tifoton ot TputDate  09/19/2002
WELL SEALED 10-30-2002 BY 19302. -
Angled Drill Hole
‘Well Contractor
Minnesota Geological Survey MGS
Licensee Business Lic. or Reg. No. Name of Driller
255874

Printed on 08/16/2019
HE-01205-15
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Minnesota Unique Well Number

County Dakota

233923 Quad  Prescott
QuadIp 102D

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

WELL AND BORING REPORT Entry Date 03/19/2003
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 1031

Update Date 08/18/2014

Received Date

'Well Name Township Range Dir Section Subsection 'Well Depth Depth Completed Date Well Completed
[BORING-69 - 115 17 W 16 CDCBDD 144 ft. 144 ft. 04/29/1937
Elevation 665 ft. Elev. Method Surveyed Drill Method Drill Fluid
{Address Use  other (specify in remarks) Status ~ Unknow
'Well Hydrofractured? Yes [ ] No [ | From To
Casing Type Joint
Stratigraphy Information Drive Shoe?  Yes [ ] No [ Above/Below
Geological Material From To(ft.) Color Hardness
MEDIUM SAND 0 45
CLAY & SILT, TRACE 45 99
MED. TO COARSE 99 116
SANDSTONE 116 144
pen Hole From ft. To ft.
Screen? D Type Make
Static Water Level
-7, fu land surface Measure 04/29/1937
[Pumping Level (below land surface)
‘Wellhead Completion
Pitless adapter manufacturer Model
| Casing Protection [] 12 in. above grade
At-grade (Environmental Wells and Borings ONLY)
Grouting Information Well Grouted? [ ] Yes [ | No [K] Not Specified
Nearest Known Source of Contamination
feet Direction Type
Well disinfected upon completion? ] Yes [] Neo
Pump [] NotInstalled Date Installed
Manufacturer's name
Model Number HP Volt
Length of drop pipe ft  Capacity 2p. Typ
/Abandoned
Does property have any not in use and not sealed well(s)? [ Yes [] No
Variance
Was a variance granted from the MDH for this well? [ Yes 7 Ne
Miscellaneous
First Bedrock  Tunnel CIty/Lone Rock Fm Aquifer
Last Strat Tunnel Clty/Lone Rock Fm Depth to Bedrock 116 ft
Located by Minnesota Geological Survey
Remarks Locate Method Digitized - scale 1:24,000 or larger (Digitizing Table)
ARMY CORP OF ENGINEERS BORING. System UTM - NADS3, Zone 15, Meters X 510496 Y 4956392
Unique Number Verification Information from Input Date 01/01/1990
Angled Drill Hole

‘Well Contractor

Licensee Business Lic. or Reg. No. Name of Driller

Minnesota Well Index Report

233923

Printed on 08/16/2019
HE-01205-15
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Minnesota Unique Well Number

County Dakota

233924 Quad  Prescott
QuadIp 102D

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH Entry Date 03/19/2003
WELL AND BORING REPORT
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 1031

Update Date 11/08/2005
Received Date

'Well Name Township Range Dir Section Subsection 'Well Depth Depth Completed Date Well Completed
[BORING-68 - 115 17 W 16 CDCCAB 119 ft. 119ft. 05/20/1937
Elevation 666 ft. Elev. Method Surveyed Drill Method Drill Fluid
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
MEDIUM SAND 0 42
SILT, SOME CLAY, 42 57
CLAY & SILT, TRACE 57 100
MEDIUM SAND, 100 111
CLAY & SILT, TRACE 111 116 ol
CLAY, TRACE SILT, 116 119 pen Flole  From ft To f.
Screen? D Type Make
Static Water Level
195 f. land surface Measure 05/20/1937
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
Was a variance granted from the MDH for this well? [] Yes [ ™o
Miscellaneous
First Bedrock Aquifer
Last Strat clay/sand/silt-no peb. Depth to Bedrock ft
Located by Minnesota Geological Survey
Remarks Locate Method Digitized - scale 1:24,000 or larger (Digitizing Table)
ARMY CORP OF ENGINEERS BORING. System UTM - NADS3, Zone 15, Meters X 510476 Y 4956370
Unique Number Verification Information from Input Date 01/01/1990
Angled Drill Hole

‘Well Contractor

Licensee Business Lic. or Reg. No. Name of Driller

Minnesota Well Index Report

233924

Printed on 08/16/2019
HE-01205-15
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Minnesota Unique Well Number

County Dakota

233925 Quad  Prescott
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
BORING-67 - 115 17 W 16 CDCCAD 107 ft. 107 ft. 04/26/1937
Elevation 655 ft. Elev. Method Surveyed Drill Method Drill Fluid
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
SEWER SLUDGE & 0 7
M. SAND, SOME SILT & 7 28
CLAY & SILT, TRACE 28 93
COARSE SAND, SOME 93 101
CLAY & SILT 101 105
CLAY, SOME GRAVEL 105 107 peLHole  From L T i
Screen? [ Type Make
Static Water Level
-28. fu. land surface Measure 04/26/1937
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
Last Strat pebbly sand/silt/clay Depth to Bedrock ft
Located by Minnesota Geological Survey
Remarks Locate Method Digitized - scale 1:24,000 or larger (Digitizing Table)
ARMY CORP OF ENGINEERS BORING. System UTM - NADS3, Zone 15, Meters X 510507 Y 4956371
Unique Number Verification Information from Input Date 01/01/1990
Angled Drill Hole

‘Well Contractor

Licensee Business Lic. or Reg. No. Name of Driller

Minnesota Well Index Report

233925

Printed on 08/16/2019
HE-01205-15
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Minnesota Unique Well Number

County Dakota
Prescott

233926 Quad
QuadIp 102D

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
WELL AND BORING REPORT
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 1031

Entry Date 03/19/2003
Update Date 07/11/2018
Received Date

'Well Name Township Range Dir Section Subsection 'Well Depth Depth Completed Date Well Completed
BORING-119 - 115 17 W 21 BBAAAB 152 ft. 152 ft. 08/10/1937
Elevation 685 ft. Elev. Method Surveyed Drill Method Drill Fluid
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
SAND 0 6
CLAY & SILT 6 29
SILT 29 32
CLAY & SILT 32 43
SAND 43 57
SILT 57 60 pen Hole From ft. To ft.
CLAY & SILT 60 65 Sercen? ] Tpe Make
SILT 65 72
CLAY & SILT 72 111
SAND 111 124 Static Water Level
CLAY 124 139 -9 fu land surface Measure 08/10/1937
CLAY & SILT 139 146
CLAY 146 152 [Pumping Level (below land surface)
SAND 152 152
‘Wellhead Completion
Pitless adapter manufacturer Model
| Casing Protection [] 12 in. above grade
At-grade (Environmental Wells and Borings ONLY)
Grouting Information Well Grouted? [ ] Yes [ | No [ ] Not Specified
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
Last Strat sand Depth to Bedrock ft
Located by Minnesota Geological Survey
Remarks Locate Method Digitized - scale 1:24,000 or larger (Digitizing Table)
ARMY CORP OF ENGINEERS BORING. System UTM - NADS3, Zone 15, Meters X 510353 Y 4956270
Unique Number Verification Information from Input Date 01/01/1990
Angled Drill Hole

‘Well Contractor

Licensee Business Lic. or Reg. No. Name of Driller

Minnesota Well Index Report

233926

Printed on 08/16/2019
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Minnesota Unique Well Number

County Dakota

233927 Quad
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
BORING-118 - 115 17 W 16 CCBDAC 157 ft. 157 ft. 07/29/1937
Elevation 681 ft. Elev. Method Surveyed Drill Method Drill Fluid
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
SILT 0 3
CLAY & SILT 3 14
SAND 14 16
SILT 16 18
CLAY & SILT 18 31
SAND 31 52 pen Hole From T ft. To — ft.
5 e ake
SILT s2 61 Screen? [ yp
CLAY & SILT 61 109
SAND 109 121
cLAY 121 132 Static Water Level
CLAY & SILT 139 157 -63  ft. land surface Measure 07/29/1937
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
Last Strat silt+clay Depth to Bedrock ft
Located by Minnesota Geological Survey
Remarks Locate Method Digitized - scale 1:24,000 or larger (Digitizing Table)
ARMY CORP OF ENGINEERS BORING. Systemn UTM - NADS3, Zone 15, Meters X 510143 Y 4956545
Unique Number Verification Information from Input Date 01/01/1990
Angled Drill Hole

‘Well Contractor

Licensee Business Lic. or Reg. No. Name of Driller

Minnesota Well Index Report

233927

Printed on 08/16/2019
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Minnesota Unique Well Number

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

. WELL AND BORING REPORT pbie - oyens
Quad  Prescott ) Update Date 07/11/2018
233928 Minnesota Statutes Chapter 1031 s
QuadIp 102D Received Date
'Well Name Township Range Dir Section Subsection 'Well Depth Depth Completed Date Well Completed
BORING-117 - 115 17 W 21 BABCDD 147 ft. 147 ft. 08/00/1937
Elevation 683 ft. Elev. Method Surveyed Drill Method Drill Fluid
[Address Use other (specify in remarks) Status  Unknow
'Well Hydrofractured? Yes [ ] No [ | From To
Casing Type Joint
Stratigraphy Information Drive Shoe?  Yes [ ] Mo [] Above/Below
Geological Material From To(ft.) Color Hardness
SAND 0 12
CLAY & SILT 12 20
SAND 20 60
SILT 60 69
CLAY & SILT 69 75
SAND 75 77 pen Hole From T ft. To — ft.
5 e ake
CLAY & SILT 7 116 Sareen? [ "
SAND 116 127
CLAY 127 136
CLAY & SILT 136 147 Static Water Level
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
ARMY CORP OF ENGINEERS BORING. System UTM - NADS3, Zone 15, Meters X 510480 Y 4956115
Unique Number Verification Information from Input Date 01/01/1990
Angled Drill Hole

‘Well Contractor

Licensee Business Lic. or Reg. No. Name of Driller

Minnesota Well Index Report

233928

Printed on 08/16/2019
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m DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL RESOURCES

Minnesota Department of Natural Resources
Division of Ecological and Water Resources
500 Lafayette Road

St. Paul, MN 55155

April 15, 2020 (sent via E-mail)

Trevor W. Cyphers

Fishery Biologist

St. Paul District, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
180 Fifth Street East, Suite 700

St. Paul, MN 55101-1678

Dear Mr. Cyphers,

The Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (DNR) as the Responsible Government Unit forthe
proposed Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project (the Project) EAW, has reviewedthe Second Data
Submittal provided via electronic download by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, on March 16, 2020.
The DNR has determined the EAW Second Data Submittal to be incomplete.

The information described on the attached spreadsheet is needed for the DNR to prepare an EAW for
the Project. Some items request specific information or provide suggestions for consideration, while
others seek elaboration or clarification that may, upon further review, result in the need for additional
information. Items have been labeled by Comment ID for easier reference.

As the RGU, MN DNR considers the Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW) to be the primary
document for analyzing the expected environmental impacts of a proposed project required by the
Minnesota Environmental Policy Act. Although this document is similar in many respects to the federal
Environmental Assessment required by the National Environmental Policy Act, the format is different
and the EAW asks some different questions. DNR staff expanded upon the submitted U.S. Army Corps
of Engineers’ supplement document by adding the full text of the EAW questions and the relevant text
from the EA in order to ensure all EAW information requirements have been satisfied. From a practical
standpoint, this has made the the EAW supplement, previously labelled Attachment #, into the primary
document that DNR would likely use to satisfy publication requirements for the EAW process. | am
attaching the resulting document for your convenience. DNR also intends to retain the EA in the
project’s official records to ensure that the record is transparent and clear.

Minnesota Department of Natural Resources ¢ Division of Ecological and Water Resources
500 Lafayette Road, St. Paul, MN 55155





After you have considered each of these comments, please feel free tocontact me at (651) 259-5694,
or kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us if you have any questions regarding the information that is being
requested.

Sincerely,

Kathy Metzker
Environmental Review
Attachments

C: lJill Townley, DNR, Environmental Review Unit Supervisor
Kate Fairman, DNR, Environmental Review, State Planning Director
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From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)

To: Henning-Randa, Bridget (DNR)

Subject: RE: Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project - Mussel Assessment
Date: Monday, May 18, 2020 12:16:00 PM

Bridget,

No worries, thank you for the update. We had an internal call last week, and one of my coworkers (Aaron
McFarlane), whom worked on the Boulanger Bend Project, had a suggestion for a path forward as that project had a
similar situation as LP2 Island. Aaron said that Rich filled out a take permit for the MnDNR because they were the
RGU for the project. I'm not sure if he fully completed the permit or not; however, it could be a potential solution.
That way the Corps isn't applying for a permit, but the mussel information surrounding the project is captured.

Thanks,

Trevor

From: Henning-Randa, Bridget (DNR) [mailto:Bridget. Henning-Randa(@state.mn.us]
Sent: Monday, May 18, 2020 11:51 AM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Subject: [Non-DoD Source] RE: Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project - Mussel Assessment

Hi Trevor,

Sorry I missed your call. I did bring the situation to my supervisor last week, but have not heard back on a direction
to take. I believe that they are continuing to discuss it, and I will let you know as soon as I learn more.

Thanks,
Bridget

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Sent: Wednesday, May 13, 2020 2:21 PM

To: Henning-Randa, Bridget (DNR) <Bridget.Henning-Randa@state.mn.us>

Subject: RE: Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project - Mussel Assessment

Bridget,

I hope all is well. During on our call last week you mentioned that you had an internal meeting last Friday. I was just
wondering if you got any clarification for our situation during that call. Feel free to give me a call if you want to
discuss. I should be free most of the week apart from Friday morning.

Thanks,

Trevor

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)

Sent: Wednesday, May 6, 2020 11:44 AM

To: 'Henning-Randa, Bridget (DNR)' <Bridget.Henning-Randa@state.mn.us>

Cc: Kelner, Daniel E CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Daniel.E.Kelner@usace.army.mil>
Subject: RE: Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project - Mussel Assessment

Hey Bridget,


mailto:Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil
mailto:Bridget.Henning-Randa@state.mn.us
mailto:Bridget.Henning-Randa@state.mn.us

I left you a lengthy voicemail a few minutes ago. If it works, Dan Kelner (our mussel biologist) will give you a call
at 1pm today and we can have a three-way call to discuss a path forward.

Thanks,

Trevor

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)

Sent: Wednesday, May 6, 2020 7:08 AM

To: Henning-Randa, Bridget (DNR) <Bridget.Henning-Randa@state.mn.us>
Subject: RE: Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project - Mussel Assessment

Good idea, I'll give you a call today at 11.

- Trevor

From: Henning-Randa, Bridget (DNR) [mailto:Bridget. Henning-Randa@state.mn.us]
Sent: Tuesday, May 5, 2020 2:55 PM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Subject: [Non-DoD Source] RE: Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project - Mussel Assessment

Hi Trevor,
It appears we are playing phone tag. Maybe we should set up a time to chat? [ am free today at 3, or tomorrow at 11
or 1. Let me know if any of those work for you.

Thanks,
Bridget

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Sent: Tuesday, April 28, 2020 2:48 PM

To: Baker, Richard (DNR) <richard.baker@state.mn.us>

Cc: Henning-Randa, Bridget (DNR) <Bridget.Henning-Randa@state.mn.us>

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

Rich and Bridget,

Sorry to bother you, but I was just wondering if you had an opportunity to review the content of my previous email
regarding the Lock and Dam 2 Island and potential mussel impacts. Feel free to give me a call if you would like to
discuss.

Thanks again,

Trevor

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)


mailto:Bridget.Henning-Randa@state.mn.us

Sent: Thursday, April 16,2020 12:07 PM

To: richard.baker@state.mn.us

Cc: Bridget.Henning-Randa@state.mn.us; Kelner, Daniel E CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)
<Daniel.E.Kelner@usace.army.mil>; Mcfarlane, Aaron M CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)
<Aaron.M.McFarlane@usace.army.mil>

Subject: Lock and Dam 2 Protective Island Project - Mussel Assessment

Rich,

Good afternoon, I hope all is well. I'm contacting you based on a couple comments I received during a Minnesota
EAW internal review. I've attached an excel spreadsheet that contains the aforementioned comments that focus on
potential mussel concerns. The project requiring the EAW would involve constructing an island located just north of
the Lock and Dam 2 Embankment. The island would protect the existing embankment from erosion and provide a
beneficial use for dredged material, as the island would incorporate features based on the UMRR Environmental
Design Handbook. I've attached the Draft EA for additional context and background information.

During the scoping phase of the project Dan Kelner, Aaron McFarlane, and myself surveyed the project area and
extent of the island footprint on two separate occasions (2017 and 2018) utilizing our skimmer dredge. The results
of our surveys are summarized in Section 3.2.2, while the potential mussel impacts of the island are discussed in
Section 4.2.2. of the EA. Given the habitat condition of the project area was poor (fine flocculent substrate) and the
near absence of mussels within the island footprint, additional dive surveys were not warranted.

As outlined in the EA, potential mussel impacts would be extremely low. There should be no impacts to state-listed
species as only a single individual of a state protected species (Quadrula nodulata) was collected live and was placed
near the transect collected, but outside of the project footprint. The near absence of mussels in the project footprint
coupled with beneficial features added to the project, would likely benefit mussels in the long term throughout this
area.

Do you concur with the Corps' determination that the survey accurately characterizes mussel resources, impacts to
mussels would be negligible, and mitigation measures, including the need for a Take Permit or mussel relocation,
are not warranted for this project? Let me know if you have any questions or would like to set up a call with Dan,
Aaron and myself to discuss this topic further.

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

Cc: Townley, Jill (DNR); Henning-Randa, Bridget (DNR); Davis, Mike J (DNR); Sietman, Bernard (DNR); Collins,
Melissa (DNR)

Subject: [Non-DoD Source] update on mussels

Date: Monday, July 20, 2020 2:45:54 PM

Hi Trevor,

Many of us at the DNR have been talking about mussels in the past week or so, and it looks like a consensus has
formed. Due to the unsuitable habitat in the project area, the few specimens of state listed species found there (only
one), and the fact that the project will have a net positive impact on the mussel community, we will not press for a
takings permit.

Happy Monday!

Kathy
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From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA)

To: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR)

Subject: RE: feedback and comments on current draft- Lock and Dam 2 protective island EAW
Date: Tuesday, July 21, 2020 9:55:00 AM

Attachments: Vanes.ipg

Kathy,

I passed the comment along about incorporating chinking stones with the riprap to our engineers and hydrologists
that are working on the project and their responses are below:

Engineering: It's not our normal practice because we have specifically designed gradation with specific W50
requirements (minimum size/weight of stone that has 50% of the entire gradation smaller than given), which
determine the hydraulic performance of the rock layer. If you mix smaller stones in before placing the riprap the
W50 and performance of the layer will change. It could be possible to try and chink the surface of the layer to fill in
voids but that might not be as successful and could settle out after a while.

Hydraulics: During past project we have tried placing chinking stone on top and it usually doesn't last very long. For
that reason, we don't recommend this practice.

I've attached an example of what the rock vanes will look like once completed. Most of the riprap incorporated into
the rock vanes throughout are projects are passable for wildlife (i.e., turtles) just above the tie-in area. After some
time, they become a nice habitat feature that provides a bit of habitat diversity to the sand bench.

Thanks,

Trevor

From: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR) [mailto:kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us]
Sent: Tuesday, July 14, 2020 9:42 AM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Subject: [Non-DoD Source] FW: feedback and comments on current draft- Lock and Dam 2 protective island EAW

A comment on riprap.

From: Collins, Melissa (DNR) <Melissa.Collins@state.mn.us>

Sent: Tuesday, July 14, 2020 9:27 AM

To: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR) <kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us>

Subject: RE: feedback and comments on current draft- Lock and Dam 2 protective island EAW

Hi Kathy,
I noticed that they are still planning to exclusively use the R140 rip-rap. We requested that smaller aggregates be
added to fill in gaps near shorelines to make the embankments more wildlife passable.

Thanks!

Melissa Collins

Regional Environmental Assessment Ecologist | Ecological and Water Resources
Pronouns: She/her

Minnesota Department of Natural Resources

1200 Warner Road

St. Paul, MN 55106
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Phone: 651-259-5755
Email: melissa.collins@state.mn.us
mndnr.gov

From: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR) <kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us>

Sent: Monday, July 13, 2020 9:28 AM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>

Cc: Collins, Melissa (DNR) <Melissa.Collins@state.mn.us>; Townley, Jill (DNR) <jill.townley@state.mn.us>
Subject: RE: feedback and comments on current draft- Lock and Dam 2 protective island EAW

Thanks. That's one more issue we can scratch off the list!

From: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>

Sent: Friday, July 10, 2020 3:47 PM

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

Thank you for getting this back to me, I appreciate it. I'll work on looking through the comments next week and see
if I need any further clarification. First, I wanted to send you the SHPO letter. I will make sure to attach it with the
next submittal as well. Have a great weekend.

- Trevor

From: Metzker, Kathleen (DNR) [mailto:kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us]
Sent: Friday, July 10, 2020 12:27 PM

To: Cyphers, Trevor W CIV USARMY CEMVP (USA) <Trevor.W.Cyphers@usace.army.mil>
Cc: Collins, Melissa (DNR) <Melissa.Collins@state.mn.us>; Townley, Jill (DNR) <jill.townley@state.mn.us>
Subject: [Non-DoD Source] feedback and comments on current draft- Lock and Dam 2 protective island EAW

Hi Trevor,

I've reviewed the draft that you submitted and made some comments in it.

We have made progress, but still have some outstanding issues. These are the ones that I see:

Mussels- I have been talking to many different people to get feedback and suggestions on what we should do about


mailto:kathleen.metzker@state.mn.us

the possibility of state-listed mussels in the project area, but this is still unresolved.

SHPO concurrence letter- I think we still do not have the SHPO concurrence letter. We will need this when the
EAW is submitted to EQB.

BMPs to control or contain sedimentation from runoff at the staging area: MPCA has stated that there should be
redundant out of water BMPs and at least one in water BMP to contain sediment. The EAW lists two out of water
BMPs (sandbags and silt curtains), but no inwater BMPs. This is important, because the Mississippi is impaired for
turbidity in this area, so at least one candidate in water BMP should be mentioned.

Appendix E is, I think, still not done. Considering that Appendix E is 'a coordination appendix that contains detailed
descriptions of compliance efforts for certain regulations', its content may address the unresolved questions about
minimizing and mitigating turbidity and sedimentation.

Concerning mufflers on construction equipment: this is common MPCA requirement, but I understand that some
equipment might not be suitable for being outfitted with a muffler. I expanded a little on your comment on noise in
the EAW; take a look and see if it works for you. We'll see what MPCA has to say on this.

Measures to control/mitigate/reduce sedimentation and turbidity when the island is constructed- We need a fill
placement method that offers the least sediment release, and a mention of inwater BMPs to control the sediment and
reduce/minimize/control turbidity in the river in the project area. I saw some turbidity language in the 404 permit,
but it just states an intention to have BMPs without describing what those will actually be. We need some discussion
of these.

Regarding planting or seeding the emergent wetland on the island: comments from the REAE indicate that the
region is fine with letting this self vegetate if it's a type 3 or 4 wetland, but not a type 2 wetland. Considering that
this is a constructed wetland, it is up to the corps what kind of wetland it will be. I see that the text says that it will
be a type 3 or 4, and I added some text to clarify that this is by design intent. So it looks like self-vegetating should
be okay here.

Let me know if you have any more questions. I hope we can resolve the mussel issue soon.

Thanks, Kathy
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